








FROM THE UNITED

POPULATION OF KANSAS BY COUNTIES.

STATES CENSUS OF 1890, 1570 AXD 1880, AND THE STATE CENSUS OF 1585 AND 1578
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BIs TORY OF KANSAS:

EARLY DISCOVERIES.
THE soil of Kansas was first trodden by Europeans in the winter
of 154142, by a Spanish expedition from Mexico, under Coron-
ado, who passed through the State from south to north. The general
direction of his march may now be indicated by a line drawn from
Barbour County to Nemaha County,

In the year 1719, Kunsas was visited by o Frenchman, M. Dus-
tine, who was sent from New Orleans. He traveled up the (sage and
Kansas Rivers as far as the mouth of the Republiean, and then went
over two lmndred miles in a westerly or northwesterly direction, thus
crossing Coronado’s trail near the point where Fort Riley is now situ-
ated.  He took possession of the entive country, in the name of
France.

The next year a large expedition was sent fram New Mexico by

the Spaniards, to conquer the Indians who had heen friendly to the

French. The Missouris and Pawnees were at war, and, the Spaniards
atteropted to form an allisnce with the former to destroy the latter.
They mistopk a Missouri for a Pawnee village, and lnid their plans
before the tribe which they propesed to destroy. The Pawnees
delayed their answer until their warriors conld assemble, and then two
thousand of their braves fell upon the invaders and destrayed the whole
body except one priest, who returned to Santa Fe.

Fort Urleans was then established by the French on an island in
the Missouri River, near the mouth of the Osage, and a continuons
trade was carried on with the Indians.

In 1762, Louisians, including all Kansas, except that portion
which lies south of the Arkansas River, and west of the Twenty-third
Meridian west from Washington, was ceded by France to Spain, and,
in 1800, was retroceded by Spain. In 1803, Louisiana was purchased
by the United States. That part of the State mot included in the
Louisiana purchuse was ceded by the State of Texas in 1845,

In 1828, the overland commerce between Missouri and Santa e
was established, and, two vears Inter, the “Santa Fe Trail" was sur-
veyed by the United States Government. Fort Leavenworth was
established in 1827,

The Baptist Shawnee Mission was begun in 1831, and the Method-
ists' one year later. The site of Fort Scott was selected s a military
post in 1842,

In 1850, the Government surveyed the military voad from Fort
Leavenworth to Fort Kearney.

In 1853, Fort Riley was established. In 1845, the Mormons
assembled near the present site of Atchison, to commence their jour-
ney across the plains, and from that time the soil of Kansas has been
crossed in all directions by the trails of emigrants bound for the
Rockies and beyond.

Until the spring of 1854, traders, missionaries and Indian agents
were the only white persons to whom the country was open.

TERRITORIAL HISIORY.
May 80, 1854, Prosident Pierce signed the Kansas-Nebraska bill
and it became a law. The following is copied from the act:

[BecTioNn 19.]  And be it further enaeted, That oll that part of the territory of
thie United States included within the following limits, except such portions thereof
a5 aro hercinafter expresaly exempied from the of of this uet, to wit, begin-

aing st n point on the westérn boundary of the State of Missouri, where the thirty-

seventh parallel of north Intitude grosses the same; thence west on eaid parallel to
tha eastern boundary of New Mezico; thenve north on said boundary to latitude
thirty-eight, thence following said boundary westward to the enstern boundary of the
Territory of Utah, on the summit of the Rocky Mountains; thence northward on said
summit to the fortieth parallel of latitude; thenoe east onsnid parallel to the western
bonudary of the Siate of Missouri; thenoe south with the western boundary of said
State to the place of beginning. be, and the same is hereby, created into a temporary
Government, by the nume of the Territory of Eansas; and when admitted as n State
or States, the said Territory, or uny portion of the snme, shall be received into the
Union with or without slivery, ns their constitution mny preseribe at the time of their
admission. Prowided, That nothing in this act contained shall be construad to inhibit
the Government of the United States from dividing said Teeritory into twp or move
Territories, in such manner knd 4t such times as Congress shall deom convenlent and
proper, or from aiinching any portion of said Territory Lo nny other State or Terri-
tory of the United Siates. Provided further, That nothing in this aot contuined shall
be constried to impair (he rights of person or property now pertaining to the Indinns
in =il Territory, so long ns such rights shall remain unextinguished by treaty
between the United States and such Indians, or to ingolude any territory, which, by
treaty with siny Indian tribe, is not, without the consent of ssid tribe, to be included
within the Territorial limits or jurisdiction of any State or Territory, but all such
territory shall be exonpted out of the houndaries, and constitate no part of the Terri-
tory of Knnsus, until said tribe shall signify their nssent to, the President of the
United States, to be included within the said Territory of Kansus, or to affect the
nuthority of the Government of the United Siates to make any regulation respecting
eueh Ludinns, their lands, property or other rights, by treaty, luw or otherwise, which
it woull hsve been computent to the Government to make if this net had never
passed.

The people of the Eastern States had expected the bill to pass,
and both North and South were prepared for the fight between slavery
and freedom. In Murch, 1854, Eli Thayer, of Boston, Mass., pro-
posed the establishment of a saciety whose chief objeet should be the
gettlement of Kansas by Free-Soilers, The society was organized
under the name of the “New England Emigrant Aid Society,'” with a
capital limited to $1,000,000; only one-tenth of this sum was used by
the society.

Secret sacieties were formed in Missouri and other Southern States.
whose object was to settle Kansas with Pro-slavery men, and to drive
out and hinder the Free-Soilers from coming in. Two months after the
President signed the Kansos-Nebraska bill, the first party of New
Englanders reached the borders of Kansas, and, the next duy, August
1, founded the city of Lawrence; a similar colony founded Topeka,
December 5, 1854,

In June, 1854, the Leavenworth Town Company was arganized in
Missouri, and, in July, the Atchison Town Company; during the
summer, both towns were commenced by Pro-slavery men.

By the act of Congress creating the Territory, Fort Lenvenworth

was named as the temporary seat of government.

The first officers of the Territory of Kansas were: Andrew H.
Reeder; of Easton, Penn., Governor; Israel B. Donaldson, of Tllinois,
United States Marshal; Daniel Woodson, of Lynchburg, Va., Secre-
tary; Samuel D. Lecompte, of Maryland, Chief Justice; Saunders
W. Johnston, of Ohio, and Bush Elmore, of Alabama, Associate
Justices: John Calhoun, of Illinois, Surveyor General; e B
Cramer, Treasurer. October T, 1854, Gov. Reeder arrived in the
Tarritory, and established the executive office temporarily at Fort
Leavenworth.

November 29, 1854, an election for Delegate to Congress waa held.
Gen. J. W. Whitfeld, the Pro-slavery candidate, was elected,

A census was taken in January and February, 1855, which showed
a population of 8,601, with 2,905 voters.

—




An eleetion of members of the Territorinl Legislature was ilu‘l-l
March 80, 1855. As in the preceding November; many .‘I-li:'.suun:ul.«
crossed the wiver and voted, swelling the number of votes to 6,807,
Gov. Reedor refused to issue certificates of election until he was eom-
pelled to do sa by the use of pistals in the hands of those who claimed
10 be elected, The Governor ordered u mew election in the d
wheve the fraud had been committed. This election was held May 22,
1855.

Gov. Reeder cnlled a session of the Legislature to meet at Pawnee.
This was a town near Fort Riley, laid ot by some of the officers of the
fort, in the full of 1854. By order of Jofferson Davis, Seeretary of
war, the boundaries of the Military Reserve were so enlarged as to
absorb the town, which was destroyed by the United States troops in
the full of 1835,

The Territorinl Legislature, convened on Monduy, July 2, 1850,
Thomas Johnston was elected President of the Couneil, and Gen.
Stringfellow, Speaker of the House of Representatives. The Free-
Soil members, eleoted in May, were unseated, and the Pro-slavery
men, elected in March, were seated in their places.

The Legislature located the seat of government at Shawnee, not-
withstanding the Governor's veto, and, on July 6, adjourned to that

lace.

4 Tt re-assembled at Shawnee Mission July 16, The Missouri code
of laws was enacted, changing the words where necessary, to make
State apply to Territory.

The patronage of the Territory was given to the Legislature and
its appointees; so that the present and future Governors should be
powerless to secure fair play to the people. Gov. Reeder vetoed all
their bills, on the ground that they were not legally constituted, but
the bills were passed over his yeto,

The Free-Soil men had met in & convention at Lawrence, June 25,
and came to the conclusion that whatever laws might be passed by the
Legislature, could have no authority over them. President Pierce
removed Gov. Reeder, August 1, 1855, and Secretary Woodson
became Acting Governor until the arrival of Hon. Wilson Shannon, of
Ohio, who was appointed Governor.

At an election ordered by the Shawnee Legislature, on Octaber 1,
Gen. Whitfield was elected Delegate to Congress; he was the only
candidate, and two-thirds of his votes came from Missouri. October
9, the Free-Soil party held an election for the same office, and cliose

istricts

Gov. Reeder. Congress refused to admit either of them—Goy,

Reeder, hecause he was not elected in accordance with the regulations
of the Territorial Legislature, and Gen. Whitfield, because the frauds

at his eleotion were too manifest to be overlooked.

i THE WAKARUSA WAR.

In the fall of 1855, Franklin Coleman, a Proslavery settler, and
Oharles W. Dow, & Free-Soiler, had a dispute in regard to a claim at
Hickory Point.  Coleman killed Dow November 2L.  The Free-State
men held & meeting the next day at the scene of the murder, and
appointed o committee to proeure the punishment of the murderer,
That night. Sherill Jones, attended by a posse of fourteen men,
arrested Jucob Branson, with whom Dow had lived, for taking part in
the meeting.  On their way to Lecompton, the Sheriff's party were
confronted by fifteen Free-State men, who demanded the release of
Branson ; he was released at once.

§heriﬂ’ Jones gent a dispateh to Gov, Shannon, giving & colored
version of the resens, and asking for 3,000 men.  The Shawnee Leg-
islature had appointed three officers of the militin. To these ]‘viuj.
Gen. Richardson, Gen. Strickler and Brig. Gen. Fastin, Gov, ’Slnm-
non sent :orders to prepare to meet an srmed military foree in Law-
rence or its vicinity, which would not allow the Sheriff to 2erve any
process. The militia from Westport and Independence, Mo., arrived
November 20, and camped at Franklin, four miles from Franklin 1Iat
the mouth of the Wakuarusa. Within three days, 1,500 men WBﬁ; in
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camp, ol except eighty being from Missonri. Dy. Rolingon was
in Lowrenge, with Col. Lane n his

placed in commund of the forees
gecond.  Free Stute companies from Bloomington, Wakarusa, Palmyra
and other places, swelled the numbier of the defenders of the town to
nearly eighteen hundred.  Gov. Shannon, at the request of Gen.
Iastin, telegraphed to President Pierce to obtain the assistance of the
troaps in Fort Leavenworth.  'The President answered favorably ; but,
owing to deliys in the War Department at Washington, the troops did
nat lenve the fort.

On December 5, Messis. Luwol'_\‘ and Babeock succepded in ;_-luding
the besiegers, and obtained an interview with the Governor.  When he
wie informed of the true state of the affuir, Gov. Shannon pereeived
that the Sheriff had greatly exaggorated the facts. He immedintely
proceeded to the Wakarusa camp to prevent bloodshed, if possible.
Through his efforts, a treaty was made, and the Pro-slavery militia dis-
banded December 9. The troops of the Free-Seil party disbanded
two days lnter.

December 6. Thomas W. Barber, 8 Free-State man, was shot by
George W. Clarke, while on his way from Lawrence to his farm; this
was the only blood shed during the war.

The Topeka Uonstitution was adopted December 15, 1855, by a
vate of 1,781 in favor of it, and 46 against it.  On the 15th of Janu-
ary, 1856, an election for State officers, who shoull take their offices
when Kansas should be admitted as a State, under the Topeka Consti-
tution, was held.

The Legislsture elected in Janunry, assembled at Topeka March 4,
organized both Houses, and elected two United States Senators—JTames
H. Lane and Andrew EL. Reeder. The State officers were sworn in,
A memorin]l to Congress was prepared, asking admission into the
Union. On March 15, the Legislature adjourned to re-assemble in
the same place on the 4th of July, 1856.

Companies of srmed men from the Southern States were now
gathering on the border of Kansas. April 19, Sheriff Jones attempted
to arvest those who had rescued Branson; they refused to recognize
his suthority, and he called upon the United States troops to assist
him; when he appeared with the troops on the 23d, no resistance was
offered, and he made the arrests.  About 10 o'elock that night, Jones
was shot and wounded. The citizens of Lawrence denounced the
deed and offered $300 reward for the convietion of the offender, but
he was never discovered.

The armed forces gathere | at the Missouri River, began to advance
upon Lawrence, The United States Marshul, J. B. Donaldson, issued
a proclamation, calling upon the “law-abiding citizens of the Territory ™
to muster at Lecompton in sufficient numbers to enforce the laws; this
was cireulated chiefly in Western Missouri, and was promptly answerad
by those who were waiting for it.  The fact that United States troops
were with the invaders, deterred the citizens of Lawrence from making
any resistance. May 21, 1856, Sheriff Jones entered Lawrence with
a body of armed men. The Free State Hotel and the offices of the
Herald of Fresdom snd the Kansaz Free State were destroyed.
Stores were broken open and pillaged, and the dwelling-house of
Charles Robinson was burned. The wanton destruction of property
in Lawrence led to retaliation by bands of Free-State men in different
ports of the Territory. The most conspionous leader of these forces
was Capt. John Brown. Bands of armed men of both parties rode over
the country, killing and p'undering euch other. The Free-State Leg-
islature met in Topeka July 4, 1856. Col. Sumner appeared at the
head of the United States trocps, and, in obedience to the President’s
proclamation, dispersed the Legisluture.

Gov. Shannon was removed August 21, 1856, and Secretary
Wondson was again the Acting Governor,

Col. Lane was returning from the East with a lorge number of
immigrants.  As the Missourl River was blockaded against Tree-State
immigrants, he was leading them through Towa and Nebraska.  When
Secml:try Woodson heard of the nppr(muh of “Lune's army,"” he
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declared the Territory in o state of insurrection, and called out the wili-
tis August 25.  On that day, 150 Missourians camped near Ossawato-
mie, and were attacked and routed by a party of Free State men.
Another force of Missonrians déemolished Ossawatomie, having mur-
deved Frederick Brown, a son of John Brown, the day before. These
acts only inerensed the zeal of the Free State men, and the guerrilla
warfare became fievcer than ever.

John W. Geary, the new Governor, arrived in Leavenworth, hav-
ing, on his way to Kansas, procured a promise from the Governor of
Missouri that the blockade of the river should be raised. Tmmediately
on his arrival, he issued a proclamation ordering the militia to dis-
band. He initinted a system of special agents, to supply him with
complete reports as to the public feeling and the several dungers of
which he had heard: He found nearly three thousand men at the old
camp in the Wakarusa bottom, imploring to be led on to the destruc-
tion of Lawrence. In the city, he found only 300 wmen, under Col
Harvey. Gov. Geary ordered the invaders to disperse and return to
their homes. They obeyed, but not without inflicting all the injury of
which they were capable upon the settlers. This ended the guerrilla
warfare, though muny depredations were committed afterward by both

ies,

The Territorial Legislature assembled at Lecompton January 12,
1857. The members were enraged at Gov. Geary for sending their
Missouni friends home, and used every means in their power to show
their malignant hate. It now beenme apparent to the Governor that
he was surrounded by deadly enemies. Gen. Smith, who had sue-
ceeded Col. Sumner at Fort Leavenworth, refused to send troops for his
protection. The moneys due to him from Wushington were withheld,
and his dispatches unnoticed. On the 5th of March, he resigned, his
resignation to take effect Mareh 20; but he was obliged to fiy for his
life before the morning of the 5th.

Seeretary Woodson was, for a third time, Acting Governor. April
15, he was superseded by Fred P. Stanton, who had been appointed
Seoretary, and who acted a8 Governor until the arrival of Gov.
Walker, May 27, 1857. s

The Free State Legislature met at Topeka June 9. They ordered
a new census, provided for an clection of State officers in August and
located the capital at Topeka, Ostober 5, at the election for Delegate
to Congress and for the Territorial Legislature, the Free State purty
was successful, electing M. J. Parrott as Delegate, and clecting over
two-thirds of the members of the Council and nearly two-thirds of the
Representatives.

The Pro-Slavery Constitutional Convention was organized st Tie-
compton. After working four days, it adjourned to October 19, After
two weeks more of work, the instrument known a3 the Lecompton Con-
stitution was framed and signed. In November, Gov. Walker vis-
ited Washington, aud, while there, resigned. Secretary Stanton be-
came Acting Governor ; he called the extra session of the Legislature.
Tt convened on December T, at Lecompton, and repealed the law under
which the Lecompton Constitution was made possible. Congress was
memorialized, and preparations made for a new and fuir election in’ re-
zard to the Constitution.

Before the adjournment of the Legislature, Seeretary Stanton was
removed and Gen. Denver appointed to succeed him ns Secretary and
Aeting Governor.

At the election on January 4, 1857, to elect officers under. the
TLecompton Constitution, the Free State party elected all their candi-
dutes and two-thirds of the Legislature.

There were now three governments in Kansas—two provisional State
and one Tervitorial Government—all contralled by the Free State party.

The Territorinl Legislaturs met in Lecompton Januury 4, 1858,
and adjourned to Lawrence; there it repealed and amended the luws
which had been enacted by the Shawnee Legislature.

May 12, Secretary Denver took the outh of office ns Governor, and
Hugh 8. Walsh a8 Secretary.

The Leavenworth Constitution was framed at Leavenworth, and
gigned April 8, 1858, and adopted by the people Muy 18; State offi-
cers and a Legislature under the Constitution were also elected May
18. Gov. Denver resigned September 5, 1858, and Secretary Walsh
became Acting Governor.  December 17, 1858, Samuel Madary, who
had been appointed Governor, arrived in Lecompton, and assumed the
duties of his office.

On the 15th of June, 1859, a Conventica met in Wyandotte, and
framed the Constitntion which became the basis of the admission of Kan-
sns into the Union. This was the first Constitutional Convention in which
hoth political parties wera represented. The Constitation framed by this
Convention prohibited slavery in the State, and located the State capi-
tal, temporarily, at Topeka. The election of State officers under this
Constitution, December 6, 1859, resulted in the choice of Dr. Charles
Robinson for Governor; Joseph P. Boot, Lieutenant Governor; J. W.
Robiuson, Hecretary of State; William Tholen, Treasurer; G. 8. Hill-
yer, Auditor; William R. Grifith, Superintendent of Public Instruc-
tion; Thomas Ewing, Jr., Chief Justice; 8. A. Kingman snd L. D.
Builey, Associate Justices ; B. F. Simpson, Attorney General, and M.
T. Conway, Representative.

Mauy 7, 1860, Hugh 8. Walsh was removed, and George M. Beebe
was appointed Secretary. In Junuary, 1861, Gov. Medary resigned,
and Secrotary Beebe acted s Governor until he was superseded by
(tov. Robinson.

STATE HISTORY.
~ While the people were fighting over the question of slavery in the
Torritory, the four Constitutions which they hued framed were being

considered by Congress. A majority of the House of Representatives

were in favor of admitting Kansas us a free State, while a majority of
the Senute wished it to become o slave State. In April, 1858, Con-
gress passed the corpromise bill, known us the * English bill,” which
provided for the admission of Kansas under the Lecompton Constitution;
upon certain conditions, which the people of the Territory rejected.

Other bills were introduced in the House and Senate, but nothing
was effected until after the withdrawal of the rehel Senators, in Janu-
ary, 1861, Congress then passed the bill for the admission of Kansas
into the Union, under the Wyandotte Constitution.  President Bu-
chanan signed the bill January 29, 1861, and Kansas became a State.

The last Territorinl Legislature was then in session at Lawrence ;
it adjourned Febraary 2. Goy. Robinson was sworn into office Febru-
ary 9, and called a session of the Legisluture.

The first State Legislature assembled at Topeka Mareh 26, 1861.

November 5, 1861, the Stute capital was permanently Toeated at
Topeka, by & vote of the people.

[n June, 1862, John W. Robinson, Secretary of State, and George
8. Hillyer, Auditor, were impeached for defrauding the State in the sals
of the State bonds.

KANSAS WAR RECORD.

No otlicr State in the Union sent so lurge & proportion of its popu-
Jation to the front as did Kansas, the youngest State of the Union.
There were 9,000 soldiers from Kansas in the field in February, 1862,
Tn October, 1868, Kansas had furnished 4,440 troopsin excess of all
eulls.  Mhe first deaft began in February, 1805, because full eredit had
not heen given; it continued for only o month, Kansas furnished, in
all, 21,806 men, besides tliree regiments of Indians, which were re-
cruited in Kansas, and officered, originally, almost exclusively by citi-
gens of Kansns.

Kansas towns suffered severely, at different times, from raids of the
rebels.

September 7, 1862, the rebel guerrilla, Quantrell, entered Olathe,
Killed several men, robbed the stores and destroyed the newspaper offices.
A month later, he again entered Johnson County on & similar raid.

Early in the summer of 1868, Quantrell, at the head of o lurge
band, entered Olathe about midnight. They took most of the citizens
prisoners, and kept them 4l their work was done.  They then plundered
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the town, carried off what they wanted, destroyed other property,
killed some seven men and left before daylight. Some time after, they
sacked the town of Shawnee twice, and burned most of the town.
About daylight on the meorning of August 21, 1868, Quantrell,
with 800 men, dashed into the streets of Luwrence with a yell, shoot-
ing at everybody they saw. Some of the citizens escaped into the
fialds and woods, but the larger portion could not escape at wlly num-
bers of these were shot down, and often brutully ma pled. The rebels
entered the place about 5 o’clock, and left botween 9 and 10.  CUne
hundred and forty-three were left dead in the streets, and about thirty
'he main street was all burned but two stores.

desperately wounded. 1
They destroyed something near two millions of property, and left
eighty widows and two lundred and fifty orphans as the result of their
four hours’ work. Seenes of bratality were énacted which have never
been surpassed in savage warfire.

Ooctober 6. 1868, Gen. Blunt, with o small cavaley escort,
attacked, near Baxter's Springs, by Quantrell, with 600 guerrillas, and
most of his small escort killad or disabled.

When Gen. Price was defeated by the Tnion avmy, on the Big
Blue River, in Missouri, lie retreated into Kansas, erossing the State
line in Linn County, October 23, 1864, The next day, there was a
skirmish at Coldwater Grove, On the 26th, three battles were fought
—one near Mound City, one on the Little Osage and another on the
Marmuton—the rebels retreating each time, and leaving the State south-
east of Fort Scott.

Kansas has suffered comparatively little from Indian depredations.
The most serious troubles were in 1864 and 1867. In the former year,
the Indians made a raid upon the settlers on the Little Blue, west af

Marysvillo.
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In June. 1867, the Indians killed some of the employes of the
Kansas Pacific Ruilroad, and committed other depredations. Gov.
Crawford called out a volunteer hattalion of four regiments, who soon

restored peace on the frontier.

Since that time, the history of Kansas has been a ]|1_-,'|r'>'|-kil‘ ane, and
most -|.'t'.1>' bloodshed and warfare, is now
o great, prosperous nnd peaceful S

Below i gi\'n-l; n list of the Governors of Kansazs Territory :

October B, 1854, to July 31, 1855, A, H. Recder; July 81,1855,
to Su[u:‘-uﬂu}l' 1, 1855, D). Wood 3*  Septemhber 1, 1% 5, to August
21, 1856, W. Shannon ; August 21, 1856, to September 9, 1856, D,

awry 3 March
1857, to April 13, 1857, D. Woodson ;® April 15, 1857, to Mny 24,
1857, Fred P. Stanton ;* May 24, 1857, to December 17, 1857, R. J.
Walker ; December 1T, 1847, to J\]“_\' 12, 1858, J. W. Donver ;* May
12 1858, to: Owtober 10, 1858, J. W, Denver; October 10, 1858, to
December 1, 1858, Hugh 8. Walsh;* December 1, 1858, to Decem-
ber, 1860, Samuel Medary; December, 1860, to February 9, 1861,

what was once the gcene of

ate.

Woodson ;* September 9, 1866, to March, 1857, J. W,

George M. Beebe.*

The State of Kansas:

February 9, 1861, to January, 1863, Oharles Robinson; January,
1868, to January, 1865, Thomas Carney; January, 1865, to Novem-
her 4, 1868, 8. J. Orawford ;* November 4, 1868, to January 1, 1869,
N. Green; January, 1869, to January, 1873, James M. Har;my; Jan-
uary, 1878, to Janunary, 1877, Thomas A. Oshorne; January, 1877,
to January, 1878, George T. Anthony; January, 1879, to jnnuar?,
1881, John P. 8t. John. i

® gacretary anl Acting Governor,
'n-i‘uﬁ{

— o A,
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HISTORY OF DONIPHAN COUNTY, KANSAS.

THE object of this history is to preserve from the oblivion to which

it is so rapidly tending some aceount of the experiences of that
raco of intrepid men and women who paved the way for that remark-
able development which this country has so recently experienced, to
give some dates snd statistics of importance, and to record other matters
of interest, too valuable to be lost. Many of the actors in the drama
of colonization have already passed from the stage, and with them has
vapished all record of some of the exeiting scenes in which they were
participarnits.

The history of the native Indinn tribes is somewhat meager. That
powerful nation of the Indiaus, called the Pawnees, which, in all prob-
ability, had once held almpst undisputable sway over this country, had,
long before the arrival of the white man, given place to a race of
Indinns known as Towas. This people. too, soon vanished before
the ** onward march of civilization.”

When first opened for emigration, much of Eastern Kansas was
in possession of vavious tribes of Indians, who had been removed from
the East and placed upon reservations.

ABORIGINAL OWNBRS OF THE LANDS OF DONIPHAN COUNTY, KAN.

The land of Doniphan County was part of the public domain, or
of the ** Great American Desert," s it was called until the year 1837,
when it was ceded, by the the General Government, to the Kick-a-

oo, Sae and Town Indians,  The Kick-a-poos possessed that part ly- |

ing south of a line running west from a point on the Missouri River,
near where Belmont was laid out.  Novth of this line, the Sacs held a
reserve of fifty sections. Their northern boundary run through the
section north of Highland, and extended west for quantity. North of
this, the lowas owned all of what is now Doniphan County.

These respective tribes possessed and controlled this land ustil the
yonr 1854, when, by treaty, all the lands belonging to thesa tribes, in
Doniphan  County, were relinquished to the Government, and became
a part of the State of Kansas. The Kickapoos moved south. The
Towas and Sacs moved to that part of their own reserves which lies
near the mouth of the Nemaha River, where they still remain (1882).

The lowas, ot the time of their taking possession of thig land, in
1837, numbered over 800 souls.  On leaving this part of their lands,
in 1854, they numbered about 300,

The Sacs, on coming in, numbered 800 ; on removal, in 1854,
numbered only about 125.

The Towas, in 1837, were led and governed by four chiefs, ve-
apectively Whire (Oloud, No-Heart, Walking-in-the-rain and Walking
Cloud. These chiefs all passed away during their sajourn in this part
of the land.

The Sac band was under the lead of a brave called Hesoquat or
Bear-in-the-fork-of a-tree, assisted by two so-called chiefs, all of whom
have since disappeared.

The lending spivit and mind of the Kick-a-poos was Ken-e-kuk,
who died near the village in Atchison County which bears his name.

EARLY EXPLORERS.

Thirty years ngo. thers was searcely a vestige of civilization in
that part of Kansas now known as Doniphan County. For untold
ages it had been covered with o waving sen of wild grasses ; vast herds

| of buffaloes had, for numberless years, wandered almost tnmolested

| across it. Tts solitude had been broken only by oceasional bands of

nomadic sayages in search of prey or plunder. It was a part of that
section of country which old geographers had christened the ** Great
American Desert,”” =*a barren waste, inenpable of agricultural produc-
tion, and nninhabitable,"  But it could not always remain a torra in-
cognita.  The advancing wave of that great tide of eivilization which
hail erossed the Atlantic, and transferred n wilderness into an empive,
must at length reach this part of the American continent. That part
of Kansas now known as Doniphan County was ersssed by Maj.
Stephen IL. Tong in 1810 or 1820, We extract the following from
# book entitled, ** Acconnt of an Expedition from Pittsburgh to the
Rocky Mountains; performed in the years 1519 and 1820, by order of
John 0. Calhonn, Seerctary of War, undér the command of Maj.
Stephen H. Long:"

**The country southwest of the Missouri, between the Konzas and
the Platte, is drained principally by Wolf River and the great Nema-
haw. These rivers, like the Nodoway and Nishnebottona. whieh enter
the Missouri nearly opposite them, from the northesst, rise in the

the Missouri. As they descend, their valleys become gradually wider,
embosom a fow trees, and at length, near their entrance into the Mis-
souri Valley, are forests of considerable extent.  The surface of these
prairies presents o constant succession of small rounded hills, becom-
ing larger and more abrupt as you approuch the beds of the rivers
The soil is deep, reposing usually on horizontal beds of argilluceous
sandstone and secondary limestone. ¥ » . . The
soil superimposed upon these strata of limestone is a ealeareous loam,
Near the rivers it is intermixed with sand ; this is also the case with
the soil of the high prairies about the Konzas village. *  * '
The prairies, for many miles on each side, produce abundanee of good
pasturage ; but as fur ag our observation las extended, the best soil is
a margin from ten to twelve miles in breadth along the western bank of
| the river, In the summer; very little water is to be found in the
proiries, all the smaller streams failing,  Even thongh the season be
not nnusually dry, on aceount of the want of wood and water, the
settlements will be for a long time confined to the immediate valleys of
the Missouri, the Konzas and the lavger rivers; but it is probable
foreats will hereafter be cultivated in these vast woodless regions, which
now form go great u proportion of the country: and wells may be
made to supply the deficiency of running water.”

In 1804—-5-6, Lewis and Clarke progeeded up the Missouri, thence
across the Rocky Mountaing and down the River Columbis to. the
Pacifie Ocean.

GEOGRAPHICAL AND TOPOGRARHICAL.

Doniphan isin the first tier of connties south of Nehraska, and west
of the Missouri River. It is bounded on the north and cast by the
Missouri River, on the south by Atchison County, and on the west by
Brown County. 'The Migsouri River, bounding the county on the
north and east, gives the county 92 miles of river front. The great-
et length of the county novth and south is 27 miles, and its greatest
width is 25 miles.

The county containg 379 square miles, or 242,564 acres of land.
About 110,000 aeves sre under cultivation. The bottom lands are

prairies at an elevation of probably forty or fifty foet above the level of

-
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about 25 per cont: the uplands about T35 per cent; forest ([‘?nv:'rrl-
ment survey), 16 per cent; praivie, 84 per cont: average width of
hottoms, one mile. -

The general surfuce of the connty is undulating. A wri ter in the
Novth American Beview gives the following admirable deseription of
the matchless topography of Kangag in general, but applicable in every
sense to this county :

“The most perfect display of the prairies is fnun.d in the Eastern
parts of Kunsas and Nebraska, Tt is no exaggeration to pronounce
this region, as left by the hand of Nature, the most beautiful country
in its lundseape upon the face of the earth. Here the forest iy re-
stricted to narrow fringes along the rivers and streims, the courses of
which are thus defined as far as the eye can reach, whilst all between
is o brond expanse of meadow lands, earpeted with the richest verdure
and wearing the appearance of artistically graded lawns. They are
familinrly called the rolling prairies, because the Innd rises and fills in
gentle. swells, which attain an elevation of thirty feet, more or less,
and descends again to within the original level within a distance of one or
more miles.  The erest-lines of these motionless waves of land fnterseot
each other atevery conceivable angle, the effect of which is to bring
into view the most extended landscape, and to show the dark groen
folinge of the forest trees skirting streanis in pleasing contrast with
the light green of the prairie grasses. In their spring covering of
vegetation, these prairics wear the semblance of an old and onee highly
cultivated country, from the soil of which every inequality of surfuce,
every stone and every bosh has been earefully removed, and the sur-

fge ralled down to absolute uniformity. The murvel s suggested how

ure coulil have kept these verdunt fields in such luxuriance after
man had apparently abandoned them to waste,”

The principal streams are as follows:  Wolf River runs north,
entering through the north and wast portions of the county. Inde-
pendence Creek and its tributaries dein the southern portion of the
county, and Peter’s Creek is the largest in the custern part. Other
small ereeks flow into the Missouri River,

The county is well supplied with springs, and good well-water san
be reached at from ten to sixty feet.

- The timber supply of Doniphan is better. perhaps, than that of sny
county in the State.  All the streams have borders or belts of timber,
varying from forty rods to three milesin width, These streams ure so
well distributed over the county that the distriburion of timber could

hardly be better equulized. The native varieties are cottonwond ;
‘white, b_hg‘s, red, swamp and buer oak 3 white and water elm, linden,
sycamore, willow, maple, black walnut, box-elder, hickory aud numer- I

ous smaller varietios,
ORGANIZATION,

Doniphan Connty was organized on n\l%ﬁ;‘ I:néépkamhnr 15, 1855,
The County Court consisted at that time of J. P. Blair, A. Dunning,
E. V. B. Rogers, County Commissioners: O, B. Whitehead, Sheriff;
and J. A. Van Arsdale, Olark pro tem. .2

The first order made by the board, dated September 15, 1855, wis
that J. A. Van Arsdule be appointed Clerk pro tem., to serve as such
until a Clerk be duly appointed and qualified.

The following is tho onth of office of one of the first Sheriffs ;

Usiren Sraris o AnEnics, |
Tornironr or Kaxsas, |

L 0. B, Whitehoal, do solemnly swour upan the Holy Evangelists of Almighty
(_hrl. that T will support wnd susiain the eonstitution of the Unjied Stales ; wod that 1
Will support nud sustuin the provisions of an wer entitled wn not 4o arganize the Tarri-
torles of Knosus anid Rebraskn, and the provisions of the Taw of the Unjted Sinles,
Wulmlrjul_: known an the Fugitive Slave Law, nnd faithifully and impartially, nnd 1o
the Kte'lt of my wbility, dempan mysell in the discharge of my dutien in the office of
Sheriff in the l.‘uul_l!._'r of Doniphnn, in said Tarritory. 8p higlp me God.

C. B. Winrenean,

Sworn ta nad subsoribed before the undersigael, this 29, Ay of Seplomber

A, D 18566, [ a3 Jore B Buaw, Sudge Probate Qort, C. C. K. T 3

On Monday, September 17, 1855, the connty of Doniphun was
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divided into five municipial townships, ealled Towa, Wolf River. Bure
Oak, Washington and Wayne.

In 1856, the county was re-organized into seven townships: lowa,
Wolf River, Burr Oak, Washington, Wayne, Center and Marion.
Union Township was organized in 1870, making eight towuships in
the county ut the present time.

Name—The county, when organized, was named Doniphan in
honor of Col. A. W. Doniphan, of Clay County, Mo., who eom-
munded o regiment of Missouri eavalry during the Mexican war.
Marching across the plaing, he took a leading part in the conquest of
New Mexico. FHe was a zealous partisan in the agitation which grose
| in the opening of Kansas Territory to settlement. The county seat
was. first establishedd at o point ealled Whitehead. on the Missouri
River, about six miles from St. Joseph. The name of the town \yas
afterward cllunge:i to Bellemont.

Troy was selectod ns the county seat of justice in the fall of 1855,
but the court house wos not built until the summer of 1836, The
first meeting of the County Commissioners it Troy was October 20,
1856.  They met in the new court house, which still stands where
it was built, on the north side of the public square, and 14 the first
story of what is now known as the Higby House,

PIONEER LIFE.

Pioneer life, in all time, has been charsotorized by incidents pueul-
inv cither to the locality or the mike-up of the pioneers themselves.
Western pionger life lias boen subjeated to eonditions common to the
experionoe of all.  The primary elemesnt in the camposition of those
who have battled sucesssfully with the privations and hardships inoi-
dent to settlements on the frontier, without companions, save their
 hiousehold gods,” the inhabitants of the prairie or forest in haman or
amimal form, away from the sshoes of civiliaation, depending fir pro-
tection fram savage or border ruffian, and for the means of subsistence,
upon: his own right arm, inurad to torl, was plack.” backed by o de-

| liberate purpose to succeed. Thus endowed. the pionoer, having firsy

| determined whero his home should bo, proceads to the erection of his
enbin after the proseribod model. Descriptively, it was composad of
| round logs, with & door eat out on one side large enough to permit in-
gress and egress; with a small section cut from an upper anid o lower
| of two adjacent logs for a window, on another side. Saveral logs wore
entirely ent away for u fireplace. The esbin was covered with clap-
| boards kept down by weight-poles, lcept apart by the refuse of clapbonrd
lnmber.

The furniture was all unique and pecalinr.  Blocks of wood or
benches, instead of chairs, the rable being sometimes the **famil v chest.”’
The cabin being completed and furnished, “ breaking praivie”* was the
next thing in ordur; then preparing the ground for the fest crop of
wheat or corn.  Before this firss crop matared, supplies were necessarily
drawn from other availuble souroes which could be found at the trading-
posts and stores nlong the Missonri River,

At that time; the prairies aboundéd with various kinds of game.
| Herds of buffaloes, elk, antelope and other gome were fraquently seen
as late a5 1853.  Sinee then, Bastern' lunters have made sadl havoe
with these animals, and very few of them can now be found in the State
of Kansas.
The firat settlement in Doniphan County was made in 1837, by
| the Rev. 8. M. Invin, at the « Mission," about two miles east of the
present town site of Highland. We give below the names of the
oldest or fivst settlors, as far as they cun be nseertained :
From 1847 to 1854, J. R. Whitehead, Pater Cadue, % Hays,
Benj. Harding, W. D. Rippy, J. F., W. H. and [ Forman, J. W.
Pemberton, Joe Utt, and others. In 1854, 8, Anderson, H. N,
| Beauchamp, W. I H. Curtis, R, P. Curtis, G. Gerardy, W. M.
Hamner, J. H. Hurper, J. Harding, N. Lancaster. O, Poirier, A. F.
Payne, 1. Randolph, W. K. Shaw, W. G. Tate, R. M. Willinms, B.
| 8. Wharton, und others. In 1855, W. H. Buyless, W. H. Deckard,
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8. D, M. and W. R. Gilmore, A. H. Groniger, M. J. Larson, 1.
Lee, D. Landis, A. J. Minier, J. MeNemee, D). Miller, (+. B. Nuzum,
J. R. Pierson, P, Plank, L. D. Stocking, X. K. Stout, L. Rullman,
R, Tracy, J. F. Wilson, W. T. Wood. In 1856, A, Bennett, E.
Uolling, N T. Collins, W. Chapple, J. H. Earhark, W. . Forbes, P.
Groh, J. . Henpson, W, Hill, €. Jackson, P. E,. Iles, A. Kent, J.
Kent, J. Leigh, 8. B. Marcum, R. €. Mailer; J. F. Mauck, E.
Moetinger. J. H. Martin, . Swinney, A. R. Renfro, F. Sinker, J. L.
Tallman, H. €. Nykert.

During the years 1857 and 1858, the county settled up very
rapidly.

SQUATTERS' SOVERBIGN ASSOCIATION,

We are indebted to Benj. Harding, one of the oldest residents in |

the county, for the following sketch of the *Squatters Sovercign
Assosiation,' an organization that was formed at an early date for
piirposes hereafter deseribed.  In the article our readers will find the
nemes of many of the old settlers win were promitent in the early
history of the connty. It is hardly necessary to state that the article
is published only ag o matter of history :

*Immediately after the treaty with the Kickapoos, in 1854,
meeting of the squatters was eallod, and held at J. R. Whitehend's,
June 24, and organized a Squatters’ Sovereign Association. A. M.
Mitchell, of St. Joe, was Chairman, and J, R. Whitchead, Secretary.
An executive committee was appointed, consisting of John I, White.
head, H- Smallwood, J. B. O'Toole, J. W. Smith, Sr., Sam. Mont-
gomiery, B. Harding, J. W. Smith. Jr., J. J. Keaton, T. 'W.
Waterson, ©. B. Whitehead, Anderson Cox and Joseph Siciliff.

“A committes on resolutions, eonsisting of W. Brandus Thompson,
C. B. Whiteheud, B. Wharton, J. R. Custine, reported the following,
which was adopted as the basis of the organization :

* Whereas, we, citizens of Kansas Territory, intending to fix our
homes on its fortile soil, have this day met at Whitehead for the pur-
pose of taking measures to secure safety, certainty and fairness in the
location and preservation of our elaims.

“Therefore be ot Resoloed: 1, That we are in favor of bona fide
Sqnatter Sovereignty, and acknowledge the right of any eitizen of the
United States to make a elim in Kansas TPerritory; with the ultimate
view of oceupying it.

2. That snch claims, when made, should be held inviolate so long
as a bona fide intention of oceapying it is apparvent, and for the pur-
pose of proteeting and defending snch claims, we agree to act in con-
cert if' necessury, to expel intruders.

3. That any person of lawful age, or who may be the head of a
family, who shall mark out his elaim of 160 nores, so that it may be
apparent how the claim lies, shall be deemed to have made a proper
claim.

. That any person marking ot his claim shall be deemed to
have forfeited it unless he commences his cabin or pitches his tent
within thirty days thereafter, uuless the same shall be on such land ng
proliibited by military or Indian reservations.

“5. That all persons now holding elaims shall huve thirty days
from this day in which to make the improvements contemplated by the
foregoing resolutions.

6. That no person shall be protected by the Squatter Association
who holds in his own right more than one claim.

“7. That any person building his cabin, or tent, within less than a
halfmile of another shall be deemed an intruder.

8. That u eitizen of the Territory be appointed register of claims,
who shall keep o book in which he shall note the name and deseription
of all squatters and their claims, for which he shall be allowed the
sum of 5 cents for cach claim, to be paid by the claimant.

8. That a bona fide purchase, of a claim located and registered
be recognized as entitled to the sume under the laws of this associa-
tion, provided his intention be to beeome o citizen of the Territory.
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| 10, That we will afford protection to no Abalitionist as a settler
of Kansas Territory.

“11. That we recognize the institution of Slavery ss already
existing in the Territory, and recommend to slave-holders to intraduse
their property as soon as practicuble.

#12. That a vigilance committeo be appointed by the chair, con-
sisting of thirteen members of this association, whose duty it shall be
to inquive intoall disputes in relation to elaims, and to the execution of
their judgment in regard to rightful claimants, they shall have power
to call together the entire Squatter Association.

18, That all persons who wish to become members of the Squat-
ter Association shall subscribe to the foregoing preamble and reso-
lutions,

THE PEOPLE OF DONIPHAN COUNTY.

It has heen said T.hnf."l.}.le-"paoplu of Kansas are more thoroughly
cosmopolitan in their make-up than those of any other country in the
world.  Doniphan County does not constitate an exception to this rule.
The preponderating elument in her population were born in the Eastern
and Southern States. They left, it may be, better social and educa-
tional advantages for the rich soil, the splendid native pasturage,
cheaper lands and the superior climate of Kansas. They were mainly
from Western Pennsylvania, Southern Ohio and Indiana; with a fow
from nearly all the Western States, from Kentucky and Tennessee,
and some from New England and New York. Next is the German
clement, then natives of the British Isles, followed by people from al-
most every power and principality on the continent. The British
American provinees are also represented.

The people generally are noted for their industry, thrift, intelli-
gence and morality.

‘Gﬂﬂ\’?’l’ﬂ IN POPULATION,

In. 1860, the population of Doniphan County was 8,083, In
1870, the United States census gave Doniphan County 13,969,

1878, it was 15,122, and in 1880, 14,258,

The ineresse in population between the years 1860 and 1870 was
5,886 between 1870 and 1875, the decrease was 26: between 1875
and 1876, the decrense was 1,112 between 1876 and 1878, the in-
crease was 2,201, and botween 1878 and 1880, the decrease was 884,

Beginuing with 1860, the increase in ten years was 5,836, in
fifteen years, 5,860 in sixtoen years, 4,748 ; in eighteen years, 7,042,
and in twenty years, 6,175.

POPULATION OF DONIPHAN COUNTY BY TOWNSHIPS, INCLUDING OITIES
AND VILLAGES, 1N 1B78.

Tawnalips xod Citim, Population,
(o e e e ; LAY
Towa 4T
Wolt River. 2 8,018
Waahington.... ireytbisssisins 8
Wayne 2010
1111y ol P e e P 1 e A A A R 1,166
| - Marion T EIGdS AN meRy Sy AvE A vETam R T T 780
| Center,
Town ccuseniinie
Walf River.,

Waslington,

7105 Highland City, 441; Severance, 375; Doniphan, 518 ; Elwood,
a2, .

The following ure the names of the town sites located in Doniphan
County, from its earliest settlement to the present time:

In 1875, the population was 15,943 in 1876, it was 12,831 ; in :
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Rivers, contravy to the rules of the Department at Washington and
luws of Congress, but died at the mission during the summer. Trading
posts established at Bellemont, Wathena and Elwood,

1853 —Chiefs of the Towa and Sae tribes go to Washington, to
muke a treaty with the Government in regard to their lands.  Trading
post established at Doniphan.  The fortieth parallel between Kansas
tnd Nebraska was established by Capt. Thomas J. Lee, of the Topo-
graphical Engineer Corps, United States Army. J. P. Johnson estab-
lished the initinl point on the west bank of the Missouri, and ran
the line one hundred miles west. Daniel Vanderslice established the
houndary lines of the Iowa and the Sne and Fox Reservations.

May 10, 1854—A treaty was signed by the President, by which
the Indians relinquished their right to the lands in Doniphan County,
June 24—First meeting of Squatters’ Association, at Whitehead ;
Kansus Territory organized. November 24—First election for Dele-
gave to Congress held at residence of B. Harding, Wathena.

1855—Immigration of whites into the Torritory, and aboriginal
history ends, March 30, 1855—ZElection of members to the Terri-

‘torinl Legislature: Messrs. Richardson, Blair and Dunning. Sep-

tember 17, 1855—Organization of ecounty: county divided into five
municipal townships. Troy was made county seat. :

First meeting of the County Commissioners at Whitehead, Oc-
tober, 1855. Election held for Delegates to United States Congress.
People voted for Liquor License, October 17, 1855. County Com-
missioners met and began the location of a territorial road from St
Joseph to Marysville, on the Blue River, December 17, 1855. Speci-
fications for econrt house and jail at Troy adopted, and sealed proposals
asked for bids to be opened January 21, 1856, Court house to be
finished by third Monday in April, and jail, thied Monday in June.

Jununry 21, 1856.—Plans modified for conrt house.  April 22,
1854, —Contract modified to 81,650, to be completed September, 1856,
B. 0. Driseol, contrastor.  May 17, 1856, School Districts No. 1,
2 3and 4 legally orianizad in Township 3, Rmge 22, July 22,
1856, specifieations for jail approved and adopted by County Commis-
sioners.  October 1, 1856, first election held av Troy for election of
members to Legislative Assembly of the Territory. October 20,
1856, first meeting of County Commissioners, at Troy,

January 8, 1857 —EBlection for delegates to form n constitution for
the Stite of Kansus. United States land office located at Doniphan.
Junuary 18, thermometer 25° below zero. June 15, election of delegates
to the Lecompton Constitutional Convention. July 21, County Board
order a well dug in front of court house.  July 4, land sales held at
White Cloud. November, the Hizhland Preshytery appointed nine
trustees to tike chatge of the University. 1857-58, the Highland
University received a charter from the Territorinl Legislature.

1838.—Towa Point at the height of its prosperity, A steam ferry
built. Past office established at Highland fall of 1858, First sorghum
manafictured in the county. December 29, an Order of Free Masons
established at Doniphan. Winter of 1858-50, Blwood Advertiser
changed its nume to the Elwood Free Press.

Junuary, 1859.—The Hightandey established at Highland. The
New York Tribune contains u sketch of Elwooid. June 21, changes made
in the houndaries of Washington, Centre, Burr Ouk, Marion, lowa,
Wayne and Wolf River Townships. July, people vote on the Wayan-
iotte Constitution.
for Territorial Delegate to Congress.

1860.—The Roseport & Palmetto Railraad, the first railroad in
the State, build four miles of road, from St. Joseph to Wuthena, June,
population of Doniphan County, §,088. A steam grist-mill is built at
Genry City. Fall of 1860, Proy Digpateh established. December 18,
an article appears in the New York Daily Times, giving a sketch of
Elwood.

January 26, 1861, —Kansas becomes a State. Maurch 26.—Meet-
ing of the first State Legislature, T, A, Osborn and H. N. SL‘a}ft‘r
are elected to the Senate; F. W. Emery, T. P. Herriek, W. €. Kim-

Decline of Bellemont. November 8, people vote |

ber and A. Low are elected Representatives from this county. July,
Company A, Seventh Kansas Cavalry, is organized at Highland, Post
office is established at Normanville. Doniphan commences to decline.
A company of militin is stationed at lowa Point.

April, 1862.—The Doniphan County Patriot is established ag
Tray. St Benedict’s Chureh is ovganized in Union Township. A
disastrons fire ocenrs at fown Point, destroying the bosiness portion of
the place.

March 3, 1868.—All persons subject to military duty are
notified.

February, 1864 —The Investigator is established at Troy. A
grist-mill built at Palermo. October, 1865, Congregational Church at
Highwood organized.

1865.—Troy Heporter established.

October, 1866.—The post office at Wathena made a money order
office. :

April, 186T.—Wathena Reporter is established nt Wathena. De-
struction of the steam fevry at White Clond. Spring, 1867, court
house at Troy is destroyed by fire.  November 5, vote of Doniphan
County on the various propositions to amend the Constitution of the
State: For striking out the word * white,” 338 agninst 1,425; for
striking out the word “male,” 358 against 1.300; for restricting the
elactive franchise, 576 against 1,120,  Missouri River overflows its
banks. :
January 27, 1868,.— A society of Freemasons organized at
Wathena. The Roseport & Palmetto Railrond chunges its name to
the St. Joseph & Denver City Railvond. March—116 names
entolled on the register at Highland University, Present court house
completed.  November—Presidential election; Doniphan County
onsts 1,573 Republican and 721 Democratic votes.

February 26, 1860.—A society of Odd Fellows is organized in
Wathenn. East Norway laid off.  Severance located.

1870.—Post offices established at Highland Station and Fanning.
June—United States census; population of Doniphan  County,
18,069, St Joseph & Elwood Railroad built,

January 27, 1871 —A society of Odd Fellows orgunized at
Higlhland. May—The Demoerat established at Doniphan. Feb-
runry—Work commences on the Missouri River bridge at Elwood.

January 81, 1872.—The eaisson for Pier No. 5, for the St. Joe
bridge placed in position. Gristmill buile at Fauning. July 17—
Money order office established at Highland. November—Presiden-
tial election; 1,777 Republican and 1,084 Democratic votes ave cast.

January 10, 1873.—The first span on the St. Joe and Elwood
bridge is placed into position. Post office established at Enast Norwuy.
May—First locomotive orosses the bridge nt Elwood. Jume 15—
Town site of Leona is surveyed.  Aungust—The Leader is established
at White Cloud.

1874.—Depot built at Severance.

1875.—Population of Doniphan County, 18,843 population of
Wayne Township, 2,060, Colored Baptist Church organized at White
Clond. :

1876.—Populution of county, 12,831, November—Presiden-
tial election, Doniphan County cast 1,644 Republican and 1,032
Democratic votes.

1877.—5.6560 school children in the county. May—The
Bulletin is established at Troy. September 17—A society of Odd

| Fellows organized at Severance. Severance incorporated.

1878 —Papulation of Doniphan County, 15,122, Tron on the

| 8t Joseph & Topeka Railroad taken up. July 10—Union Town-

ship is organized.* June—Highland Sentinal established.
October, 1879.—School building erected at Leona. October—
Doniphan County Horticultural Society organized.
1880.—Baptist Church organized at Leons.  July 16—A society
of Knights of Honor organized at White Cloud. November—Presi-
dential election; 2,067 Republican and 1,143 Democratic votes cast

T B B T
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for Presidential eloctors: 2,150 votes were cast against and 821 for the
Constitutional Amendment prohibiting the sale and manufacture of
intoxicating liquors.  United States census; pnpu]:nion, 14.258. :
July, 1881.—A society of Knights of Honor organized in High-
land. Summer Irish Land Lengue organized at Troy,
1882 —Publication of Doniphan County Historical Plat Book.

RATLROADS:

Doniphan County can boast of having the first railroad eon-
straoted in Kansas.  The Roseport & Palmetto was built from the
Missouri River to Wathena, o distance of four miles, and in 1860 trains
were run over the road, but, owing to causes avising ont of the late
civil wat, the work was extended nio further, und the engine and cars
wore removed across the river,  In 1868, under the name of the St.
Joseph & Denver City, this rand was extended to Troy, and regular
trains ran, and daring 1860 the same road was extended west beyond
the limits of the eonnty.  The road is now operated under the name

of the St. Joseph & Western, the principal stations in the county |

being Elwond, Wathena, Troy. East Norway, Severance and Leona.
Number of miles in the county. twenty nine.

The Atehison  Nebraske enters the county at its southeastern
extremity and leaves at the northwestern corner. It was built in
1871, its prineipal stations being Doniphan, Brenner, Troy, Fan-
ning, Mighland Station, Tows Point and White Clond; number of
miles in the connty st present, thirty-one and a quarter. “This rond
is now leased and operated by the Chieago. Burlington & Missonri
River in Nehvaska,

St. Joseph & Topela Railvond Compuny was organized in
1869, In 1870, the Board of Connty Commissioners gave the Com-
pany $200,000 of 8t. Joe & D 0. atock, provided they would have
the rond completed from Wathena tn Doniphan. inside of one year.
According to said condition, the rond waa completed and vegular trains
run from St. Joe to Topeka, nsing St. Joe & D. . track to Wathena,
snd A, & N. track to Atchison, and A, T, & 8. F. from Atchison
to Topeka. The rond was operated but about two years. After vari-
ous legal proceedings, the rolling stock and road were sold and the
iron removed in 1878, ;

HIGHLAND UNIVERSITY.

Hightand University is situated at Highland, which is in the
northwestern part of the county, four miles enst of the western bound-
ary, and about six miles south of the Missouri River on the north. Tt
is in Section 22, Range 19, Tt is an outgrowth of the Towa and Sac
Mission, commeneed by the Rev. 8. M. Trvin, under direction of the
Pmu"laytarisn-'nnard of Foreign Missions, on this ground, in the year
1837,

In 1858, & chartor was obtained from the Territorial Legislature
under the title of Highland University, and several years afterward
the cave of ihe Institute was transferred from the Preshytery, who
first held it, to the Synod of Kanans, whose property it now is. At
present its Trustees represent the Synors of Kansas, Nebrasks, Sonth-
ern Towa and Missouri, contiguons to which Synods the University is
located. | The idea of higher education must have been 'in the minds
of these who Taid out the town of Highland, for in the first lithograph-
ic map of the town, printed in 1858, we find it distinctly stated, * I
tended as a soat of Tearning." | The idea of its founders and patrons
is tomake it an institution worthy of the grand field and mission as-
signed to it.

4 Its graduates are quite numerons, and many of them are filling
importnt places.  There has been no break or suspension of its work
from the first.  During the weary and critieal years of the rebellion,
when so muny institutions had to suspend, and many of them not to
regover, not a school day has been lost. Some progress hns been
made in the way of endowment, but merely o beginning. It is pro-
posed to earry it forward until the institute is fully endowed. An
cfficient agency is now at work in this direction.
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A department for the education of Indian youth hns been inaug-
urated, and some valushle gifts secured, and hopeful plans for the
future adopted,

It is yet too soon to indulge much in conjecture as- to the future
of this hopeful institution, but, judging its history and experience; as
well as from the demands of the fertile and inviting region surround-
ing it, we muy well hope there is hefore it a bright and happy future.

RELIGIOUS ORGANIZATIONS.

Doniphan County has at present thivty-four church organizations,

as follows: Tleven Methodist Episcopal, five Baptist, two Proshyterian,
seven Catholie, three Coloved Baptist, three German Methodist, two
Oongregational and one German Reformed. The following arve the
Churches that have houses of worship in the county: The Methodist
Episcopal, ten; Baptist, two; Presbyterian, one: Catholie, seven
German Methodist, three; Congregational, two; Coloved Baptist, one;

| and German Reformed, one.

Prestyterian Chwrol ot Highland was ovganizel as o mission
church in 1842, with seven members. Meetings were held in the
University Chapel.  Present membership, eighty-seven.

Preshytevian Chureh at Troy was organized in 1865-66 by the
Rev. Sheldon, with fifteen members. A church edifice was erceted at
the same time, nt a cost of about $2.000.  The following pnstors have
had chavge of the organization, in the order mentioned, up to the
present time: Revs. Sheldon, Chapman, A. H. Lilly, Sheldon and
Thompson. Present membership, about forty-five,

Presbyterian Churches at Iowa Point, Wathena and Doniphan
were organized early in the history of the county, hut are now dropped
from the roll of churches, the members having moved to other plices.

Methodist Episcopel Churek at Smithton.—We are indebted to
the Rev. B. F. Bowman, of Wathenn, for the following historieal
sketches of the Methodist Episcopal Church in Doniphan County,
Kansas:

The first organization of the M. E. Chureh in this connty was
formed August 1, 1855, at Smithton, by Rev. Hiram Bureh, pastor
in charge, and Rev. Wm. . Good, Presiding Elder, with the follow-
ing-named members:  Henry Wilson (Class-Loader), Elizabeth Wil-
son, Joseph Wilson, Wm. 0. Wilson, Shared Lawhorn, Mavy Lawhorn,
James Tawhorn, Barbery Lawhorn, John D. Lawhorn, Melinds Law-
horn, Emeline Lawhorn, Shared Lawhorn, Jr., Mary A. Harper, Eliz-
abeth J. Bowman, Mary A. Smith, Elizabeth Brock, James Lovell,
Martha J. Fletcher, Soba Lovel, James Hibburd, Nuney Lahorn. Wm.
I Lovel, Clarinda Lovel, Mary J. Lovel and David F. Mouston.
The organization was soon afterward remoyved to Columbus. Rev.
Amos P. Young, a loeal minister from New York, and Rey. L. B.
Dennis, Presiding Elder, preached to them during the following con-
farence year; several persons joined the organization, sl at the close
of the year their membarship was inereased to thirty-eight. Daring the
winter of 1856, Rev. Ira Blackford gerved them. At that time, they
built n chiech and parsonnge, and by so doing incureed a heavy debt.
There being no church extension speiety in thosa days, they wers
obliged to sell the parsonage to pay the church debt.  Mrs.
Blackford condugted a Sunday sehool while there.  The chureh con-
tinued to prosper nntil the war of the rebellion broke out, when a num-
ber of the members enlisted in the army. With this, decline com-
meneed and continued, until at the present time there are only a fow
members in the church, and they nve without & regular minister. In
fact, there ave no vegular services in the English lanzuage, by any
denomination, in Burr Oak Township.

Mothodist Bpiscopal Chureh near. Palerme.—Some time during
the year 1855, there was an organization of the Methodist Episcopal
Chureh, in the vieinity of Palermo,with the following named members :
Jolin J. Anderson (Class-Leader), Naney J. Anderson, John Hays,
BElizabeth Hays, Mary A. Wakoman and Jane Beazelton. They wor-
shiped in private houses until a schoolhouse was built, where their
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services were conducted regalarly until about 1870, since which time |

religitus services have heen discontinued.

Methodist Episcopal Chureh at Doniphan.—On May 10, 1857,
the Methodist Episcopal Church was organized in the city of Doni-
phan, by Rev. B. F, Bowman, with five members, viz., Jumes W,
Snow, Class Leader; Rebecea, Snow, Joseph MeCrum, Malissa Me-
Crom and Mannnh MeCrum. At the samoe time o Sunvlay school was
organized, nud inoabuat fve minutes 321 were raised with which w
purclinse books, ete,

One gentloman, who gave §5, in getting his pocket-book from an
inside pocket, exhibited the muzzle of a navy revolver—a six-shooter.
Suth wenpons were common in our congregations during those exeit-
ing dauys, but we never saw better hehayior in any churel than we had
at that time.  Regular services have been held in the shurch at Doni-
phan from that time until the present.

I 1866, ander the labors of Rev. G. R. Houts, a neat frame church
edifice, 26x40 feet, wos built. They also have a parsonage, oceupied
at present by Rov. F. F. Otto, their pastor. -

Methodist Episcapal Churoh at Geary City.—Early in the spring
of 1847, Rev. James Shaw preached in Geary City, and from May 10,
vogular gorviees were held there by Rev. B, F. Bowman antil the
next confercuee.

An crganization was formed there that year with but few mem-
Bers, among whom were James Foster, wife and daughter.

Methodism has had o hard struggle for existence here, but they
huve s swmoll church edifice which was built in 1869, Rev. F. F.
Otto being their present pastor,

Oakland M. K. Chureh i located in the northwest part of
Wayne Township, The first M. E. Church organization in this part of
the county was formed in the spring of 1858 by Rev. T. MeK. Mun-
hall, und called Independence. The following-named persons were
the first tnombers:  Rov. Abrubam Bennett, Rachel Bennett, Celinda
Bennett, Francis A. Baker, Caroline Shaw, Diantha Edgerton, Jacoh
Swmith, Rachel Smith, Moriah Smith, William Smith and Matilda Adaws,
At first they worshiped in a yacant house on the place then owned
by George Buek, which was used for & chureh and sehoalhouse,
They ulso conducted o very interesting Sunduy seliool at that time.
After the Praivie Grove Schoolhonse was built, services were held
there wwhile, afterward in Pleasunt Ridge Schoolhouse. In 1879,
this organization united with o small socioty at Oakland, and in 1880
the Oukland Church was built, w frame building 28x40 feet. At
the present time, it is one of the best churehes of ita size in the county.

Mothodist Episcopal Chwreh at Wathene.—The frst arganiza-
tion of the Methodist Episcopal Church at Wathena was formed by
Rev. T. MeIX. Munhall, in the summer of 1858. Rev. D. H. May
was appointed to serve them, but by his own request Was ransferred
to 'the Missouri Conference. Rev. — Bluke, of Tows, served them
with partisl success, In 1860, 0. B. Garduer was appointed to preach

— T —

HISTORY OF DONIPHAN COUNTY. KANSAS. 25

grown weaker and they were burdened with debt, During the pust
year, by the efforts of Rev, F. M. Pickles, the debt hus been provided
for, and the church building partly repaired. At the present time,
they are favored with the services of J. Biddison. They have about
twenty members.  The Sabbath sclivol hos lntely been re-organized,
and with their deby paid it is hoped that the chureh will goon be more
prosperous. :

Mdedyn Proivie Mothedist ..E..:uim.'ﬂpe:f huereh 4 lownted in Union
Township, three and one-hall’ miles southwest of Severance. In the
winter of 1868~6, Rev, H. bennett preached there for the first time.
May 24, 1869, Rev. G. W. Wood preached from lexxvii Psalm, 5th
verse.  In his sermon he used the words, ©* When God comes to make
up his people, may it be said *this and that man was born there
Thus far this church has heen one of the most prosperous churches in
the eounty. Tt was organized June 12; 1869, by Rev. B. F. Bow-
man, with the following membership, namely : Geo, Hinchsliff, Oluss
Lender; Aun Hinchsliff, Wm. D, Hinchsliff, J. I TLaney, Mary
Denton, John Riley, Ellen Riloy, John N. Knoblaugh, Eliza Knob-
langh, Wm. D. Rippey, €. A. Rippey, Jolin Miller, Mary J. Miller,
Moriah Streeter and Frances Straster.  The Bllawing Chriztmas,
ahaut o dozen persons professed religion and joined the church. It
continued to prosper, and about fifty members were added to their mem-
bership during the conference year.  In the spring of 1871, they pur-
ehased the old Methodist Episcopal Church in Atchison; shipped it

| to Severnnce, and by adding some new materinl they were soon in pos-

to them, but met with & cool reception, This was at the time of the | as 1
| continued, and there were no regular services by that denomination

great political excitement which preceded the war, and the church
entered nrdently into the contest, which fact accounts for the manner
in which he was received. But Brother Gurdner was not casily dis-
aouraged, snd by perseverance he succeeded nobly. Heserved them
fuithfully two years, and when he loft was beloved by nearly every
ome.  Duriug his second year, he lived at Elwood. One morning he
diseovered a secession flag floating from  tree near Lis house, and on
the tree 0 notice that it would be death to the one whe should tear
down this flag; he quickly climbed the tree, tore it down and trampled
{t under his feet.

During the year 186G2-685, they were served by Rev. B. F. Bow-
man, In 1864-65, Rev. James Lawrenve wus their pastor, Wathena
having been connected with Troy ns o pustoral churge.  In 1866, Rev.
J. Paulson wae pastor, and during his service they erected s brick
ghureh building 40x60 fect, and well loeated. For a time the church

was well filled at every servies; but of late vears the soviety has

session of a good church building, which was dedicated in Angast by
Rev. W. H. Murshall, Presiding Elder, and Rev. H. D. Fisher, of
Atchison. They have been blessed with continued prosperity. and
numerically it is the strongest church in the county. They ulso have
a flourishing Sabbath school that was organized in 1869,

Methodist Eypizcopal Church at Highland.—There has been an
organization of the Methodist Episcopal Church in the vicinity of
Highland since March, 1857. Among the first members were Rev.
Dana Fox, s Loeal Dencon, the Seavers, Grahams, Bonesteelsand Doug-
tys, By the eourtesy of the Presbyterian Churely, they held services in
the chapel in 1865, In 1863, the lot where the church now stands was
purchused, some funds raised and some work done toward building the
church. At that time, the Congregationalists were erecting a church
building. It was thought best to loau their funds to the Congrega-
tional society, to complete their chureh, and ocoupy the building s part
of the time; accordingly it was done. In 1873, under the pastorate of
Rev. William Smith, the society erected a church. Although their
membership is not large, they have regular services. ‘They also have
an interesting Sunday school, with sixty seholars enrolled.

Muthodist Episcopal Chuvch in Troy.—Troy was first favored
with preuching by the Methodist denominstion, June 26, 1850, in the
old court house, Rev. B. F. Bowman discoursing from Romans,
chapter I, 15th verse, * So much a5 in me is, [ am ready to preach
the Gospel to you that are in Rome also.”” The appointment was not

until 15862, when Rev, Abraham Bennett, a local preacher, held serv-

| ices here. Rev, R. W. Lloyd was their pastor in 1863, followed by

J, Lawrence in 1864 and 1865 ; during his labors they were blessed with
a precions revival.  In 186G, D. P. Mitehel wus appointed to serve, but.
being transferred to the Leavenworth District, J. Paulson was placed
in charge of Troy. That vear, the society began to talk about build-
ing chureh edifice. Aftera hard struggle, in 1868 the present honse
of worship was completed. Rev. Paulson was suceeeded by Rey.
Thorborough for one year. Rev. Brown was appointed toserve, but did
not come, Rev. Shaw supplied hiz place; Rev. D. B. Campbell fol-
lowing for one year. Rev. J. Lawrence returneil to his former field of
lubor, was warmly grected by his old friends, He served to them
another two years, and was blessed with another revival ; forty or fifty
members were added to the chureh.  Afterward, Rev. Charles Shack-
leford served one year, followed by Rev. W. F. Mahan, for six months.




=

vl Presiding Elder of the Leavenworth Distriot.
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Rev, Leak filled the appointment and served one year, followed by
Rev. J. A. Amos for two years.  Afterward cnme Rev. MeDBride,
one year. The past year (I1881), through the efforts of Rev. .F' M,
Pickles, the chureh building has been ropaired, and it is now quite at-
tructive.  Rev. Mr. Biddison, an earnest worker, now fills the pulpit,
and bids fair to do-a good work.

Methodist Episcopal Churehi at White Clowd. —White ‘_.-:]IJIU.I up-
pears on the minutes, for the first time, in 1857, About this time, a
sotiety was orgamized there by Rev. A. L. Douney, their pastor, and
at the close of the year they report a membership of thirty. How
muny of these lived in White Cloud wa have no menns of ascertain-
ing. Rev. O Graham was next appointed pastor, e served E;r Lo
years,  In 1861, the chorch was left to be supplied, and Rev. Green,
of Ohio, served them aceeptably for o short time, when he roturned to
Ohio. 'R. L. D. Price. lately of Michigan. preached to: them until
1862, when he wis appointed 't the Leavenworth Didtrict.  Rey. O,
B. Gardner received the next appointment to White Clond, and served
with great success until 1868, when he was appointed chaplain in the
army, and Rev, G. T.. Willkams was appointed to close ont the year.
Rev. D. Dickison, M. D, served the charge for two years sfterward.
At conference, 1866, D. P. Mitcholl wis appointed to the Leavenworth
District, and Rev. B F. Bowman to White Cloud. Up to this time,
the society had worshiped in halls and sueh other builidings as conld
be secured for chut purpose.  They now use the seboolhouse, recently
builte  In Muy, 1566, the soeicty abtained o charter aetording to the
laws of the State, elected trustees and set themselves to work: to raiso
fands to build n church edifice.  After working alf® o day snd begin-
ning to foel discouraged. the pustor suceeeded in getting J. H. Utt to
liead the subsoription paper with $300. The bull being set in
motion, in o short time 1,500 was raised, ond the diy’s work closed
with promises of 82.700. The ludies ormnized o sewing soeioty to
assist in raising funds. and worked eurnestly until the building was
completed. It is u brick building, 38x52 fect, and the cost was esti-
tunted to be §4,000, but, the plans being ehanged, it was made two
stories anil cost $9,000. The busement iz stons and the andience
ronm is brick:  From vitisus causes, the contractor failed to inclose
the building, and with only ane gable up, the walls. stood during the
winter, and April 24, 1867, withstood the sliock of an earthynnke,
which was felt throughont the Missouri Vulley. That year the ehureh
was inclosed and services held in it.  Rev., P. M. Buek, of the North
Lndiuna Conforence, waa the first ministor who preached in the ey

chureh,  Ruv. 0. J. Lovejoy was pastor-in 1868, and, by his untiring
effurts, the hvuse was completed and furnished in the full of that year,

antd dedieated to thie worship of Almighty Gud, by Rev. A, B. Leon.

; Rev: II. Minear
is the present pastor,

Methodist Episcopal Ohurch on Busi Oreok.—This church s

logated about four wiles southeast of Proy ; ehureh services hinvo boan
lield in this: neighbarhood since 1857.  In 1865, Rev. G. R, Honts,
who hud charge of the Doniphan Civeuit, organized the ehureh. Among
the first members weee Ezra Rounds and wife, Bliza Enrly, Emma
Kent, Thomas Chilton and wife, Their services, like otliers in those
duys, were hield in private houses, afterword in sehioollouses, Tn 1871,
under the charge of Jolm ook, the Bush Greck Chursh,  nost, com-
fortable liouge, and Inrge enough to) acsommodate the community, was
built,  Much credit is due 1T, Chilton in superintending the work and
collecting funds, &6 that when the chureh was dedicated, Februn ry
1872, it was ot of delt. Soon after this; thors was quite q :aunr‘sﬁiuinl
friam the hureh to Join the Second Adventist. From varions Cul‘l-sl.'ﬂ
Methodism has not been VEEY, prosperous in this section, ‘

Mythodist Episeopal Chureh at Sevarance.—The Methodjst Epis-
copal Chureh in Severance was organized Janunry 25, 1871, by Rov
W. K. Marshall, Presiding Blder; and Rev. I3 F. Bowman, ;m-amr iu.
charge, with the following-named memburs: Rev, G, J. Archer, E
Archer, John Archer. Willinm 1. A reher, Hannah J. Avehor, \\", S,
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Wells, Rosanva Johnson, Henry Johnson snd Simeon Chenowerth.
Froin 1872 to 1875, they wore served by Rev. G. W. Wood. During
lig pastorate the churel bnilt a which was completed (-
tobier 11, 1873, also built a house of worship, which was dedicuted in
the full of 1674 by Rev. A. B. Leonard, of Cincinnati, sssistod by
H. D Fisher. They incurred o heavy debt, which was paidl last venr
(1881), under thie charge of Rev. W. H. Underwood,

Otler Muthadist Lpiscopal Olierch Crganizations.—1In the carly

Arsonnge,

settlements of the county thore were Methodist [':plt.‘:l‘.f]I)J] Church orgin-
izations in Bellemont, Charleston, Mount Vernon and L I“ll_‘il.‘lT-E, but
as those towns dechined, and JJ!_‘OII]:_‘ moved awny, these orgzanizations
were abnndoned,

There are at present five pastoral eharges in this county, via,,
White Cloud, Rev. C. Minear; Highland, Rev. €. K. Jonies: Sever.
nnee, Rev, 0. IB. Brown: Troy, Rev. 1. Biddison, and Oakland, F.
F. Otto.

Mathodist Episcopal Chureh Southern—The first organization

| of the Methodist Episcopal Chureli Southern, was firmed at Doniphun

by Rev. Wallaed, in 1856, Serviees were held inn hotel at first.
Revs. Hedgepath, O. Howell, Jumes Arrington, King and Tharp,
were suceessively in charge of this society.  There was another orguni-
zation of the Methodist Episcopal Church Southern at Bellemont in
1850, Mrs. Creal und Mrs. Bryant wore among the enrly members.
Both organizations have since gone down.

Episeopal Chureh in Troy.—There wis an Episeopnl society
organized in Troy in 1859 by Rev. Ryan.  Servicos were held in the
court house.  Bishop Runcey, of St. Joseph, Mo., held irvegulay sopy-
ices here after Rev. Ryan lefr, also Dishop Vail, of Tapeka, came
here ocensionally.  Most of the members of the socioty have moved
uwny, some have died, nnd serviees have hoen discontinned for several
years,

Weare indebted to the Rev. E. Alward, of Watheau, for the fol
lowing brief sketehes of the Baptist ofgunigations of this connty.

Baptist Chureh at Wathena wos organized in June, 1858, by
Eliter Willinm Price and Rev. E. Alword, with cightmembers. Servives
were held in the schoolhouse for several vears.  The organizgation hd
no church edifice until 1871, when a brick structure was built, 40x60,
at a cost of §5,000,

The following pastors lave had charge of the chiureh from jis
earlisst ormunization to the present time: E. Alward, D, Waddell
and L. J. Cok, their present pastor beimg Rev. B. Alward., Pros
et membership, forty-two.

Baptist Church at Bust Norway was organized in 1878 or 1874
Meatings were leld in u dchoolhouse about two miles northwest of Tust
Norway.

"The following pustors have i churge from time of organization
to the prosont time: D. Waddall, T. Rolfe and B Alward, who is
their present pastor.  Prosent mombership, forty-sight.

Buptist Cliwrch at Loona was organized in Octobor, 1330, Ly
the Rev. E. Alward, with ¢ight members, Moetings are beld in the
village sclioolhouse.  The membership of the clureh v prosont ja-
eludes ighteen mombees, Rev: B Alward being their present pastor.

Baptist (hureh an Tnidependinie Crack.—We liave been inable
to abtain mueh data eoncerning this organization.  Meetings ave held
in a sehoolhouse gix or sight miles south of East Novway.,  Rev. R, 8,
Cook is their present pastor

Baptint Churcl near Palerms.—The varl y history of this church
is very meager.  Mostings wre held in  chureh edifice two miles south-
west of Palermo,  Their churel boilding. a frome structure, wis erected
at a cost of 1,500, Present pastor, ]:P. Waddell.

We are indebted o the Rev. Bonifuce ¥, Verbeyen, 0. 8. B.. of
St. Benodiet’s College, Atchison, Kan., for the following sketol :

*The Catholie eongregation of Doniphan dates buck to Torrvitorial
dnys.  As early as 1856, Rey. Henry Lomks, O, 8. B.. born in 1708,
and still living av Careolltown, Cambria Qounty, Penn., landed at




Doniphan, and at once began to look ap his co-veligionists, e was
shortly after followed by Rev. Augustine Wirth, 0. S. B., who sconred
a plat of ground on the slope about two blocks east of Main strest, and
ereated nosmall frame chapel.  The ehapel a fow years later met with
a sud fute, for in the latter part of the summer of 1863, it cauglht five,
aupposed to have been the work of an incendinry, and was burned to
the ground. A new site was selected on a rise in the western suborbs
of the town, and u substantivl brigk  ehurels, 30850 feer, wis budlt by
Rev. 'i‘ilrlulll.v Luber, Q. 8. B., who sueeceded to the charge of the
parish in 1865,  During the interval that elupsed from the burning
of the first structare till the new buildi g was finished, serviee
wis hold in private dwellings.  Already, before the catastroplie
thit befell the first chapel, Atehison had risen into prominence, and
Father Augustine left Doniphan to make his home at the former place.
Binge that time, Doniphin has not had o vesident pastor, but the
spiritual wants of its Catholic inhabitants have been attended o, at
first monthly, subsequently semi-annually, by the Benedictine Fathers,
from the College at Atchison. From the same place were attended
Withenn, Troy, Fanning, White Cloud, in short, all places in Doni-
phan County where Catholies had settled, and all of which they still
have charge of, excepting, till quite recently, Wathenn and Troy, and
the stations along the Atchison & Nebraskn Railroad, from Brenner
north to the State line.

“UWhe congregation of Doniphan numbers about thirty-five
fomilies,”

St Mary's Qhaeroh, on Section 20, Township 4§, Range 19.—In
1858, John Murray donated ten nerves of land for the purpose of builid-
ing n chuvel (Catholic). A frame building was erectei, 16x30, the
lumber being hauled from Atchison with ox teams.  John Purcell was
the only one who owned & team of horses at that time, and there were
Lut nine families in the settloment.  The Benedietine Fathors of

Atchisun supplied the church from the very beginning, until a priest

was located at St. Benedict’s Chureh, when it was supplied from there,
Miss Anne ITess, daughter of Nicholas Hess, was the first ehild bup-
tized in St. Mary's Church.  She ig now the organist of the chureh.
In 1875, the church wis enlarged to its present size, 60x30. The
ahurgh hns at present from 250 to 300 communicants, Trish and Ger-
man,  St. Mary's and St Benedict's Churclies have the reputation of
possessing the best furnished buildings in the State, with the exoeption

of a fow eity cliurches.

St Benedict's (Nareh, on Seetion 12, Township Range 10
was organized in 1862, the palpit heing supplied by the Rev. Thomas
Bartl, of the Beaedictine Fatliers of Atchison. During the same year
the foundations were liid for a stone chinrel, TOx3T, which was
completed in 1865, A largo portion of the work wus done by ll.u_-
membiers of the congregation, who were then few in number and in
poor eircamstances, but Ly their energy and  persevernnce succeeded

in erecting o building that is a eredit to the neighborhood, The cl_lufv.i'-
was supplied from its first organization to 1868 by the Bem-\h::!m--
Fathers of Atchison; after that date the chareh hul its own resident
priest.  In 1867, a brick parsonage wis built near the rf:lul'uh. : The
ohureh property is logated on land owned by St Benedict's (_J””L_':"
and Abbey, at Afclizon, which also owns 320 neres, the most of \\ln_cln
s in p high state of enltivation. The eharel has at ]u'-.j-‘u?r]t I:lhmll it
communicunts, and is in & prosperous eondition, and [ree from debt.
In Muarch, 1880, the house asttached to the chureh was raised Ill.l"il_
Priory, by the Right Rov, I[nnocent Wolf, 0. 5. Il Abhot of N
Iium_n..h.;r".- College, in Atchison. Two priest gix brothers reside
at the Priory at present. o
Rom o Clatholie Chuveh at Wathena was patablished in 1869, by
the Rev. Thomns, O, S. B, with & membership of 100 souls, mostly

A briek edifice, 35x65, was eveeted in the same year, nt 0

Grermun,
eost of 85,500, with the tower nnfinished.
The shiurch his been supplicd by the following pastors:
“'u_ r|||l|lh i been 1L} b
tenedictine Fathers of St

1 i !
dute of its organization to 1575, by the
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Renediets College at Atchison ; from 1878 to 1880, Rev. L. Shrein-
er; from 1880 to the present time, Rev. J. T M. Timphans:

During Rev. Timphans’ administeation n new parsonage, 24«86,
was built at o cost of $1,600.  About the same time s small house
was built for the Benedictine Sisters, who have charge of a parochial
school of from fifty to sixty pupils.

At present the chureh lins 500 communienants, eomposed of Ger-
mang, Irish, Fronch and English.

St James Cathotie Chureh at Fanning.—he chorch edifice was
erected in 1878, under the sapervision of the pastor, Rev. L. Shriner,
and o committee of James Gallagher and Patrick Coreoron,  The
building 18w frame structure, 26x40, with o belfry, ereeted at o cost
of 81,8300,  Present lllemhﬂrﬂhip, 150, o I|:u'-l.;|1' prnpnrlinn of whom are
Irish. Pastor since 1879, Rev. J. T1. 'Pimpihn!s.

St Charles Catholic: Churell at an.—(}'hul'ch edifice was
erceted in 1880, under the supervision of o committee composed of
F. Koteh, L. Morressy and Pasrick Kirwin. The building is o frame
structure, 2486, erected at o cost of $1,000.  Prosent membership,
:«-'wmy-livo. Rev. J. H. JI‘ilupluu'ns, present phstor,

Catholic Mhuroh at White (lowd.—Chureh edifice was erecteil at
a-cost of 8300 ¢ size, 24x36 1 present membership, fifty ; present pastor,
Rev, J. H, Timphans,

[We hiave been unable to obtain any data concerning the early
arganization of the three above societies. |

Conggregational Chwreh nt Highlend was organized Oetober 5,
18635, by the Rev. H. P. Rohinson, with fifteen members. The foun-
dations for a brick chureh, 38x50, was laid in the full of 1866, and
the edifice was completed in spring of 1867, at a cost of sbout 24.000.
Rev. IL. P. Robinson remained in charge until 1860, when they hud
no regalar pastor until July 1, 1877, when the Rev. D. Kloss took
charge of the organization, and still retains his position as pastor.
Membership at present time, sixty-eight.

First Congregational Chureh at  White Clowd wiis organized
May 23, 1867, by the Rev. 1. P. Robinson,with eleven members.
A church edifics of brick was built in the spring of 1871, st a cost of
§5.200.

The chureh has been supplied by the following pactors: Rev. H.
P. Robinson, from May, 1867, to October, 1868 ; Rev. H. W. Shaw,
from October, 1860, to June, 1873; Rev. H. P. Robinson, June,
1878, 1o September, 18785 Rev, €. B. Moon, at Highland and White
Clond, April, 1873, to October, 18753 Rev. D. C. MeNuir, October,
1874, to Mareh. 18T6: Rev. O. J. Adams Mareh, 1876, to March,
1877 Rev. D. Kloss, of Highland, from July, 1877, to May, 1852,
No regulur pastor ot present time.  Presant membership, about twenty.

(Ferman Socicty Methodist: Hpiscopal hurel ot Wathena was
organized in October, 1867, by Rev. H. M. Meniger, who rempined
in .c'lmr_-__:e three yewrs: Rev. G, J. Shultz, one year Raov, J. (3. Kost,
two years; Rev. J. P. Hunst, one year; Rey. J. Al Reita, two
yours; Rev. 0. Hawnns, three years; Rev. (.70tt, three years, and
Rov. €. Stuckemann, the presont ingumbent.  From 1868, up to the
present time, the ahove-mentioned ministers hind churze of an orgin-
gution bearing the same name in Center Pownship, on Seation 26,
Township 3, Range 21; also an organization in Buarre Ouk Township,

an Seetion 20, Township 2, Range
In the summer of 1573, they bonght & church building, 30x50,
of the Campbollite organization, for $1,100, and -h.‘lii:-:ueul‘ it soon
aftey.  In 1872, a parsonage was built at & cost of about $1.500. .
(rernun Sociely Methaodist ffl;ar'sr:r--ru-'r; Dhursh on Section 29,
was organized in 1868, by Rey. 11 Meyer.

Township 2, Range 2,
Sorvices were held in school and private houses until 1874, when a
frame elinveh, 2482, wos erocted ac w cost of about STO0.

trerman Sweiely Methodist Episeapal rsh on Seetion 26,
Touwnghip &, Range 21, was organized in 1868, by Rey. H. Meyer.
“were held inta log buililing until 1880, when it was sold. A

Soaryi

new one, 24x32. was built at u cost of about 3T00.

)
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A summury of these three sketehes will show that the German
Mathodist Episcapul Societies have three ehurch organizations in the
eounty ; total value of church property, abous $3,300; number of
chureh edifices ut present time, three; number of members at present
time, ninety.

These organizations are ut present supplied by the Rev. C. Stucke-
man, of Wathena.

German  Beformed Zion's. Qlureli on Svetion 33, Town 2,
Mlange 22, was ovzanized in 1868, by the Rev. John Biery. Serv-
ices were helil at vavious plages in the neighborhood until a clureh
edifioe was eroctod.  The building is a small frame structure, seating
about 150 persons. Present membership, ninety; Rev. A Bolliger,
pastor. The church is now in a prosperons condition, and has o Sunday
sehool connected with it, numbering about sixty pupils.

Coforad - Buptist Clhuroh at White Ofoud, was avganized in
1875, by the Rev. J. H. Strawther. Present number of members,
twenty-six. Services wre held onece a month in the schoolliouse, by
the Rev. Daniel Wilson, of Atchison, Kan.

Colored  Missionary Baptist Churah at Troy, was orgunized
January 9, 1881, by the Rev. Henry Bacon. with ecight ‘members,
The organization has no builling at present, but efforts are being
mianide to build in the near future.  Present number of members, nine.
They have no tegalar pastor at present.

Seoond Colored Buaptist . hurch at Wathena, was ovganized
Soptember 22, 1873, by Rev. D. Loe, of Lawrenco; Rev. John Bourn,
of Fort Seott; Rovs. Williams nnd Qlarkston, of Elwood, anid
Rev. 8. Jackson, of Wathens. A chureh edifice was built in 1872,
most f the work being done by the wembers. The building is valued
ut 8450, Membership at present, seventy-five; Rev. 8. Jackson,

pastor,
FREEMASONIY.

‘The Angient Oriler of Free and Aceepted Musons for eenturies
past hos been the handmaid of civilization, her carrying with them
into new and pioneer settlements thoge frateruizing influences, which
bt been found to be of such momentous vilue, even in the habita.
tions of the unlotterad savage. The early sottlers of Doniphan
County did not constitute an exesption to this rule.

Swmithton. Lodye, No, 1, A. B § A. M—Thicis the oldest
Indgge in the State, and was orgunized in the spring of 1854, at Smith-
ton, one of the early towns in the county, located in what is now
known as Burr Onk Township, A charter was granted November 30,
1854, with the following eharter mombors: J. W. Smith, B. H.
Rinchart, D. Vanderslies, J, I Whitehead, William P. Richardson, J.
1L Mercell, G. R, Wilson, Jaseph Crippen, L W. Forman. The
following weee the first officers: J. W, Smith, Worshipful Master;
E, H. Rinehart, Senior Warden; D. Vanderslice, Junior Warden,
“Flie first meeting by the lodge whs held in the open wir on u high
viver blull, near Smithton ; afterward moetings were hell at Bello-
wont (Whitehead) then' st Inli—qy enrly town, long since defunet—
on the Wolf River; this was removed to the Agency, and finally
located at Towa Point, where it remained for several yenrs; then, hy
consent of the Grand' Lodge, it wis moved to Highland, iis present
loeation.

Present offivers:  Dr. A, Lijgh, Waorshipful Master: L. Macker,
Senior Wirden; B. Martin, Junior Warden; W. Trevett, Secretary ;
AL 8. Compbell. Treasurer,

Present membership, sixty. ;

Areaidin: Lodge, No. 31, at Doniplian, was organized December
20, 1858, with the following members: A, R, Forman, J. W, Shep.
herd, J. F. Forman, B. 8. Wharton, W, W. Hanson, G. W. Waller, and
0. Brawn,

The fllowing were the appoiuted officers: A, R. Forman. Worship-
ful Master; J. W. Shepherd, Senior Warden; J. F. Forman, Junior
Warden.,

Pyesent officers:  W. . Vesbit, Worshipful Master: B. p,

Curtis, Senior Warden; A. B. Smith, Junior Warden : James Seliletz-
haum, Seeretary; A. Windsor, Treasnrer.

Present membership, fifty.

Doniphan Chapter, No. 13, . A, Chapter, was  organized
October 17, 186Y.  Charter members: J. L. Thompson, 1. Small-
woodyJJ. K. Forman, J. L. Philbrick, T. J. Vanderslice, and Q. C.
Camp.

The following were first officers: J. 1. Thompsgon, H. P I,
Smallwood, K.; J. F. Forman, Seribe.

Present officers: J. L, Philbrick, H. P.: B, W. Stratton. K,
L. A. Messenger, Sevibe; J. F. Formin, Secrotary: A. Windsor,
Treasurer.

Present membership, eightecn,

Troy Lodye, No. 55, A., F. o d. M., was instituted ]'"n-brum'_\t
4, 1867. Following arc the charter members: J. B. Maynard, Will-
inm Monrae, L. M. Lee, 8. Tennent, J. Q. Power. W. M. Bitis, L.
Smith, G. H, Mosley, Daniel Bursk, J. B. Wheeler, €. €. Camp, P
3. Soper, Charles Higby, Henry Boder, Jr, and R. T. Nesbit.

The first officers were: R. T. Neshit, Worshipful Master; €. 0,
Camp, Senior Warden; Henry Boder, Jr., Junior Warden ; Daniel
Bursk, Treasurer; P. 8. Soper, Secreta ry-

Present officers are:  A. Perry, Worshipful Master; R.'S. Dins-
more, Senior Warden; Thomas Henshell, Junior Warden : George
Hurris, Treasurer; D. €. Sinclair, Secretury. Present meniber-
ship, ninety-three.

Regalur meetings are held on the first Monday bofore fall moon,
and second Satarday thereafter, in Masonie Hall,

Wathena Lodye, No. 64, A., F. i A AL, was institated under
u charter January 27, 1868, with the following charter memburs: T.
Higgins, €. Nuhring. C. €. Carson, W. B, Craig, W. . Black, 0.
Poirier, H. 8. Oveal, W, . Wilson, .J. Suter, JJ. Brawn, J, Grady.

Following were the fivst officers: 8. Hateh, Waorshipful Master ;
W. H. Smallwood, Senior Warden; 0. Craig, Junior Warden: A. H.
Campbell, Seeretary ; M. E. Bryan, Treasurer.

Present officers: S Hateh, Worshipful Master: W, W, Curter,
Senior Wardens R. IL Larzeler, Junior Warden; €. Puaivier, Secre-
tary ; A. B, Campbell, Treasurer. Present membership, twenty-four,

White (lowd Ladge, No. 78, A., £ @ A. 0L, was institated un-
der dispensation May 17, 1869,

Following were the first officers: T, B. Hollocbungh, Worship-
ful Muster; M. B. Bowers, Senior Warden ; R. M, Williamns, Jusior
Warden; ¢ F. Vau Buskirk, Seovetary ; (. Burkhalter, Tressurer.

A charter was granted October 21, 1864, with the following ehar-
ter members: J. B. Holloebaugh, M. B. Bowers, R. M. Willinms, €.
F. Van Buskirk, Charles Burkhalter, A, N. Taylor, John Harpster. J.
S. Springer.

Following were the officers under the éharter: R, M. Williams,
Worshipful Master; M. B. Bowers. Senjor Warden : J. W, Harpster,
Janior Warden ; €. F. Van Buskirk. Seeretary ;. Qlinrles Burkhalter,
Trensurer.

Present officers: J. W. Harpster, Worshipful Master, P. L.
Palmer, Senior Warden: R. 8. Wakefield, Junior Warden: (0. H.
Wakefield, Seeretary: D. G, Garlock, Trensurer.  Present momber-
ship. thirty-seven,

Regular mectings nve held Wednesilay evenings on ar befors the
full moon und every two weeks after, at Odd Foliows Hall,

ODD FELLOWSHIP.

Wiite Cloud Ludge, No. i, was fivst organized under dispensa-
tion Decombir, 1858, During the war—winter of 1862 and 1868 —the
organization. suspended until December 81, 1869, when it was re-or-
ganized under dispensation, retuining its original number.  The offi.
cers at the time of ve-organization wore: R. 8. Wakefield, Noble
Grand; X, W. Moore, Vieo Grand; . Tuylor, Recording Seoro-
tary; 0. C. Whitney, Treasurer.




After the re-organization was perfeeted, the following officers were I
Ull‘?l.‘ll!d for the ensuing year: J. W. Moore, Noble Grand; J. Taylor,
Vieo Grand; 0. C. Whitney, Recording Secretary; J. F. Swartz,
Preasurer.

Oetober 12, 1872, a charter was granted with the following char- ‘
ter members:  Sal Miller, H. Ulsh, F. E. Avmstrong, W. D. Beeler,
J. Troy, H. F. Maey, 0. 0. Whitney and C. M, Williams. The fol-
lowing were the first officers elected under the charter: 8. N. Perry, |
Noble Grand; W. M. Fairall, Vice Grand; G. W. Pike, Recarriii;g
Secretary ; J. I Mauck, Trensurer. |

Following are the present officers:  George . Burkhnlter, Noble
Grand: G, W, Manck, Viee Grand: L 8. Sinclair, Recording Seere-
tury ; 8. Maquilken, Pormanent Secretary; W. E. Lewis, Treasurer.
Membership at present time, seventy-nine.

Rogular meetings are held every Saturday evening in their hull— '
ono of the finest in the connty.

Troy City Lodge, No. 58, was instituted under s charter, Sep-
temiber 28, 1868, with the following charter members: Lo Smith, J.
(. Gordon, G. Sliriver, J. F. Hamson, X. K. Stont, W. E. Pickett, |
Charles Highy, TL A, Demsey, D. Bursk and W. H. Hambaugh.

The first officers were X. K. Stont, N. G.; L. Smith, V. G.; F.
M. Tiney, Treas.; €. Leland, See. -

Present officers ure: F. Brown, N.'G.; L. A. Roderick, V. G:; |
X. K. Stout. Treas.; Willinm Erskine, See.; present membership,
sixty,

Regulir meetings are held every Suturday evening in their hall
aver the bank.

Phaniz Lodge, No. 41, at Wathena wos opganized under dis-
pensation February 26, 1860, Following were the fist officers: J.
T, Wheeler, N. G.; J. €. Gordon, V. G.; W.IL Wilson, R. 8.4
Robertson; . 8.5 B. M. Sturgis, Treas.

A ohurter was received October, 1864, with the fallowing charter
members: D. B. Welding, IL Al Dewmpsey, J. G, Gordon, J. 1.
Wheeler, E. Moetinge, J. A. Hackley, I H. Fruzer, B. Hurding, P.
Higains, E. M. Sturgis, J, G. Rabertson, A. Stranb, W. TL Witesern,
1. W, Noe, J. Wynkoop.

Present oficers: J. €. Goridon, N. Giy P Berger, Y. G B.
Harding, R. 8.3 0. Miller, Treas. Present number of members,
twenty-four.

Reégular megtings ave

Highland Ladge, No. 47, was
were cight charter members, as follows:
J. Myers, F. 7. Close. B. Castello, 1. Myers, F. ML
B. Gatehell.

Tis first officers wore: J. . Olose, Ni G.3 2 B Amshury, V.
G.; F.J. Close, P. 8.5 H. Myers, R J. Myers, Treas.

Present officers: 'C. D, Tler, N. G.: 8. 8. Jaeobs, V. Gaz B |
Kitsmiller, R. S.: G. F. Lowming, Treas. Present membership, fifty. |

Regular meetings are held every Saturday evening in the Masonie
linll over the post office.

King Lodige, No. L, @t Severanes,
17. 1877, with the following churter members
Shulsky. G. F. Dooley, 'W. B. Hurgis, Joel Rynn.
phens, .;\. S, L‘:imphuﬂ.

Follawine wore the first officers:
Horgis, V. Gii A, 5o Camphell, B 5.3

belil every Wednesday cvening in their hall. |
institated Jannary 27, 1871, There
1. 1L Close, 3. F. Amsbury,
Unkefer and I

was inatitatod September
J. A Camphell, R. P
Jey, A B Qy-

1. A. Campbell, N. G.; W. B,
G. F. “nul['}'. P. 8.0 A E.
Cyphens, Treas.

The loden was incorporated under the I
1880, with the following trustees: J. A, Camphell, B
John Hare, R. Kaufman and A. L. Unmer. . L

Proxmt officera: CLE. Miller, N- G5 W. 8 King, V. G.; AL
B. Foed, Sec.; J. A Camphell, Tyops, [resent number of members,
|i1lt)'.

Leona Lodye.

thivtesn members.

wws of the State, June 15,
. Shulsky,

22, 14880, with

bt G, W

No. 178, was ingtituted September

Fallowing are the churter members:
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Strahan, H. Guier, J. W. Kaufman, W. 8. Postle, E. B. Fatohell, E,
M. Miller, Amos Postle.

Its first officers wore s J. W. Kuofman, N. G.; H. Guier, V. G-
E. M. Miller, R. 3.; G. W. Strahan, Treas.; G. W. Strahan, Repre-
sentative to Grand Lodge,

Present officers: L. Rickenbach, N. G.; J. W. Shock, V. G.;
D. Kercher, R. 8.3 B. F. Heastan, Treas.: B. F. Heastan, Repre-
sentative to Grand Lodge. Prosent number of members, twanty.

Regular meetings are held every Wednesday eveding in their hall
in the schoolhouse.

Dolored Grand United Ovder, O, Fy No. 2,088, at, White Clowd,
was orgatized Junuary 19, 1880, with seventeen applicant members.

Following are the present officers: Seote Olay, N. G.; Simon
Easley, V. G.: A. Donohue, E. 8.; A. D. White, P. 8. Present
membership, twenty-three, .

Meetings held overy Saturday evening in a leased hall.

KNTGHTS OF HONOR.

Troy Lodge. No. 1317, was organized Decomber 80, 1878, by
A Howland, D. G. D. Following are the sharter members: H.
Boder, 1L Boder, Jr., 8ol Miller, I €. Sinelair; L. L. Joh D.
W. Morse, R. Wilkinson, A. 8. Ashmead, T. 0. MunsonyJ. A. Ames,
J. W. Byers, €. E. Brown, J. G. Light and J. . Wilson,

The first officers weres  H. Boder, Jr., Past Dietator; . C.
Sinclnir, Dictator s L. L. Johnson, Viee Dietator; T. C. Munson,
Reporter, Sol Miller, Treasurer.

Present officers:  R. 8. Dinsmore, Dictator; A. Brockenridge,
Viee Dictator: R. Wilkinson, Reporter; Sol Miller, Treasurer.
Present membership, thirty-nine.

Meetings are held on the second and fourth Friduys of each
month in Odd Fellows’ Hall,

Amity Lodge, No. 2,267, at. White Cloud, wis organized July
165, 1880, with the following charter membors: W. H. Fornergok,
. H. Wakefield, J. L Lynds, C.H. Shreve, R. 8 Wakefield, A.
Frost, W. N. Embree, B. W. Anderson, P. Burkhulter, M. 8. Mauck,
8. L. Jennings, G. W. Mauck, P. L. Parmer, .. A, Howarth, L. F.
Mills, T, Sniveley; J. H. Smythe, G. H. Burkhalter, Charles Cain.

Following were the first officcrs:  A. Frost, Dietator; €. H.
Wakefield. Reporter; J. Tl Lynds, Treasurer. Present afficers are ;
W. H. Fornerook, Dictator: G. W. Mauck, Reporter; W. E. Lowis,
Progsurer.  Mombership at present, seventeen.

Regular meetings are hild on the seconid and fourth Mondays
of gvery month in Odd Fellows” Hall.

Hightand City Lodyge, No. 2,261, was organized under n charter
on the Oth duy of July, 1551. Fourteen nnmes appeared on the char-
tor as followss W, Treevett, Ao Leigh, J. C. Rea, E. B, Wood, W.
i, Forbes, T. J. McCreary, H. A. Hills, J. €. Gunn, J. W. Ranky.
L. Recker, . B. Fox, 1L Hann, J. F. Mitehell, and G. W. Pace:

The following were the first offieers: A, Leigh, Past Dietator

| W. Trevott, Dictator, and W. IT. Forbes, Reporter.

The officers at the present time are:  H. G Layton, Dictator ;
W. Trevett, Reporter; and T. J. McCreary, Treasurer.  Presentmem-
bership. ninetéen.

Phe regular meetings sre held on first and third Tuesdays of

each month.
MISCELEANEOUS ORGANIZATIONS,

Sitwer Cornet Band at White Qaud was organized with eleven
piembers in September, 1873, nnder the leadership of Capr. C. W,
The band was first organized in 1871, and sfterward  pesor-
ganized in 1875, They have ut present o fine sct of instriments,
costing in the neighborhood of £1,000. Present officers. are C. W.
Qhrove, leader, und . H. Wakefield, Seoretury.

Cogaing Cornat, Band at. Highland.—This is o bani hut recently
organized, composed of young members,  Their leader, M. Minier, or-
o the band with fourteen mgbers, in August, 1881,

Shireve.
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There is also » eornet band in Burr Oak Township, composed of |
ten mombers, of which we can obtain no further data.

Dowipluan County Iorticultural Socisty was organized October
B, 1870, Follawing were the first officers: President, X, K. Stout;
Treasaver, W. Hinckley; Secretary, 8. Hutch.

Present officers: X. K. Stout, President; 8. E. Hardy, Vice
Prosident; I . Montgomery, Treasurer; 8. Hatch, Secretary.

Regulur meetings are held on the first Monday in February, May,
Angnst and Novemher

We are indebred to W, IL Neshit, of Doniphan, for n vopy of the
fallowing envollment list of Towa Township. In this list our patrons
will find the numes of many of those who were identified with the
enrly history of the county, and Tows Township in purticular:

ENROLLMENT LISt
OF persons subject to military duty in the fiest subdistrict of the
Northern District of Kansas, consisting of Iowa Township, Doniphan
County, ander the act of Congress of March 8, 1863, = for enrolling
and eulling out the national forces, and for other purposes.”

FIRST CLASS,

NAME, Agh Tarlilenics: NAME Ag«.[ Teealdonce.
Adlair, JM]III. 37 thr Iligh!rlml. Long, John ‘?.m.m. 32 ]’Gmr Highlanid,
Ausiin, Henr; Nuar Highlivad.  [Martia, James E. Niwr Highlund,
Avton, Henry Le....,| :__ Lowa Point, M Jirios Ein ‘28 Near Highlane,
Neton, Abeahim I 31 White Qlawd, Marenm, S."l.'l.......‘.' 20 |Noar Highlangd

Armatron, F. Eooi| 85 [White Clouil. [ Miers, Jiumee, coeeenn| a0 [Near Highlanid.
Bahb, 'U‘Il.lhmﬁ'..... a0 [Ne, White Clowd)[Miner, Abrahnim J..| 34 Noar [Tighlund,
Bawen, Hlidlin.... $2 | Lown olnt. [Mitohiel), James 1. 27 |Near Highland,

" (White Gloluh Mires, Earl .. Nr. lowa Point.

L [Marey; dnmes......... Nr, Tawn Polnt,
(Mauck, Morgan &) 28 (White Cloud,
MOOT, INE L cveeeaas) 28 | White Cloud,
Monwe, James We...o.| 28 |White Qloud.
Munak, Josaph F... 20 | White Cloud,
Mauk, Guorge W 20 |White Clowil.
“ma}. Solomion.....f B2 | White Cloud,

-Bmm'ﬁ

N Whire (loud
AT (NrWhite Clowid
Nel Wiite Clonid
Near Highland,
Lowa Paint.
Ne. White Cloud
1 White Cland,
i er llilfhlnm‘l
i wm Hightand.
o 30 8. lown Polnt,
| White Olond,
| 25 Nuar Highlnnd.
: gr. I(mm Eoiui.
8 . L (N Towa Point,
| 20 [Whits Cloud, 1 27 [Ne. Towa Point,
: g g: m:ltu muud. 24 ¥r, Jown Poing,
no 0 (Nr. White Qlowl{Penny, Eliy H......_ 24 (Xr. White (Cloud
Chapson, - Near Highlanil. Dowers, Charles L Nenr Highland,
Dutton, Williat.....| 25 Near Highilad, [Parker, I........ 7 Neir Highland,
Dawsan, Cavil .. f 31 Near mghlma l*»-am William Near Highland,
4 (Near Highland, |0 Newr Highland,
20 [Noar Wighland, [Payne, Willksm Nr. lown Foint.
28 White - i Nr. Iowa Polnt,
24 INear Iighland. [Powel, Jases Muu.n 81 [Nenr ighland,
20 (Near Highsnd. (Patton, Willio 110 | 2, Towa Paint,
84 | White Uloud. — [Prior. Snmuel ..., Nr. Whiite (o
2 Near ighilaml, I‘rinr.&lplﬂm.. 20 (N Wiite Cload
32 Near Mightanil. [Penuy, John B, A2 (Nr. White Clowl
20 Noar Highland, [Quick, Jonsthan.....| 25 [¥r White Clond
L Near Highland. |itines; John. ... 27 |White Clowd,
B ‘_.ET_ Noar Highland., [Robetts, Riclord. .. | 27 |8 Towa Poine,
28 White Clonid. — [Robinsan, Tarvoy 5 | 52 Highland,
2\ White Cloud. [Rathweford, Willisn | 44 Highland,
| g E‘hﬂr Thighlawl, [Rhalls, David M......| 95 Highlund.
.* Noar Highland, Richurdon, John A,| 83 [Rish Taund,

S Whive Claud,
a2 [White (1 gl Shinrk, Josapl D,
-l ;tlll' lﬁ&;f‘w;\l -Fhnrk, Heary |

er wd. (Sutton, Goorge W,
: g 3m:-' Illig]nnm] ’B«llery erﬁ:.
. 0 Walf River.  Snider, Luenil.,...... Nonr Highl

4 Nenr Highland, Springer, Sumpel ... Ner III.:IN;i:.
4 EH I%u- Highland. [Seott, George .........| 41 Whilte Cloud.
[ L — zﬂ'irn Highlund, |Shrove, Uupnr Wl 20 (White Cloud,
Hodriok, Wiilinni..c| 37 [Nenr 1ighla ;

i lghlnad, [Swinney, Heury, Nr, Towa Taint,
Hunter, William L..\| 27 Newr Highloud, [Teacy, Tanjamin,, 7 |lown Point,
Tollerafh, Allen,....of &1 [Whita Olond.  [tracy, ey W.....f 92 [towi Point
HIIL Wiltiarn W.,..)[ 32 {Rush [sland,  [Taylor, Alred... .| 80 |lows Puist.

2 100 Wolf River.
Nowr Highlnnd,
o 27 [Nenr Highlanid,
W B4 N'mu' Highlaud.
|Near Nightand,

é.ﬂﬁ

(]
Y=
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FIRET CLASS—Clumtinued.

NAME, Agn, Tasidene, NAME. | Kgn Tramblieric,

Hanford, Matthew.... 26 |Rush Island. Tueker, Tohn M
Hanford, Johe 84 (Rash Lsland, Peney, Willin,
Hughlitt, il 48 |Newr Hightand, Waod s,
Heseltine, Willlnm... 88 (Nre. White Clowd, I
Hiekox, Henj. F. 27 |Noor ighlnnd.
Holland, James 3., 27 |Near Highland, ¥
Johoson, Beckworih. 30 N, White 1o Vandevar
Jennings, 5.1 0 | Nr. White € Wihiningeon,
Jneab, John town Poimf, Willkwos, Jum
T Near Highland. |Whitman, Joh

Newr Highlani.
Nonr Highlanil
Near Highland.
Near Highinnil.
White Cloud.

White Cloud

Newr Highland,
Near Highland,
N White Cloml
Nr: Whilte Clotd

witl

Hightnil. Willinmes, (& M. Nr. White
& I Nenr Highland, |Wallaee, Blins |Ke White
Wihite Ol Williams, Jwmes Nonr Highlani

Wedamnn, Pater
e, | Warren, Abriln
Wool, Wesily..

Higghlnml.
Newr Highland
d INear Highland.

SECOND  CLARS.

WAME Age, Itnsldrticn. | NAME Age. Besliiunce,
Atwood, lanag, .. +| it |I-urn Toint. Jll!!l!ll. Semsny W..oo HIJ Nour Hightand.
Armold, Diwson......| $0° Nr, White Cloud, deifries, Louls. .o 42 |Near Highlanil.
Armsburg, Steph. F.| 44 ||||gl:Trmr| [Feffries, Androw Ro.| o5 (Nese Highlani.
Hrows, rglnlchlnr..., G (0n Wolt River, [Jnckson, Lobun....| 35 Nesr Highlund.
Bole, Jnok Alfred M.| 25 Near Highlanil [Tonie, Gieorge v A INwar Highland.
Brrehiiold, Robert...| 41 Noar Highluni. Lognn, George H.....,| 88 |0 ‘'Wolf River.
Buler, Jolin 8o 42 [Sonr Highland. |Margum, Willinm . N, Lown Puint.

onn, Milss ... BT 0 Walf Riviar. |Merriok, Tlogton © 3 \hu l-j:ghhml
Onrhmtt, Boujnmin...| 42 fNur Highland. [Morris, Richnrd 7

Uonn, Jumes L. ‘hl Menr Highlnad, [Marris, Sylvedter E;| 85 l!ig!@llw.t
Cobern, Herbut M... (Neawr Hightvnd. (MeCrabg, Thomm .0 26 [Highland,
Combs, Jobin ool ]"#mr Highland. MeDinne, Patrick..| 86 [Nese Highland.
Chpndler, Jesse. 35 (Near [ighland, INoble, Willise D.....| 40 [Noar 15 hiland.
Tievolt, Jnekson: A7 |Near Highland. !"ﬂﬁﬂ‘ Smmuel K. 40 |ighlagd.
Dutton, Jolin. 80 [lowa Point, !\uhll. Willkwny, H...| 87 (luws Poind.
Foster, Philo W......| 42 [Towa Point. Powny, dnmes Wooi @6 [N Wiite Cloud
Farbd, Wil i) 35 NeTown Boit !sm . a7 Neaw Mighiand
Fling, Daniel W..... [Io\m Toint. 3

Formin, Harvey W...| B9 [Ny, lowa Point. Frighland,
Frazier, Sohnson....| 48 Nenr Highland. W;. 0I5 White Clond
Hear, Honry........ 40 [Lowa Paint. 1#5) [N, White Clond
Hubbard, Elijuh aI wf 1A |Near Highland. A5 | Nr. White Clond
Joh-lllim. okl d 400 ighlind.

Public notice is heraby given lhnt any person enrolled in any uu.lr-
istriet in the Northern District of Kunsus may appear before the
Board of Enrollment of sxid Distriet, at the headquarters of the Pro-

vost Marshal of the Distriet, in Leavenworth City (No. 63 Dulaware:
street, up stairs), until the 20tk day of December, 1863, and cliim to.

have his nnme stricken off the list, if he can show to the satisfaction
of the Board that ho is not and will not be, at the time fixed for the
next draft (Tanuary 8, 1861). liable to militaey duty, on account of,

AHirst, alienage; second, non-residence; thivd, unsuitablencss of age;:

fourth, manifest permanent physical disability.

Persons who hay be cognizant of any other persons liable to
wilitary duty, whose names do not appear on the Enrpllmont List, are
requested to notify the Board of Enrollment, who will “therenpon
direet the Enrolling Officer of the proper sub-district to wscortain the
facts, and envoll the person so reported, if they are found subject to
enrollment. Tliese persons may also appear and claim o be stricken
from the list, the same as if they had been oviginally enralled,

Meadquarters: Provost Murshal, Northern Distriot of Kahsas,
Leavenworth City, November 25, 1864, J. Me. Canox,

Captain and Provost Marshal, President of the Board,

STATISTIOS—LIVE STOCK.
18G0—Number of cattle in the county, 1,503 ; number of swine,
2,000 ; number of sheep, 753 number of horses, STJ

IB(a—Numher of cattle, 11,774 ; swine, 17,674 ; sheep, 1,497 ;
horses, 4,402,

1880—Chtele, 10,910 ; swine, 24,576; sheop, 619; horses,
4,006,

VALUATION.

Value of farm products for 1880, §1.488,920.10 3 value of fartn

products, per capits, $100.92; value of assessed property, §3,240,-
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106,48 ; value of assessed property, per capite, $227 ."l : tax on each

8100 of assessed valuntion for 1880, $2.90,

ABETRACT OF ASSESSMENT ROLL.

For 1880—Aeres taxed, 236,172 average value, ®7.978; total
yalue, 81,888, 187.00 ; number of town lots nssessed, 13,711 ; average
vilue, $11.36; total value, $255,797.00; total personal property,
S7380,302.00; railrond |1rnpert\'. B370,819.43 5 total, 83,240, lt! )43,

For 1881 —Acres taxed, 236,172 ; average value, 87,9913 total
value, $1,887 287.00 ; number of town lots nssessed, 18,711 ; average
valire, S18.51; total wvalue, $257,005.00; total personal property,
B8Th, T67.00; railrond property, $548,17 i 2 total, §3,369,132.562.

TOTAL AMOUNT OF TAX LEVIED IN THE COUNTY POR THE YEAR 1880,

State, S17,820.67 ; county, $35,641.15: city, $2 441445 town-
glip, $11.451.96; sehoal. L75.79; towl, $06,030.91; rate per
gent on ench $100. §2.90; total amonnt of taxable property in the
gonnty, §3,240,105.43 ; bonded debt, $378.500.00.

For the year 18581 :

State. $16.845.66: eounty, $8T.164.28 ¢ city, $2.108.03; town-

ghip, 818,580.76; sehool, 8288460 total, $102,597 A2y rite per |

cent, 83.041: bonded indebtedness, $373.800,00; total assessed val-
untion, $3,369,132.52,
Alisteact from the report of the State Superintendent of Public

Instraction for the sehool year ending July 81, 18581 :

Number of districts organized in CoUEF aeseaasiniin T
P'opultion hetween five nnd twonty one years of age
Number of pupils enrotlod in sehool this ye
Averngn daily ntiendsnce...
Number of teaghers siploy

Avernge w uthly salary of male ténchers $40 o2
Average monthly salary of female tenchors . F47 00
Average nimber of woeks of sehool spssion.. 25

Amount paiil oun for teschers’ wi
Amouns paid for books for Tibeary
Amonnt paiil for maps anil Appararas.......
Anaunt paid for sives, buildings and furniture

and for (i

T tnl aahool expenditires. o cmee e

Tainl sinount peceivel from different saure
faremt purposes. ..

Awount of schoal bonds i
Prasent b
A vernge number of mills Iovied for all

XU

r1T§

indebiednrss

pol Jrurpises.

THE Sr. JOSEPH. MO., AND ELWOOD BRIDGE.

Bilow our readers will find a few brief abstracts from p history
of Buchnnan Connty, Mo, of the g jron bridge that spans tha
herous stream ' —the Missouri River.

1871, a number of practical men, of St.
Josephy, Mo., subseribed stock. « leel the
w8t Joseph Bridge Building Company,” prepared their articles of

signeontrollable and tre
Somefime in Jant
iged a aompany to be sty

assneiation, and were incorporated.
At their first ¢ ar westing, the following officers were elected
o sevve their respec ar: W. P. Hall, President ;
W. L. Ruanson, Vies President; I. G. Kappner. Treasurer 3 John
Pinger. Auditor; J. M. Hiwley, Secretary.
. Tlie Committee on Survey wid composed of W. P. Hall, J. M.
Hawley and J. B. Hinman. They immediately secnred the servioes

rehieved him a national

ve terms for one y

f Col. B T, Mason, whose works lisve sinee

reputation

I Fobruary, F. M. Kelly, Col. Mason's §

the Gth of

ant, arrived on the rrgund, and eommence d the [Ilt'lllnltluf“. .}

which extended from the rocky Blafs, near Belimont; to & paint 0
miles below St. Joseph, The fall in the low water channel, For that
o he 822100 of o foot to the mile.

dewined by the river, at St.
ile that of the basin

|EE"‘ nineteen and o half inches, while

istance, wis founid 1

Mhe sonual rain-fall in the

-

.|--'-|'|-'|a. n
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below is twenty-six inches; so but three-fourths of the water lowing
out of the Missouri River, at its mouth, passes 8t Joseph.

June 10, 1871, the day appointed for opening the sealed proposals
for constructing o railrond, wagon and oot bridge across the Missouri
River, according to the specifications of the Chief Enginecr, Col.
E. D. Mason, showed the following bils from six great companies,
which were as follows

Baltimore Bridge Compaoy s
King Wrought Iron Bridge Company
American Bridge Company ...
Keyatone Bridge Compnny (for the siperity e alone) o 200,000
Phix ville Bridgs Compnany (for the superstructurs slose) . 317,900
Defroit Bridge and Iron Works.......oiinne sneian e TG0

AB1,176,000
; S0, 000
714,000

The company scceptzd the bid of the Detroit Bridgeand Iron
Works Qompany, it being the lowest and best bid.

Tlie contruetor's bond was fixed at $1060,000.

On July 25, 1871, the first material arrived s this was in the
shape of a train load of stone from: White's f‘lm‘lp Kan. The first

stone was laid September 26, in the presence of a large ussembloge
of people.

December 8, 1871, the arduous task: of landing Pier 6 on bel
rock was accomplished.

January 31, 1872, the caisson for Pier & was landed on bed rock.

The cnisson far Pier 4 wus accidentally launghed January 21,
1872. During the sinking of this pier, the ice broke upin the river,
but resulted in no materinl dumage to the work.

Pier 4 was landed on bed rock March 8, 1872,

The caisson for the upper pier was placed in position April 27,
1872, and landed on bed rock Mag 30, 1872,

Pier 2, commonly known as pivot pier. was got into place Sep-
tember 1, 1872

The cnisson of Pier 8 was landed on bed fock November 4, 1872

The next and last pier was Pier 1. After luunching her into
the water from the east back, she was put into position, and the air-
pumps started Webruary 5, 1873, The pier landed on bad roek
March 5, and was eompleted Marel 25.

These piers, constituting the sub-struature
1.457.000 feet in timber. board measure; 16,085 cubic fost of con-
crete: and 172,071 cubie feet of masonry. The base of the largest

of the hridge; contain

pier is forty-five by forty-five ; the top. thirty-five foot in dinmetet
Work on the supersiructure immediately began, The first spe
The last span was swung May

was swung January 18th, 1573
4tl, 18733 all the superstracture suppozting its own we
isists of theee fixed spans of the guadran-

The superstructure ¢
gular Pratt truss, each 300 feer long, one fixed span at cael ap-
In'nuh. 50 feet, and u draw span 305 rt'o making the eotive len ath
of the bridge 1,545 feet. The weight of the iron in the superstruct:
are s 2,850,000 pounds ; of the roud-bed and track, 350,000 punnis.
alone weighs 900,000, and is s6 perfectly adjusted

The draw span
a8 to be easily opened and shut by one mun. The capneity of the
and heaviest

bridge, us estimated d, is six times as great as the lorg

teain of ears that can be placed upon it.  The npproselies over hiot-
toms contain 2,025,000 cubie feet of earth and broken rock.

On the 20th of Muy, 1873, the fiest locomotive crassed the bridge.

6. of the St Joe & Denver Qity Ri R It

. Sleppy, Master Mechuuic of the rond. There

5, together with prom-

"Phis was engine

was in charge of

were on board & and railrowd official
inent citizens of St. Joseph and Kansas.  On Saturday, Muay Slst,
1873, occurred the grand celebration of the completion of the bridge.
O th of July, 1873, at 6:30 P. M., the steamer Mountaineer
broke from her woorings, and floating down' steuck - the bridg
casioning damage to the amount of $16,000, which oecupied twelve
:.|||'|I|-_r. June 16th, 1879, the eontrol of the bridge was

to Juw Gould and associntes, under whom it liss sinoe




LIST OF POSTOFFIUES AND POSTMASTERS IN DONIPHAN COUNTY.

...... . Leland, Jr.
White Clotd...uernerseenss v W. H. Fornerook.
Wathens.... covees W. WL Carter.
Soverance....coeun- veeeennes N AL Springer.
Highland..ocveeoeiiaeiinmsmne J. A. Kennedy.
—— Herring.

Highland Station. ;
§DTE1) (1) PP E 1. Koueh
Elwood... veeernsnesr s Disque.

Mrs. J. L. Roundy.
sasasan s e L Herrington.
.. 0. 8: Ball.
J. AL Meyers.

Geary Cit,
Palérmo.....
Towa Paint.
Leonn,..ccueees

Normanvyille. ... John Kiley.
Fanning:.c..iivis oo o] Bradley,
Eust Norway...... etk T, Hardy.

o o sl B ok

The first Legislature convened Mareh 26th, 1861, The follow-
ing is o complete list of the Senators elocted from Doniphan
County :

1861—T. A. Oshorn and H. N, Seaver; 1862—T. A. Oshora
and H. N. Seaver: 1863—Sol. Miller and A. Bennett; 186G4—Sol.
Millor and A. Bennett; 1865—J. T. Lane and F. T Drenning ;
1866—8ol. Miller and F. H. Drenning; 1867—A. Low and N. G.
Clark; 1868—A. Low and N, G. Clark; 1869—E. J. Jenkine and
W. H. Smallwood; 1870—E. J. Jenkins and W. H. Smallwood ;
1871—Sol. Miller and J. Wood; 1872—S8ol. Miller and J. Wood;
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1874—N. Price: 18TH—0. G. Bridges; 1876—
C. G. Bridges; 18T7—R. M. Willinins; 1878—R. M. Willinma;
18T9—R. M. Williams; 1880—R. M Williams; 1881—R. M. Will-
jams: 1882—R. M. Williams.

Tle names of the Representatives elocted from this county will
b found na follows ;

1861—F. W. Emery, T. P. Herrick, W. O. Kimber, A. Low ; 1862
—Sol. Miller; Jas. Penny, Ed. Russell. . Grabe: 1863 —J. P, Jolin-
son, N. 0. Clark, E. Russell, W. 1. Harrison, J. W. Forman;
1864—17J, P, Johnson, W. J. Orem, F. 11, Drenx
W. Forman; 1865—D. Detrick, D, L. Payue, E. Russell; (! Lelund,
A. Low: 1866—0. E. Fox, R. 1. Montgomery, L. Nash, N,
rington, F. E. Mix: 1867—W. R. Parker, G. H. Robb, B. D.
Evaus, E. J. Jenkins, R. Flickinger: 1868—T. J. Vanderslice, H. €
Moore, W. H. Smallwood, E. J. Jeukins, J. TL Philbrick ; 1869—
J. 8. Martin, G W. Wood, A. J. ,\'III“'I'-\‘. H. . Hawkins, D. Whita-
ker: 1870—S. F. Neshitt, A. Hazen, A. J. Mowry, E. I LeDue,
D. Whitaker: 18T1—T. H. Moore, A. Bennett, A. . Mowry, 8. G,
Whitaker, J. B. [(r_-npwr_ly; 1872—T. M. Pieres, . C. Mailler, Ei.
Searcy, B. F. Bowron; 18T8—M. J. Bowers, B. O'Drisenll, E.
Searcy, B. F. Bowron; 1874—N. Springer, X. K. Stoot, F. H.
Drenning; 1875—G. A. Briggs, M. F. Landon, J. L. Motter;
1876—A. 8. Camphell. M. 0. Reville, A. JJ. Mowery: 1877—. 8.
Long, R. Tracy, P. Manville; 1878 —J. 8. Long, R. Tracy, P, Mun-
ville; 1879—P. [{ully. I B. Kennedy, A. J. Selover; 1880—P.
Kelly, J. B: Kennedy, A. I Selover; 1881—J. F. Dunwoody, G. V.
Hagerman, Jus, Dayis; 1882—J. F, Dunwoody, G. V. Hagerman,
Jus Davis. .

€. C. Camp, J.




TOWNSHIP, CITY AND VILLAGE HISTORY.

CENTER TOWNSHIP.

This township received its name from the fict of its being located
in the central part of the county.

It was organized on the 21st day of Octobier, 1858, at the same
time Marion was formed, Prior to its organization, the territory it
now occupies, including the west tier of sections: now oceupied by
Burr Oak and Washington Townships, was known as Washington
Township. Its boundaries at that time were as follows: Commenc-
ing nt the northwest corner of Section 7, Town 2, Range 20 thence
east, with the Missouri River to Burr-Oak Tawnship ; thence south,
with the line of Burr-Oak and Washington Townships, to the south-
eust corner of Section 36, Town 2. Range 21; thence west to the
southeast corner of Section 35, Town 3, Range 20; thence north to
place of beginning.

J. R, Willis was the first Justice of the Peace. On the 21st of
June, 1850, & change was made, and the boundary was fixed as
follows: Commencing at the northwest corner of Section 14, Town
2, Range 20; thence down the Missouri River to the northwest corner
of Seetion 23 ; thence along the north line to the northeast corner of
spid section 3 thence due south to the southeast corner of Section 35,
Taown 3, Range 21 ; thence west to the southeast cornerof Section 35,
Tawn 3, Range 20 ; thenee north to place of beginning.

The surfuce of the towuship is mostly rough and broken, espe-
alally that portion lying in the north and eastern parts. The south and
western portions of the township is less broken and diversified.

Center Township is well watered by Mosquito, Cottonwood,
Peter’s and numerons smaller branches, Peter's Creek heads near
Troy, the eounty seat, and flows nearly due east, leaves the township
on Section 23, Town 3, Range 22, Mosquito Creek also heads near
Troy, flows nearly due north and empties into the Missouri River.

Ihe township contains at present sixty-one square miles, or
889,040 acres (frnctional), ninety-nine per eent of which is tillabla.

Among the eurly settlers wha located in this township and took
up ¢hiims may be found I Siminson, Charles Stewart, Joseph
Hayton, Jumes Marcan, J. Hampson, Henry Boder, Wm. M. Hamner,
Albert Head, H. Bryant, Robt. Rockey, J. M. Edwards, M. Tles, F.
MeClellan, James B. Maynard, John Morehead, N, Carter, L. Rall-
i, B_,Gimppel, Ji “’agmiller. ani others.

The first morvisge ceremony in which parties living in the town-
ship were interested was that of John Granfield and Miss Nancy
June Edwards, on December 25 (otherwise known as Christmas Duy),
1854, There being no minister in the township at that time, they
were married st the Agency, by Rev. 8. M. Irvin. The wedding
festivities were participated in by four fumilies, then the only settlers
in the township.

The fiest birth oeenrred in the spring of 1835, Charles, a son of
J. M. Edwards, receiving the honors. .

N. Cuarter died after n short illness, of cholers, September 5,
1856. This is probably the first death oceurring in the township.
Probably the next desth was that of o man named Connor, who was
killed |,;, a pony, one-half mile east of Troy. Soplulllher,.]s.ﬁ'{_

About the first religious services held in the township swere pre-
sided over by the Rev. H. Maxwell, n Methodist minister of Doni-
phan, in the i‘_,1| of 1856, My, H. Culbert having the largest house

in the neighborhezd at the time, the services were held there,  About |

the first schoal taughit in the township was at Troy, early in 1858; by
o Mrs. Brown., The sehaol building was built a lz log eabin style, in
the fall of 1856.

Dr. Hudnell was the first physician, to practice in the township,
in the epring of 1855. Dr. Dolster located at La Fayette in 1856, and
was probably the second of his profession to locate in the tawnship.

A saw-mill was built in 1856 at Qolumbus, by Charles Hamilton.

| The mill was vin for u few years only. During the same year, one

Lyman built o saw-mill at Lafayeste, which was operated but a
short time.

As a general thing, no improvements were made in the township
until the year 1856, From that time to this, excepting an interval of
about five years during the war of the rebellion, the township has
steadily improved, both in point of population and in that which
always marks o firm and substantial growth.

The St. Joseph & Denver City Ruilroad was graded throngh the
township, as far as Troy, in 1859 or 1860, but was not completed
until after the war.

No information cun be obtained in regard to the organization of
the first sehool distriot, legally organized.

The products of this tawnship are substantially the same as found
in other townships. [t is cliimed that the largest fruit orchard
in the county is lcated in this township.

TROY,

The townsite of Troy .anid seat of justice of Doniphan County
was located October 12, 1855, by A. Payne and Thomas J. B. Cra-
mer, eommissioners appointed by the Territorial Legislature, under
act of Congress, approved May 20, A. D. 1824, granting to coun-
ties and parishes of each State and Territory of the United States, in
which the public lands ure situated, the right of pre-emption to & quar-
ter section of land, the proceeds of sale of which shall be applied to
the erection of public buildings in said connty,

They reported that they did locate said seat of justice on the
southwest quarter of Seetion 17, Township 8, Range 21, and caused a
stake to be driven on gaid quarter section, on one side of which wus in-
seribed, * The County Seat of Doniphan County on this quarter See-
On the other side they inseribed the date—October 12, 1855—
This stake is supposed to have been driven

tion.”
and signed their names.

| near where the court house now stands.

At a meeting, October 16, 1855, the County Commissioners or-
dered James F. Formun to lay off eighty ncres of said quarter seetion
into town lote, nnd make a draft there of said town. Also to have
a public block 300 feet square, which shall be located near where the
Commissioners evected u stake;

The first sale of lots was ordered to take phu:f.- on .Fn!lu:lr_y ],
1846 ; terms, one-half ensh, balance in two equal payments, in six and
twelve months,

On nceount of bad weuather, the survey of the town site was de-
luyed until the spring of 1858, ‘The money recgived from sale of
public lots was ordered to be used only in payment of expenses in
erecting county buildings unfurnished.

The town site of Troy is located two miles enst of the gcugmphical
conter of the county; and is about equal distance from the towns of
Tows Point, Highland, Doniphan, Wathena, Geary City, Palermo,
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Columbus and Bellews 1, and fifteen wiles (nirline) from White Cloud,
thirtoon miles from Elwood, and fourteen miles from 8t. Joseph

Phe first buildin  on the own site was o frime, crected in 1855,
now occapied by Dr. [yers. During the same year, @ Mr. Rogers
built & blacksmith shop, and eperatesd it s sueh until the next year,
when James B, Marean bonght him out, and has continueid the buginess
in the ssme building up to the preseat time.

Tn 1836, o building was erected on the sito of the present Highy
House, and used b5 o vourt liouse,

Aossrs, Tend & Earls built and operated the first store in 1836,
The building is still standing, and is oveupied by Mys, Toner.

’ D. 8. Sergeant locuted in Troy in July, 1857, and apenedn large
stack of goods in & building now oveupied by Henry Moore.

A Mr. Brady staried the next store soon afver, anid was followed
by I Boder, who erectod u frame building on the the site of the pres-
ent bunk. Brady moved his store from Charleston and ereeted a
building where Townsend & Richardson’s store is now loeated.

F. Koteh establighed the first shoe shop in Mareh, 1859, No
vogular harness shap was established antil aftir the war, when J. John-
son represented  that trade in Troy, in 1566, Mr. Koteh first estab-
lished n smull grocery and shoe-shop in 1857, on his farm, on the
 Portawatomie Trail."”"

Capt. A: Hend announced hinself ready to take churge of all
cases, early as 1855, thus establishing, nmong other things, his identity
us o lawyer.

Among tlie first carpenters were Massrs, Siminson, Culbert and
Field.

The first brick burnt in the place was by John Ogan, in 1858,
During the same year, he erected the first brick building. The build-
ing was located on the site of Dr. John Wade's store, but was afterward
destroyed by fire, with the exception of about twenty feet of its west
wall. ‘This was ultimutely used in the construction of the present brick
Block.

The post office. was first established in 1856, with A. Head s
Postmaster.

Among the seeming necessary business enterprises that were estab-
lished ntan_early date, was & saloon, operated by Connor & Howell.
Their building swod where A. Perry's law office is now located.

A Subbath school was brganized us eatly ns 1850, James B, May-
nard noting as the first Superintendent.

Probably the first physician who Ioeated in the town was o Dr.
Payne, who came in 1859,

Until the year 1862, Troy progressed rapidly, but during the
war it ame to s stand-still.  After the war, it received s new impetus
in the 8t Joo & Denver City Railroad, which commenced ranning
trains, and soon mada the place a good shipping point.

Maynard (Troy Junction) wus laid off and received its name
from Judie I B, Maynard, in March, 1871, It i5 the junction of
the Atchison & Nobraska and the 8t. Joe & Western Ruilroads.

Since the establishment of the seat of justice at Troy (1856), all
connty business hag been transucted here, and all meetings of & public
chnracter, where the public welfare was interested, have been held ut
this place.

- ‘EH the winter n‘f 15}59—-3‘], during the session of the Territorial
gislntare, an apy ion was mudle to have the town incorporated, |

which application was granted.. Sinee the incorporation, the city has

muintained her organization. g

Below wi!l be found n list of the business enterprises, professions,
trades and societies at the present time :

(General stoves, five; vestaurants, three; howels; two; banks,
one; livery stable, one; jewelry stores, two; farniture stores, mm;
hordware stores, one; drog stores, two; millinery shops, two; boot
and shoe shops, two; harness shops, one ; barber shops, one; billinrd ‘
halls, two: blacksmith and wagon shops; five; earriage factory, one;
steam grist-mills, one; elevators, one; lnmber yards, one; packing |

houses, ane cooper shops, one; carpenter shops, one: printing offiees.

ones ment markets, one; physicians, six; lawyers, six; insirance

:lgi"TJTH. one 5 Hr_'\\'i[]'__[ ll::u:hluv nEentaE, one ; 'p.'l'suh)r.ﬂ. twis t.':LI']Jl'rlLH':'.
gight; tinners, two druymon, one: tenmsears, four 7 iee deslors, ong:
soeret socioties, three; charch organizations, fowr; library (lndies),
one.

CUTRT HOUBE.

The first building used in Doniphan County fora conrt honse,
after Troy was made the eounty seat, is a part of
the Highy Houee. [t was built in the summer of 1856, and wns used
for that purpose until the fall of 1859, when o new brick conrt hionse
was built on the north side of the public square, nearly opposite the
Highy House. Previous to the erection of this court house, there was

what s now ealled

no county jail. and prisoners were taken to Atchizon for safe-keeping.
After the new ‘conrt House was completed. they were eotifined in the
lower story of the building. In the springof 1867, this builling was
destroyed by fire.  Insurance to the amount of 85,200 was recoverad.
Bords were issued, and the contract for the present building was let
to Jumes 1, Deyilen, whoeomplatel itin the full of U368, atn cost of
$6,000, From time to time. improvements have been made that have
inioreased the total cost to about 810,000, Tu the summer of 1880,
an addition was made to the building on the west side.  The new jail
was erected in the spring of 1870, at a cost of 83,000, and is a eradit
to the county.

IOWA TOWNSHIP.

This township received its name from the fiet of there beinga
gibe of Indigns bearing that name living in the township at the time
of its first organization. Tt is one of the ariginal five tawnships into
which the county was divided at the fist sitting of the County Board,
September 1, 1855.

"Phe boundaries of Towa Township were fixed av that date as fol-
lows: * Commencing at the northwest corner of the county, theuco
southeast slong the Missouri River to the second range line, hetween
twenty and twenty-one, through Doniphan ou the south by the - Kicka-
pou Line,' and on the west by the eounty line.”

Mr. Jesse Lewis was the fiest Justice of the Peitce appointed, and
James Poteel the first Constable for this tawaship.

The first election in the township was held on the first Monday
in October, 1855, at the honsa of William Boeler, st Town Point, On
the 16thday of Septomber, 1836, the County Board cansed one and one-
half (13) miles 10 bo taken from Towa Township and attached to Wash.
ington Township.

On the 20th day of October, 1856, the eastern honndary of Tows
Township was changed and moved one-half mile farther west.

Ou the 21st of June, 1859, nchange was made, and the present
boundary was fixed us follows: ** Commencing at the northwest cor-
ner of the connty ; thenee down the Misspuri River to Seotion 10, in-
cluding Section 10 thence south to the southeust corner of Siotion
34, Town 2, Range 20 ; thenee west to the eounty line, thense north
to place of beginning.”

The sutfice of this township is composed of a larze degeoe of
luff land, especinlly that portion tounded by the Missonri River.

| Tn the southwestern portion of the township may by founil somo of the

best land in the county, and is well watered by the following streams :
Wolf River, the lwgest steenm in the eonuty, enters this tawn-
ship in the southwestorn part, Howing north, empties in the Missouri
River dhout six miles below Towa Point, Oodar Creek, the next
stream in size, rises from numerous springs in the western part of the
township; flows notth and east, and empties in the Missouri River
near Town Point. This stream dwains about fifty square miles of terri-
tory in the western part of the township. There nre several other
streams of minor importanee, which serve to supply the thwnship with
good stovk water the greater portion of the yenr.

The first settler who located, not I\Ii]}' in the 'f\'\\'n-ship, but the
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fiest in the castern part of the State, was the Rev. 8. M. Irvin, who
came ns o missionary to the lowa Indians sometime in Muy, 1887,
He located two miles east of what'is now known as Highland, ata point
afterward known as the ©* Old Mission."’

The country then, to use a phrase of 4 certain orator, was a
** howling willerness,” but now, how different! This portion of the
State, county and township owes much of its present prosperity to
Mr. Irvin.

Among those who followed after the country was opened for set-
tlement in 1855 were Gen. W. Bayless and family, J. A. Kennedy,
A, J, Minier, the Martin brothers, James and Thomas, R. H. Davis,
Chuarles Blakely, H. M. Sharp, W. [L. Forbes, L. Prichard, the For-

others, whose names, for want of space, have been omitted.

The town of Town Point was located about this time, 1855,
White Cloud and Highland during the two following years,

Mail fucilities in 1837—38 were everything else but facilities, At
that time, Mr. 8. M. Trvin obtained his mail at Liberty, Clay County,
Ma., 100 miles distant, it taking about o week to make the trip. In
1840, a post office was established at St. Joseph, Mo., where the set-
tlers abtained their mail until a post office was established at Towa
Point in 1855, In 1858, a post office was established at Highland,
E. M. Hubbard being appointed Postmaster. This office was wade o
s distributing point " for all mail that passed into Nebraska south of
the Platte River, inclading Fort Kearney, Plattsmonth, Pawnee City
and intermediate points. This was at a time when the old-faghioned
four or six horse stages were in vogue.

The first religious services in the connty were held in this town-
ship, ut the O1d Mission, in 1837, Rev. 8. M. Irvin officiating. From
then up to the present time, the light on the ahar thus erected has
never been extinguished.  Fornearly half a century, and during those
dark and dreary days when this State wasknown throughout the land
us ** Bleeding Kansas,” and through st sunshine and shadow,” these
services have been held without u single ease on record of a cessation.
The first school taught was one started at the Mission, soon
after the arrival of Rev. Irvin and others, Messrs. Lrvin and Hamil-
ton. Miss Walton and Mrs. Fullerton were among the teachers. A
school meeting was held July 23, 1858, in the Martin neighborhood,
and & school hoard elected. They called their district ** No, 1" Since
then the district has been reorganized, the present number being fifty-
six. At the firstmeeting, the following officers were clected : 8. Prich-
ard, Director; M. M. Sharp, Secretary, and G. L. Martin, Treasurer.
Johin F. Sparks taught the first term of the school. A log building
was ereated on Section 12, Town 2, Range 19, and used for school
purposes, This stood on the site of the present sehool house, in district
No. 6.

Probably the first marringe in this township was that of J. Potetts
to Naney Baneroft, by the Rev. Irvin—the ceremony taking place at
a point on the Wolf River, near the Mission. .

The first birth in this township was probably that of Daniel Van-
derslice, u son of D). Vanderslice, who was born two miles east of what
is now known ns Highlund, in 1854, He died in the ** flower of his
youth,” being but nineteen years of age.

Prabably the first death in the township was that of Mrs, Com-
stock, the wife of an emigrant, en rowle for Cu]il’nrnia.. Her death
ogeurred st a point near the Ol Mission, in 1852 or 1833, ‘ About
the second was that of o young man, name unknown, who died and
was buried at Tows Point in 1853,

Towa township is the largest in area, and the most {tullstflj' popu-
luted in the county. It contains in the neighborhood of 52,480 acres,
o eighty-two sgquare miles.

Products are principally corn and wheat; s
is ulso raised. Some of the richest farmers in the county reside in
this township. J

Towa Township possesses the only mineral spring i the county,

v great deal of fruit

man brothers, John Pemberton, W. Bealer, Pryor Plank and many |
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or this part of the State. This spring bears evidences of having been
discovered at u very early dute—the hank in close proximity to the
springs containing broken pieces of pottery, arrow-heads, and other
relies, doubtless formerly nsed by the Tndians.

Within twenty yards of the spring a mound has been found.
supposed to have been buoilt by the ** Mound Builders.™

The mineral qualities of the spring were fieat diseovered in 1357,
by William Plank, who entered a elnim, that embraced the spring, on
the north half of the northenst quarter of Seetion 16, Township 2,
Range 20. They were not utilized until lately—summer of 1881,

WHITE CLOUD,

Ln 1856, Messes, Utt & Spanlding Iaid onta portion of what is
now known ag White Cloud, st a point on the west bank of the Mis-
souri River, about two miles south of the State line. In 1857, a
stock company of thirty members was organized, their capital stock
being §45,000.  Officors:  James Foster, President: W. J. Gatling.
Seeretary, and Di. W. H. Peter, Treasurer.

Owing to not having a perfect title to the town site, the town did
not moke much of a start until after the * La d Sales' of 1857,
when the title was perfected by the company pur assing the land. A
public sale was held on July 4, 1857, at which there was an attend-
ance of 2,000 people, and $28,794 was the result of the sale. Four
steamers were there, one from St. Louis. also a band from St. Joseph.
A grand barbecne was served, and prominent orators culogized our
great country, and White Clond in particular. We venture the asser-
tion that July 4, 1857, is still remembered by the old settlers who
participated, as the gala day of that time.

The town was named after Ma-hush-kah, or White Cloud, a cele-
Urated ohiof of the Towa tribe of Indisns, who died in this county,
near the Missouri, a few years before the town was loeated.

About the first building erected on the town site was o frame
house put up by a Mr. Bird, and used for a store, in which a general
stock of goods was kept. This building was erected on land now
owned by Mr. Palmer. The next building was erected on Main
street, and owned by Briggs & Jennings. 1In 1856 or 1857, Shreve
& Macky put up a frame building, and used it for a drug store, it being
the first in the place. This building was afterward replaced by brick.

In the spring of 1857, E. Spaulding put up two small one and
one-half story frame buildings, which were used for a hotel.  'These
two buildings were erected on the site of the present City Hotel. In
1858, the frame buildings were destroyed. and the present City Hotel
was built by Messrs. Utt & Spanlding.

The first schoolbouse, a frame building, was erected in 1838 or
1859, This building being buraed down shortly afterward, it was re-
placed by one of brick, and used for chureh purposes; it is now. used
us a colored school.

In 1857, a Methodist Episcopal Church was organized by Rev.
Grabam.

De. T. O, Shreve—from whose brother the eity of Shrevesport,
Louisisna, received its name—located as o physician in 1856 or 1857.

In 1857, B. E. Maveum, a Virginian, now of Denver, Colo., was
the first to represent the profession of law.

The ity of White Cloud may boast of having one of the finest
sehool I:uilll-ings in the county, About 1874, o fine brick edifice wus
erected at o cost of about $12,0005 is heated by furnnces and nicely

furnished. whl, :
One of the most important landmarks of White Clond is the

STHEAM FERRY,

| now owned and operated by John H. Lynds. On the 18th of Aprl,

1855, Joshua Taylor, having purchased a small gide-wheel steamer,
sturted from Wellsville, Ohia, with the intention of eslnhiushmg_:x
ferry at White Cloud. Arriving at this point on the 34 of June, in

| the shme year, he entered into partnership with & Mr. Moore, and

"
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named the boat **White Cloud.”  Messrs, Taylor & Moore operated the
boat until the spring of 1862, when they sold it to (. Bailey, Mr.
Bailey operating the boat until 1867, when it met with an accident,
common to Missouri River boats, and was so badly wrecked as to
render it useless for further service. Some time in May, 1868,
Messrs. Bailey & Noyes built a new boat, giving it the same name 18
its predecessor. Some time in May, 1871, John I Lynds h_mf{_:ht a
one-fourth interest, and took charge of it. In the fall of 1878, Mr.
Lynds sold a one-half interest—hie having previcusly bought, l'lrmn time
to time, the remaining interests—to David Bailey. In 1881, Mr.
Lynds bought back his one-lalf interest, thus making him sole
owner up to the present time.

White Cloud, being situated on the western bend of the Missourj |

River, is the most westerly of all the Kansas River towns, and is
twelve miles farther west than Atchison. The distance to Troy, the
county seat of Doniphan County, is twenty miles ; to, Hiawatha, the
county seat of Brown County, sixteen miles; to St. Joseph, Mo,
thirty-two miles: to Atchison, Kan., thirty-five miles; to Leaven-
worth, sixty miles; to Topeka, the capitsl of the State, about eighty
miles.

The Fowa Indians still have a reservation adjoining the town on
the north, extending above the Nebraska State line, and six or eight
miles to the westward.

White Cloud is in the midst of the best agrienltural and stack-
raising sections on the Missouri River, and will. no doubt, make one of
the best'towns in that section,

There ure, at present, the following number of business enter- :

prises, professions and trades represented :

General stores, four; grocery stores, two; drug stores, three;

hardware stoves, one; farniture, one; restaurants, two; hotels, two;
livery stables, one: burber shops, one; grist-mills, one; saw-mills,
one ; bootand shoe shops, two; blacksmith shops, two; jewelry stores,
one; billined halls. one; harness shops, one; wagon shops, one; meat
market, one; printing office (Review), one: millinery stores, one;
carpenters, two; lawyers, two; physicians, four; painters, three;

e T |
TOWA  POINT.

~In 1854, 4 treaty was made with the Towa [ndians by the United
States Government, in which the Indians transforred a greator portion
of their Tand, for certain considerations, to the Government, 'This

land was sold to the highest bidder, with the exception of a * float " of

320 acres, loeated at Wolf Grove, which was given to the United
States Indian Interpreter, J. B. Roy, also another * float " of 160
acres, to the Rev. 8. M. Trvin, of the Board of Missions, said * float ™'
to be located at any point in the reserye.

In the spring of 1855, H. W. Forman, J. N. Forman and John
8. Pemberton purehased this tract of 320 acres of United States In-
terpeter Roy, and traded it to 8. M. Irvin for his *float,” which he
located where the town of Towa Point now stands, and laid off the
town, thus hecoming its original founders.

A building was erected in 1854, by John Pemberton, and used ns
a dwelling.  Oune of the Formans followed with a building of the
same kind. . Both buildings are still standing,

A hotel was built in 1855, by Boliver Beelor,

Messrs. Bowler & Williams built and operated a store in 1855,
and were among the first merchants. These were immediate] y followed
by X. K. Stout, and Richard Leach who was Joined by B. B. Leach
in 1856,

Among others who came about that time were Messrs. Brown,
White, Glynn, Dutton and Tracy.

Thie first drug store was owned hy Leigh & Brown in 1856, who
erected a building for that purpose. In 1863, the building was
destroyed by fire, also the entire block in which the huilding was situated,

The first meat market was estublished in 1856, by Messrs, Burk-
halter & Hobbs. -

KANSAS.

Formsn & Pemberton built o saw-mill in 1855. In 1857, the
snine firm built the Lows Point Mills, now awned and operated by Ball
& Brother.

John White, the first blncksmith, located in 1855,

In the spring of 1856, Dr. Leigh located in lowa Point ns the
firat i-hy:ijv.illll. e, |,ul|;_!_. of the Eeleetic School, followed soon after.

In 1857 the firat church edifice built in the i'l"l".t‘ wns erccted b'\?
the Presbyterians, through the efforts of 3. M. Ivvin and Rev. Me-
Kane. The building is still standing and wsed for devotional ox-
ercises,

The Methodists had an organization about that time, and held
meetings in what was then known as the Freemasons' Hall,

An orgnnization of the Baptist persassion held services in the
Preshyterian Church, Rev. Allward officinting.

In 1855 n post office was established with J. 8. Pemberton s
Postmaster.  All the mail received at that time the Postmastar
carrvied in hig hat,

As the business population inereased, trade built up, until in 1858
Lowi Point had the largest business of any eity in the State. A num-
ber of *wholesale " houses were in successful nperation at that time,
their trade extending to Marysville on the west, and Kennekuk on the
south. At this time, nenrly every business enterprize and trade was
represented, and the town was second only in population to Lenven-
worth, and far ahead of it in trade, More stofes and buildings were
needed: pine lumber sold wt $50 per thousand, and searee at that;
therefore, brick was looked upon as the only substitiute. Jaseph
Slickmans, * undoubtedly a brick.” started o brick-yard and farnished
material for the new grist-mill and many of the public buildings ‘and
private residences.

In 1858, a steam ferry wus built by s stock company of citizens,
organized by H. Forman, who became its President.

The first lodge of Good Templars organized in the State was
instituted here in 1856, ‘

In 1857, Smithton Lodge. No. 1, was moved from the ageney to
Iowa Point. A hall was built on the highest elevation in the city
limits, which wus nsed by them until the Lodge was removed to High-
land.

In 1857, a negro sluve was sold av privite sale, this bieing the
first and sbout the only vase of the kind that ever occurred in the
State.

[n 1857, & hotel was built at & costof §10,000. and was destroyed
by fire in 1860, ¢

One of the early settlers wns the Hon. R. M. Williams, present
State Senutor, who now resides at White Cloud. He was a meniber
of the firm of Beeler & Wil]iums-,, who, at that time, did an extensive
wholesale business,

About the beginning of the great rebellion, in 1862, u devastat-
ing fire occurred, destroying all the buildings on the east side of Gom-
mercial street, up to Main, with two exceptions, The buildings lnve
never been rebuilt.

In 1862, a compuny of the Eighth Kansas was stationed at this

| point. In 1861, & company of militis, under the command of €. JJ.

Beeler, was organized.

As the eountry improved, other plnees were located, whiel hud
better facilities, and a better chanee to sustain the healthy and solid
growth that characterizes some of the towns of Doniphan County to-
duy,  Towa Point began to lose ground, and was compelled to yield to

| the superior advantages of other places.  The town still retainz its pro-

pettion of the grain tade—supporting a large three-story grist mill,
soveral general stores und other trades and professions in proportion.

HIGHLAND,

o the fall of 1857, Gen. Bayless, Rev. 8. M. Irvin, Rev. W, J.
Rice, H. N. Seaworth and J. P. Johnson Inid out the southeast

quarter of Section 22, and the southwest quarter of Section 28, Town
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2, Range 19, in town lots, thus forming the present town site of High-
land.

About this time, Messrs, Spinning, O'Neil, Miner, Hubbard,
Campbell and Zeeler located here.

The first buildings erected were built by the Town Company, and
consisted of three small frame buildings, one of which is still standing,
and is used as a dwelling. In the spring of 1858, Messrs. Campbell
and Bonsteele followed with two frame buildings, which wers ovcupied
a8 dwellings.  Inthe same year, Messrs. Stevenson & Deano opened
n store with a general stock, and ocenpied a building on the site of the
present livery stable.

"The first hotel or inn was opened in the fall of 1857 by E. M. |

Hubbard, and consisted of fourteen rooms.

The first drug stove was located over Miner & Irvin's store, and
owned by Dr. J. Leigh.

Dr. Palmer; of the Homeopathic School, who located in High-
land, in 1858, was the first physician.

A. Snyder located in 1837, as the first carpenter und joiner.

The first blacksmith was & Mr. Baldwin, who located in 1858,

About 1865, the first meat market was established by James
Shaffer. [

The first school was taught by W. MeGookin, of Princeton, Ohio,
in n small frame building that was moved up from the Mission. This
huilding stood on the present site of Hammond's store,

The first Sunday school was organized under the auspices of the
Presbyterians, E. M. Hubbard being the Superintendent. Services
were held in a log building on the town site.

In the month of July, 1861, Maj. Herrick organized Company
A, Seventh Kunsas Cavalry—better known at that time as the = Kan.
sus Jayhawkers"—in front of Bailey's store. The company wus
ngmpmod of twenty-three members, among whom muy be found the
following : H. M. Camphell, 8. S. Campbell, L. Utt, 8. Fox, J. .
Wilde, M. Davidson, B. Scrofford and G. Bird.

This company passed through eighty-five engagements and came
out at the close of the war without & serateh (7). The regiment was
mustered out of service with honorable mention September 29, 1865,

Highland has four religions organizations, as follows: One Pres. |

bytevian, who oeeupy the University Chapel: one Methodist, who
ageupy a frame edifice ; one Congregational, who occupy # brick edi-
fice; one eolored Methodist, who have no building.

The [ollowing business enterprises are represented at present :
Genernl stores, 4; hardware, 2; restaurants, 2 ; drug stores, 2; boot
und shoe stores, 2; millinery establishments, 2; bank, 1; hotel, 1;
livery stable, 1; barber shiop. 1; blacksmith shops, 3.

HIGHLAND STATION.

Highland Station is a lively little burg on the Atchison & Neb-
paska Railraad, four miles east of Highland. Was located in the winter
of 1860-70, by a company composed of J. P. Johnson, B. F. Her-
ring, J. A, Kennedy and G. W. Glick, of Atchison, Kansas, who
represented the Atchison & Nebraska Railroad Company.  The town
site, as laid out, i5 the sonthwest quarter of the southwest guarter of
Seotion 21, Town 2, Range 20, and was formerly the property of J. A,
Kennedy.

J. A. Kennedy and B, F. Harving opened the first atore, and
kept a general stock.

The following business enterprises followed in the order men-
mentioned during the same yesr—1870; A blacksmith shop; a hotel,
kept by J. Brooning ; a store with a general stook, owned by L. Deck-
inger.

In 1870, the post office was established, with J. A. Kennedy as
Postmuster ; during this year the depot was built. '

In 1881, the Christinn people of Highland Station, fei:ilmg the
nend of o place of worship, united in erecting an edifice. which was
ealled the Union Church.

FANNING.

This is & station on the Atohison & Nebraska Railroad, located
in the spring of 1870 by Jesse Reed and James Bradley.

The first building evected on the town site was o blacksmith shop,
built some time in 1870,

The post office was established in the same yeir, with James Brad-
ley as Postmaster, who is the present incumbent.

A stone grist-mill was built by William Hedrick in 1872,

The neighborhood of Fanning is composed principally of Catho-
lies. [In 1879, they built a large church edifice, which is a eredit to the
place.

The Atchison & Nebraska depot was built in 1870.

The population of Fanning is estimated &t abont forty souls.

WOLF RIVER TOWNSHIP

This township received jts name from the viver of that name
which flows through its confines. The river received its name from a
celebruted Indian chief of the Sue tribe, who, previous to the open-
ing of the eountry for settlement, owned a lnege tract of land in this
neighborhood.

This township is one of the original five townships into which
the county was divided, and wus organized on the first dyy of Septem-
ber, 1355, and its boundaries fixed as follows: - Bol.i_hd.e.'& on thé north
biy Towas Township; on the east by the second range ling, running
north and sonth, between Ranges 20 and 21, through Doniphan ; on
the sonth by Wayne Township; and on the west by the county line.
A. (). Rice and Mr. Gillmore were appointed Justices of the Pence,
and Williom Lewis, Constable. |

The first eleotion in this township was held at the house of Milton
Ute, at what was then known as the Sac Village, on the first Monduay
in Oectober, 1855."

On September 16, 1356, the Connty Board cansed one and one-
half (11) miles to be taken from the eastern boundury of this township
and attached to Washington Township,

On June 21, 1859, a change was made, aud the boundary was
fixed ns follows: Commencing at the northwest corner of Section 6,

[ Town 3. Runge 19; thence east to the northeast corner of Section
| 8, Town 3, Range 20: thence south to the southcast corner of

Section 10, Town 4, Range 20; thenee west four miles; thence
south four miles to the county line; thenee west to the southwest coruer
of the county ; thence north to place of beginning,

On July 10, 1878, all thav part of Wolf River Township then
Iying in the Congressional Town 4, Range 19, was re-organized
into what is now known as Union Tawnship, nud the boundary of Wolf
River Township was changed nccordingly.

The surfinee of Wolf River Township is principally rolling. | bigh,
praivie land, lying in gentle swells, excepting that part through which
the Wolf River flows, where it bacsmes more broken and Blaffy. Wolf
River is the principal stream, nat only in the towaship, but in the
county 3 flows from the west nearly due case for about five miles. then
m:;ki:}g an abrapt detour to the northeast: leaves the township on
Section 4, Town 8. Range 20. The stream is feld by numerous
tributaries, which serve to drain a lnrge ares of the township.

It has been impossible to nsoertain who was the fiest notual settler
in the township, bat during the winter of 1834, P Hooper, A, Q
Rice,and Messrs. Brown and Descon settlol on the Wolf River, ubove
where Severance
enter claims in the township.

During the next year, the following persons eamp in and vook up
claims: 8, Lambert; N. Springer, €. C. Clouch, C. }IiHl‘uutu. N.
Bennett, J. Springer, J. Praul, U Dittesmore, (. Dittesmore, E. Shock-
ey, M. Utt, and many others. . . whw

Phe frst mavvinge ceremony taking place in the L-n':nslup wils
that of John Cammings and Caroline Hooper. n danghter of one of the

now stands, put up log eabins, and were the first to

J
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Th&m being no minister in the nsighborhood at that ' There gre av present the following boyiness anurpﬂsm, trades,
remang wis pnrformﬂﬂ by Siuire Rice, | professions and sotieties rveprosented:
fﬂm pm in the anmhlp General stores, four; drug stores, twog Inmnm-ahqp* one; black-
smith ghops, two; elevators, two; hotels, two wagon anid oarris _'Ilillh,
one; boot and shpe store, one ; restaarant, ona.lmhtym!, ne m
morket, one ; hardware store, one; furniturs store, one s -
onej; livery stables, two; grist-will, one; agricaltural
'bu"bar-shqp; one; lwwyers, two: physicians, thres: §
: builder, one; plasterer, one; stone mmn,-m;
ptmke one; und a lodge of Odd Follows. g

b place, waid | s som ki thie

“‘d‘ !"@m’hﬂl ﬂ'mh lll-\"a m'gumuuona, the "l‘h- e hulu wis first giroged ';ql.uﬂm
ﬂtll' - Poat Oflue Dogurtment, but s 1elised, an sscout Belmg eI
' edifice in the place. | i S o Dot bt ) s L u:mm'm SRS el A\
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it ta the 8t. Joe & Western Railroad Company, suid COmMpany agree-
ing to build a depot and side track,

Although the town was loid off in 1369, na buildings were erected
until two years later, when A, Bennett built o grain warehouse, which

he used for storing grain, and alse for stors purppses.  During the l

sume year, the Evangelical, Lutheran denomination built a parsonage ;
this was followed by the residence of A. Bennett,

In 1874, P. Welton and the Havdy brothers opened general
stares, nnd operated them' until 1878, when they were burned down.
The Hardy brothers vebuilt soon after.

The post office was established in about 1878 1. W. Bennett,
Pastmaster.

st Norway is locatod in the midst of a Seandinavian neighbor-

where, being within the confines of Ludependence Greek and branches,
it becomes more broken.

Although no large streams flow throngh this township, it is well
watered by small crecks and springs; thers being seavoely o section of
land in the township but what living water muy be found at all seasons
of the year.  Well water can beobtained at depths: from thirty tosixty
feet. :

It has been demonsteated by the farmers of this township that the
high pruirie Jand is equal in many vespects to the bottom lands, Some
of the best farms in the county may be faand in this township.

The twn principal products are wheat and vorn,  Fn regavi to

| stock, Union Township claims to produce more swine than any other

hopd—the greater portion of whom are prasperons farmers—and i5 a0 |

good shipping point. A prain warehouse, owned nnd operated by A.
Bennett. and one_general store comprize its business enterprises.

RYAN'S STATION.

Ryan's Station in 1869 was the terminus of the 8t Joe &
Western Railroad for a short time, and daring that interval efforts
were mude to establish o tawn.

The oviginal town site as laid off by Jewell Ryan, from whom the
town received its nnme; in November, 1869, consisted of sbout thirty
agres.  The first buildings were put up in December of the same year.
8. L. Ryan and J. O'Niel built a store and kept a general stock in
danunry, 1870, Tn 1872, 8. L. Ryan built another store, which was
aperated until 1875, -

Tho town of Severance, being only one mile west, and possessing
better advantages, soon took all the trade from this point, and in 1875
the station was discontinued and malde a flag station.

ENION TOWNSHITP.

Previous to the organization of this twnship, July 10, 1878, a
meeting was held by representatives from the two great political par-
vigs of the day, in which the nume * Union ™ was agreed upon as
fitting appellation for the township. The Republicans wero represented
by R. P. Slulsky, William Denton, W. B. Gorden. D. W, Edwards
and J. L. Blair: A, W, Walters, William Gillen. B. Haney and 8.
Iluys representing the Democratic party.

A petition was presented to the County Commissioners on the 4th
diy of June, T8TS, * for setting off and organizing a new township: the
same to be set off from Wolf' River Township, in said connty, and
whereas u petition has been presented to said Board of County Com-
missioners; signed by more than fifty electors residing within the limits
of eaid proposed new township, and it appearing by said petition that
snid proposed new township embraces within its limits territory equal
to it least thirty (30} square miles, and at least two hundred (200) in-
habitants within the lands thereof; saiil new township being deseribed
and bounded by * metes snd bounds * s follows, to-wit:

ALl the territory or tract of land in Walf River Township, Doni-
phan County, Kansas, known as Congressional Townehip fonr (4)
south, and Range nineteen [ 1) east, containing six square miles, more
or less, = o * and that said new township be
known by the nume of Union Township, and that the first election of
officers for eaid township be held at the schoolhouse, situsted on the
sauthenst eorner of Section sixteen (18], Town four (4] south, Runge
nineteen (19) east, in said township, on Tuesday suceeeding the frst
Mondny in November, 1878, at which time the proper officers of said
l"\\'llhll.ili sliall ke elected, and said sehoolhouse shall be known, named
iind -'lt:-‘ii‘,'zlmh‘-i for election purposes, ns Union Preeinet.”

Thu}-t-rwuship contains thirty-six squire miles, or 23,040 ncres,
abont 22,000 neres of which iseorn cultivated to the lighest degree.

The surfuce of this township is all upland, rolling prairie, exept:
ing, perhaps.n mile strip on the eastern hounilnry of the township,

|
|

township of its size in the caunty.

* Surface conl ' hns been diseoversd on the southeast quarter of
Seetion 10, and on'the northwest (puarter of Section 84, but has not
bieen mined tow great extent. Tn 1880, offorts were made to organize
w stock company for the purpose of developing the minersl resources of
the township, but as the scheme lacked the necessary enthusiasm and
co-operation of the people, the idea was abandoned,

The early history of Union Township being sn closely identified
with that of Wolf River, it will be unnecessary to ropeat what hus been
given in conneetion with Walf River Township.

Iu  Union Township there are three religious organizations—aone
Methodist Episcopal Chareh, locatod on Section 4, and two Cutholie
Churehes, located on Sectivns 12 and 20 respectively.

. NORMANVILLE,

A post oflice and vading point locuted in 1801, is situnted on the
northwest quarter of Section 20, and was named Normanville 1 honor
of its first Postmaater, John Normil. This is the first and enly post-
office in the township,

WAYNE TOWNSHIP,

This township received its name from *“Mad Anthony Wayne,”
of Revolutionury fame, but was snggested by A, L Denning, one
of the first County Commissioners, who came from Wayne Town-
ship, Missonri.

It was one of the five original townships into which the county
was divided at the first meeting of the Connty Commissioners, Sep-
tember 1, 1855, and its boundaries wore fixed as follows : = Bounded
on the north by Washington, to the southwest quarter of said town-
ship; thenee novth two (2) miles to the town line dividing Towns 3
and 4z thence west on said line to Brown County; on the west by
Brown County, on the south by Atehison County, and on the east by
Washington Township and the Missouri River.”

Jo A Van Arsdule and William Shaw were appointed Justices of
the Pesece, und Joshua Sarmaers, Constable

The first eleetion in this township was held on the first Monday
in October, 1855, at John A. Forman's hotel, in the town of Doni-
phan, there being but one voting precinet allowed in each township.

On the 21st day of October, 1856, the east boundaries of this
township were changed so as to admit Marion Township.

On the 21st of June, 1859, 4 change was made and the prosent
boundary wus fixed as follows: Commenging at the northeast corner
of Seetion 18, Town 4, Runge 20 ; thence east to the northwest eor-
ner of Section 14, Town 4, Range 20 ¢ thenee north two miles ; thence
enst to the northeast corner of Section 3, Town 4, Range 21 ; thence
sonth to the northwest corner of Section 23; thence esst one mile s
thenee south to the Missouri River; thence with the said river to the
Atohison County line; thence with line to sonthwest eorner of See-
tion 31, Town l'. Range 20, thence north to place of beginning.

The surface of Wayne Township, in the main, is rough and
LU |rl:1f|'\"'—.*.-'m-ui:lﬂ_\,' the southesstern part. The surfuce llequ__'_ Inde-
E'“"'&"}“" t'ru.(-k is exceedingly rough and rocky. Wayne Township
shows more rock fovmations than any other township in the county.







Doniphwn is distant from Si. Joseph, twenly miles; from Topeha, fifty railos;
from Lawrence, sixty miles: from Manhattan, eighty miles: from Town Point, twenty-
tiws miles, by lund, while it is ninety-five miles 40 the same plnce by water.  This s
OW g to the great bend of the river which extends into the heart of the countiy.

* . - =

Doniphin, by the last cénsus, had o population of 1,500 souls,  Wilhin the
Pkt wiowon manths, 100 houses have been srected here.  Contrucis hnve nlrendy heen
givon out for the constriction of sixty houses in the spring.  Provisions have heen
miiln for the manufetire of 200000 brisk within the wext tva tmuntha, wnd 2000,
U feet of lamber provided for,

L] - - - - - - -

At the beginning of the great rebellion the town declined so
rapidly that in 1861 there was not one store in the place, In 1862-
08, she roused from her lethargy, and did a good business. Among
the improvements during the year 1863 was the erection of a lavge
brick warchouse, nsed for an agricnltural and implement depot.

A fine brick schoolhouse was built in 1873, at a cost of $8,000.

Doniphan has the following husiness enterprises, professions, trades
and societies:

General stores, three; drag stores. two; billiard halls, two;
wagon shops, one; blacksmith shops, two; wholesale liquor house,
one ; meat market, one; hotels, one; feed stables, one; millinery and
dressmaking establishments, three ; shoe sliops; one; physieians, three:
chfpenters, three; stone masons, three ; plasterers, one; coopers, one;
suryeyors, one; chureh organizations, three ; seeret societies, two.

GEARY OITY.

Geary City received its name from Gov. J. W. Geary, who was
Guovernor of the Tsrrirury at that time, and was located early in the
spring of 1857 by an assouiation organized in Leavensworth, Kan.

The original town site consisted of about two hundred and sixty
aeres, comprising the southeast quarter of Section 26, also a fractional
part of Section 27.  The nssoviation bought the land of C. Liewis, who
in the summer of 1857, lnid out an addition on a fractional quarter of
Section 85, and named it the ** Lewis- Addition ” or ** South Geary."

The first building erected on the addition was that of a Mr.
Hoestetter, who built a two-story frame structure and wsed it as a
dwelling.

(. Lewis erccted the first stove in * South Geary,” and located it
on the levee.

Shortly after, the foundations for a large brewery were laid, but
the building was never completed.

In 1857, shortly after the location of the town, the association got
into a difficulty with W. Schudy, in regard to u fractional piece of land
that Sehudy claimed to have pre-empted under the laws of the Terri-
tory. ‘Lhe case was brought into the ourt, and the association finding
that their speculation had proved a failure, abandoned the enterprise,

The first actual building was a log honse built in 1854, and
nsed as o saloon.

In the spring of 1857, the association erscted the first building on
tlie town site, on the corner of Second and Cottonwood streets, and
under the management of A. Skinner, it was used asn hotel.

The next building was the office of the Geary City Era. The
first store ereeted in Geary City proper was bailt on the lovee or Water
street, and ocoupied by Mr, Olutter. Porter & Cooper followed with o
grocery store. ‘Phe next business enterprise was that of J. L.' Roundy,
who established n lnvge furniture store. All these buildings were
ereted on the levee, snd about the same time, March, 1857.

Dr. F. Grubb, of Philadelphis, Penn., was the first to represent
the modical fraternity.

Jumes MeCahon, who afterward took a prominent part in Kansas
State affairs, Tocated in 1857 ns the first lawyer.

The first religious services were held at an early date Ly the Rev,

B. F. Bowman. !
At an carly date, Mossrs, Frick & Grubh erécted a circular saw-
will, und did a good bosiness The mill wns <1Fil.‘l'-'ll{'|! until 1869, when

it was moved to Doniphan,  About the same time, Messrs, Flickenger
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& Langdon built what was then called a * muley,” or upright saw-mill,
which was operated until 1859, and then torn down.

The post office was established in the fall of 1857, J. L. Roundy,
Postmaster.

In 1860, Messis, Frick & Frauklin erected a grist-mill,

The first municipal election was held in 1458,

BRENNER.

A station on the Atehison & Nebraska Railroad was located by
the railroad company in 1872, the depor being the first building.

The post office ‘was established in 1874, Jumes MeDaniel, Post-
master,

Harvy Neshit was the first depot agent.

Brenner is u good shipping-point for graiv wnd stock. Not less
than $150,000 worth of produce was shipped during the year 1881,

WASHINGTON TOWNSHIP,

This township was organized September 1, 1855, and no true
Americun needs be told for whom it was named; it stands selft
explained in the light of to-day, and the misty future will not tend to
make its origin less lucid. '

It isone of the five oviginal townships, into which the county
was divided, at the first sitting of the County Commissioners, and its
boundaries at that time were fixed s follows =

** Bounded on the north by Burr Oak Township: on the east by
the Missouri River; on the south by the second line, dividing town-
ships 3 and 4, and on the west by the second range line running north
and south through Atchison.”  Albert Head and F. Mahan were ap-
pointed Justices of the Penes, and I J. Tohnson, Oonstable.

The fiest election in this township was held on the first Monday
in October, 1855, *at the houseof M. F. Moss, nenr Milton Bry-
ant's.”” On the 16th duy of September, 1856, achange was made in the
township. and its boundary was fixed as follows:  Commencing at the
northeast corner of Section 12, Town 2, Range 21; thence sonth on
town line between 21 and 22 to the soatheast corner of Section 12,
Town 4, Range 21 ; thence west six miles to the southwest carner of
Section T, Town 4, Range 21; thence north two miles, thence
west one and o half miles, thence north to the Missouri River,
thenee east with said river to place of beginning. _

O the 20th of October, 1856, the County Board caused ong half
mile to be taken from the eastern purt of Towa and Wolf River Town-
ships, and attached fo Washington Township. On the 21st day of
October, 1858, the boundaries of Washington Township were changed
and fixed as follows: * Commeneing at the southwest corner of Burr
Osk Township, as then established; thence south on range line be-
tween Ranges 21 und 22 to within one mile of the town line between
Towns 3 and 4; thence enst to Peter's Oreck : thenve down Peter’s
Creek to the Missonri River: thence north with said river to the
south line of Burr Oak Township; thence west to place of beginning.”

On the 21st day of June, 1859, a change was made and the pres-
ent boundaries were fixed as follows: € Commencing at the north-
west corner of Section 12, Tewn 3, Range 21: thence enst to the
Missouri River; thenee with said river to the southwest corner of See.
tion 88, Town 8, Runge 22 ; thence north one wile; thence west to
the sonthwest sornce of Section 25, Town 3, Range 213 thence north
Ly I}i:mu of beginuing."

The surfiave of the township is quite broken. the best portion be-
ing found on Peter’s Creek, As the entire enstern and a luvgo pare of
the southern houndary is the Missouri River, nothing more ean be
expected than rongh and bluffy land after leaving the ** first bottom.™
The Missouri River bottoms, lowever, are very productive.

"The township is wateved principally by Peter’s Creek and its
tributaries. Peter’s Oreck enters the township from the swest, on See-
tion 24, and flows east by south for about three miles, when it makes
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Roseport Town Company. The original town site consisted of 160
acres—the northeast quarter of Seotion 24, Town 3, Range 23. The
town wis originally called Roseport, in honor of the prineipal member
of the gompuny.. This company bought the land of a Mr. Thom pson
for about $10,000,

The first building on the town site was a log structure, erccted by
My, Thompson. which he used as a dwelling.  In the full of 1856,
Mr. Rose crected a small frume building, which' was used as n store,
in which he kept o generul stock.  About the next business enterprise
was that of A. Disque, who erected the thin building on the town
site. In the spring of 1857, wark on the Great Westorn Hotel was
comwenced by the Roseport Town Company, and completed in the
fall of the same yeur, by the Elwood Town Company. The hotel,
when completed, was a fine, large three-story building, with seventy-
five rooms, and was under the management of 8. Webster. The first
blacksmith was Henry Poor, who stayed but s short time.  Ho after-
wards went to, Marysville, this State, and beeoming involved in un
amorous affair with an officer of the army, then encamped there,
killed him.  To save himself from the vengeance of the soldiers, he
flad the country.

In May or June of 1857, the Elwood Town Company biought out
the right, title and interest of the Roseport Town Company, and
added to the original town site o tract of 480 acres, which comprised
the three remuining quarters of the section, paying for the whole tract
of 640 acres $40,000. The name Ruoseport was changed to Elwood,
and o post office was established in the spring of 1858, Jumes P.
Brace being the first Postmater.

J. E. Dryden located here in 1857, as the first carpenter.
He built the Great Western Hotel and several other buildings, which
were erected about that time.

Cook & Selover built the first livery stable, in 1857,

Below will be found some of the business enterprises; trades and
prefessions that were represented in Elwood in 1858,

D. W. Wilder (anthor of Annals of Kansas) located as the first
real estate agent; E. Russell, as an insurance agent; A. L. Lee lo-
cated a8 the first lawyer; T. A, Osborn, who held the office of Gov-
ernor from 1873 to 1879, also loeated as u lawyer, soon after. The
first butcher was Abel Montgomery; Noyes & Smith erected o build-
ing and opened a drug store in the spring of 1858 the St. Charles
Hotel, a two-story building, was erceted in the spring of the sime year ;
Dr. 8. D. Smith, from New York State; loeated ns the first physician.

In 1856, o steam suw-mill was built by William . High, which
was operated for o few years. In 1850, W, L. Lewis alzo built a
miil of the sume kind.

The St. Joseph and Elwood Ferry was operated by B. Blackiston,
in 1855, and was run up to the time of the erection of the bridge.

The Elwood Building Assosiation was incorporated in 1860, by
D. W. Wilder, A. L. Lee, Charles 1. Hatches.

In the spring of 1858, John Truey and others orginized School
District No. 2.

St, Mark’s Episcopal Church was built in 1860 ; Rey. J, E.
Ryan officiating roctor.

The Congregational denomination held irregular serviced in
public hall; Rev. Whitney, pastor.

Offivers of the Elwood Public: School Board, for 1860, were:
Trustee, Edward Russell; Clerk, N. Smith ; Treasurer, D. B. Jones.

Elwood was i“gqu\ur.-n_cd ns A cil.)-' of the third class in 1860,

Owing to loss of vecords, ete., we have been unable to obtiin & com- [

plete list of eity offisers from time of ineorporation up to present date,
but give below a L'-u.up'!utu list of city officers for the yeur 1860 -

Muyor, George W. Burr; Clerk, Dr. J. W. Robinson ; Ree
Dr. J. W. Richardson; Assessor, William H. High: Attorney, T. A,
Oshorn 3 Tressurer, R 8. Suyward ; Collector, Charles 0. Smith;
Councilmen—William H. High, D. B, Joues, J. Hatelien, A.

Disque, W. L. Lewis, L. €. Bootl, Williamn Luke W. C. Croff, A. W.

der,

T%el‘ Police Department—The police force consisted of a chief or
City Marshal and three policemen, the latter of whom were immedi-

ately responsible to the Mayor. Marshial, Charles 0. Stuith. Palice.

men—Andrew Neal, Arthur Carroll, Richard Howell.

City officers of Elwood for 1882 :

Mayor, A. Porter; Glerk, J. R. Stone; Polive Judge, Robert
White; Treasurer, A. Carrol]: Marshal, Samuel Turner.

Councilmen—0. R. Jones, E. March, N. Porter, Samiel Hen-
derson, L. Hinman.

Elwaod, in 1860, was at the height of its prosperity.  We give
below a few extracts from New York papers :

In regard to the loeation of Elwood, the New York Daily Times,
of December 18, 1860, says: “It lies on the west bank of the Mis-
souri River, on the verge of an extensive, elovated and thickly waoded
bottom, which requires no gradings ; its stroets ave broad and retangi-
lar and its lovee can be approsched with safaty by the largest boats,
and is sufficiently spacious for un immense commerce.’’

The New York Tribune, of January, 1859, says: ** The rapid
growth of Elwood, the principal town of Northern Kansas, is due to
its position on the Missouri River, directly opposite St. Joseph, the
second oity in Missouri. Since 1849, when the overlund emigration
to Californin commeneed, this point has besn an important one, the
lurgest overland emigration to Iansas bas been, and still continues to
go through St. Joseph and Elwood. The Government teains and the
Sult Luke mails have long mads this their starting point. It s the
only town in Kansas that can be reached by railroad."

Although Elwood at one time claimed upward of two thousand
inhabitants, the treacherous bottom land upon which it is situated has
been so much washed awny, togethar with its proximity to St. Joseph,
that it has gone down to & great extent.

The machine shopa of the St. Juseph & Western Railvond are
loeated here.

The school interests are curefully looked after, two teachors
being employed.

The Methodist persuation has an an organization heve. Services
are presided over by tne Rev. B. F. Bowman.

The colored people 0wn o church building, services being held by
the Rev, Spencer.

BELLEMONT.

The first settlement of Bellomont (Whitehead) dates back to the
spring of 18%2, when u trading-post was established by J. and J. R.
Wihitehead, who erected o small building and used it both for dwelling
and store purposes.

In the spring of 1853, a Town Compuny from Rochester, N. Y.,
consisting of W. K. Moon and the (three) Penny brothers, as the
pringipal members, bought a tract of land—820 acres—of James and
J. R Whitehead, which comprised the original town site.

Elwood and Wathena being located about this time, thers was
great vivalry between the * future cities ™ as to which should gain the
ascendency.  In order to induce emigration to Bellemont, the town
company purchased a steam ferry, which they plied between Bellemont
and St Joseph, Mo., muking two trips a doy. After running the
ferry for about two years, it was discontinued.

Bellemont was the first seat of justice in Doniphan County, ap-
pointed by the Legisluture upon the organization of the Territory of
Kansas in May. 1854, All county bosiness was transacted at this
pluce until 1836,  About the widdle of September, the Board of
County Commissioners ovdered their next meeting to be held at Troy,
the |;r4u5¢-|u county sent, snd duving the month of October all the
publie books, records, ete:, were romoved to Troy. The meetings at
Bellemont were held in the building used as a trading-post by White-
head, James Whitehead ncting as Clerk of the court. This building
stood on o high, rocky bluff, overlooking the river, about w quarter of
o tile above the ferry lunding.

During the Pike's Peak emigration, there was not a town in the
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bluff to the Missouri River; thenee down the foain channel of the
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county which did more business than this, but in 1850 or 1860 it fell |
into thut retrogressive movement, which is sure to follow places of
rapid growth that have not the necessary business faoilities; and now
remains but a mere shadow of its formor selfs

As o last final effort to save the town from going down, the Belle-
mont Town Compuny tried to purchase the improvements of Wathena, |
which had made eonsiderable progress, and bid fuir to eclipse its rival,
but all negotiations proved fruitless.

BURR OAK TOWNSHIP.

This township received its nnme from the great quantity of burr-oak
timaher found within the confines of the township. It wasone of the five
original townships, and was ovganized September 1, 1855.  [ts bound-
aries were fixed as follows: “Bounded on the north and east by the
meanderings of the Missouri River, on the south by the second section
line south dividing Townships 2 and 3, and on the west by Towa
and Wolf River Townships.”

T. W. Waterson and L. Pritchard were appointed Justices of the
Peace, and James Waterson, Constabile.

The first election in this township was held on the first Monday
in October, 1855, at the houze of John W. Smith, in Smithton.

On the 16th day of September, 1856, the County Board eaused
the boundary of this township to be changed so as to ocenpy all of the
territory lying east of the range line between Ranges 21 and 22, ex-
eept that part oceupied by Wayne Township.

On the 21at duy of October, 1856, the, County Board redivided
the eounty, forming two new townships—Marion and Center. The
houndaries of Burr Oak Township were changed and fixed as follows:
 Commencing at o point one and a half miles south of the town line,
dividing Towns 2 and 3 on- range line between Ranges 21 and 22;
thence novth along said line antil it strikes what is known as * Bure
Ouk Bottoms," at the foot of the bluff; thence nlong the foot of the

viver until it strikes the open line one snd one-half miles south of the
line dividing Towns 2 and 3; thenee west to place of beginning."”

On the 21st day of June, 1859, o change was made and the pres-
ent boundary was fixed as follows: ** Commencing at the southwest
corner of Section 14, Town 2, Range 21, thence down the Missonri
River to the sonthenst corner of Section 1, Town 3. Range 22 ; thence
west to the southwest corner of Section 1, Town 3, Range 21 ; thence
narth to northeast corner of Section 23, Town 2, Range 21 ; thence
west to place of beginning."”

The surfuce of the township is very broken, ridges running in a
northeast divection. At one time there was a great deal of bottom
land, but the Missouri River hus gradually ent awny such a large
portion that ut the present time there is searcely one-hnlf the hottom |
lond lefi on its west bank.

The township is watered by several smull streams,  Smith Crock, |
named in honor of the founder of Smithton, is the prineipal stroam. Tt
heads in the southwest corner of the township, on Section 86, flows in
a northeast direotion and empties into the Missouri River below where
Smithton was formerly located.  Well water is obtained at depths
from twenty to sixty-five feet.

The fivst setunl setfler in the township was John Smith, whe
éame in 1852, und settled near Smithton, before the country wis
opened for settlement.. In 1855, he laid out the town of Smithton,

and orgnnized the first Masonic Lodge in the State, Among those

who eame shortly after were Jumes Craft and A. MeChesney,

After the country was opened for settlement in 1854, the follow-
ing persons arvived and took up elaims: B. H. Brock, O, H. Ridgers
the Tribble Brotherss, T. Baker, 8 Calvin, T. W. Watterson, A\liii;‘ui:
lough and others.  The people came in rapidly and sertled mostly on
the bottom lands.

The first marringe in the township was in the spring of 1854, the

contraeting partics being o Mr, Viles and s duughter of William Clen-
ons. The ceremony was performed in what was then known as Bog-
tany by the Roy. Dr. Landers, from St. Joseph, Mo.

The |J-'pllf|1|:iun inoreased so0 rapidly that it has been imp:msilﬂe

to obtuin feots regarding the fivst birth in the tawnship, but wmong
the first was '.\I:IJ‘J'. a duughter of il-:ru'_\-' Moore, some time in 1855,

In the spring of 1854, Joseph G. Rodgers located in the towne
ship and built a eabin, preparatory to making his lome there, In
June of the same year, he was taken sick with a fover, and not getting
batter, was removed to Boston, where he died in o fow weeks, This
was about the first death of which any record can be founil.

The fivst. religions services in the township were hold in the
spring of 1855, by Rev. Davis, of Andrew County, Mo., who rep-
resented the Southern Methodist Church,  He presched st varions
places throughout the township, in open air, there ].n_\illg no buildings
large enough in which to hold services at that time. In the full, of
the same year, he held an old-fashioned camp meoting in s grove on
the ** Boston Bottoms,”  Rev. Bireh, of the Northern Methodist
Episcopal Church, held services in Columbus and other points about
that time.

In the spring of 1837, Dr. John Lewis taoght o subseription
school nt what was then known a3 Columbus, in & small fisme bailding
erected by the Methodist denomination.  Anothor schoo! was taught
about the sume time by Mres. Jolin Lewis, onelalf mile below
Smithton.

The first school district was organized under the administration
of C. C. Cnmp, County Superintendent, at Colunibus, and was tanght
by M. T. Kincaid, who drew the first public money for school purposes
in the township.

Dr. W, B. Sharp loeated as the fivst phivsician, in the spring of
1855, at Columbus,

A steam saw-mill was built in the * Burr Oak Bottoms.'” three
wiles northwest of Columbus, in the fall of 1856, by Chas. B. Hemil-
ton.  Inthe fall of 1857, he bought o new mill and located it at
Charleston, in Center Township, The mill continued to be operated
for several years,

Robert Hayes built the first steam grist-mill in June, 1856, wt
Colombus,  The capueity of the mill was smull—ano set of hures—but
sufficient for all the work necessiury at that time. He wlso oper-
ated a saw-mill in connection with it.  The mills were operated until
the elose of the war, when they were moved to Missouri.

Probably the first sorghum manufactured in this township, or in
the county. was made in the full of 1858, by B. H. Brock and J. B
Weihman.

In 1855, n post office was established ut Smmithiton, Burnett,
as Postmaster.  Previous to that time the settlers ohrained their mail
at Boston, Mo.

In April, 1867, ocourred the frst overflow of the Missoud River,
it cnasing n grest amount of damage.

The prineipal products of the township are corn and wheat; fruit
of all kinds is also largely raised. This is considered the best timbered
township in the county, without any exception; the prineipal variotios
being burr ouk, walnut and eottonwood.

COLUMBUSE,

Columbus, long sinee defunct, was located hy & town eampany,
R. Hays, President, May, 1857, The company purehased the land
for the tawn site, of T, Wilson, there being ahout 220 acres. The
town received its nume at the instance of T. IL MoCullongh, who
named it sfter his son, Columbus.

H. Wilson erected the firat building on the town site, before the
town was lnid of—1855.  Soon after, he built & wagon shop, and after
the town was loeated, nsed it a5 o warchousa,

In the spring of 1857, P. Burke established the first general
store.




In the spring of 1858, a post office was established at this point,
with IT. Wilson as first Postmaster.

In 1558, a comparatively large cabinet shop was built.  D. Bar-
num located the first blacksmith shop.

Dr. J. T. Lewis, of the sclectic schoal, loeated in 1857, as the
first physician.

In 1838, the place had & population of about 200 seuls, and had
attained the height of its prosperity, but nt the beginning of the late
rebellion the place gradually began to go down until there is nothing
to mark the spot where there was once a thriving town.

MARION TOWNSHIP.

This township received its name from Gen. Francis Marion, of
Revolutionary fame. It was organized on the 21st day of October, 1856,
and its boundaries fixed as follows : Commeneing at the southwest gor-
ner of Washington Township, as then established, thence south on range
ling, between Ranges 21 and 22, to the Missouri River: thence up the

sl river to the south line of Washington Township; thence west

along said line to place of beginning.

E. King was the first Constable and F. M. Mahan the first Jus-
tice of the Pence appointed.

The first election in this township was held on the thivd Monday
in June, 1857, at the Palermo Hotel, in the city of Palermo.

On the 215t of June, 1859, a change was made and the present
boundaries fixed as follows : Commencing at the northwest corner of
Seation 86, Town 8, Range 21 ; thence sast three miles, thenee south
to the Missouri River ; thence south with said river to the southwest
corner of Section 24, Town 4, Range 21 ; thence north one mile;
thenee west one mile; thence north to place of beginning.

Marion Township is the smallest township in the county, and con-
tains ahout sixteen square miles (fractional), or 10,240 acres (frac-
tional).

The surface of the township is exceedingly rough, after leaving
the Missouri River © Bottom." This bottom land along the river is
very vich and is from one-half to one mile in width.

The township is well watered by the following stremms: Walnut
Creek, heads in the center of the township, flows east and empties
into the Missouri River at Palermo; Cuadue's Creek heads from nue
merous springs, flows south, and empties into the Missouri River, on
George Sanders’ place; Buffulo Cresk heads in the northwestern part
of the township, flows sonthwest and empties into the Missouri River ;
Brush Creek heads in the northwestern pare of the township, flows
sonth and empties into the Missouri River in Wayne Township.

The early history of this township is very meager. Peter Cadue
was probably the first white man that loeated in the township, or in
this part of the county. He came as an Indinn interpreter to the
Kiikopoo tribe some time in 184849, and settled a fow miles north of
Geary City. In o treaty with the Indians, among other considera-
tions, Cadue was given & tract of Jand not exceeding 640 acres, to be
loested at any point on the = reserve.”  He Ipeated his grant as fol-
Jows : The northwest quarter of the novthwest quarter and the south
hilf of the northwest quarter and the south half of Section 19, Town

1. Range 22, and the north half of the northeast and the anutlloslmt
quarter of the northeast quarter of Section 30, 'l'uwln 4, Range 22;
aleo the east half of the northwest quarter of Section 20, Town 4,
: also n part of the mortheast guarter af the northwest

Range -

quarter of Section 30, Town 4, Range 29, Mr. Cadue, after trying to |

establish n town on his land, which ke called Petersburg, left for
Brown Coungy, where he met his death by falling from his horse, u
few years later.

"l'lu.- following ave those who settled and took up ¢laims in 1854-55 ;
Joseph Randolph, D. White, 1. Funy, 5. Anderson, “'ﬂli'llln Fagg,
Robere Myers, John Hays, ). Smith, William Chaplin, N. ITomes,

W. Mowery and others.
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Neither records nor tradition show anything in regard to the first
marriage in the township.

About the first birth in the township was that of Emma, o daughter
of Willinm Chapman, in the fall of 1855, M. Chaprmun was then Liv-
ing on the southeast quarter of Section 17, Town 4, Range 22, but
said quarter hus sinee heen claimed and gathered in ns its own, by the
Missouri River. .

One of the first deaths in the township was that of a Mr. Guains,
who died some time in 1854, in a little log house located on W,
Deckard's place.  His remuins were taken to Missouri for interment.

In the spring of 1837, an inquest was held over the hody of a
German—name unknown—by Robert Krinber, then o Justice of the
Pence.  The body was found on Mr. Leaver's place, Not being able
to find any serious indications as to how the man came to his death,
the jury rendered the verdict, ** Death [rom exposure, bronght on by
disense of the throat.”

The first selool taught was at the residence of 8. Anderson, in
the spring of 1853, by Frank Kean. The schonl was continued but u
short time—only about six weeks.

A subseription school was taught by Miss Savah White, in 1856,
in a litele log sehoolhonse 16x18 feet, built by the neighborhood.

Religions seryvices were helil shortly afterward at the same place
by Rev. B. F. Bowman, of the Methodist denomination.

The principal products of the township are wheat, corn, oats and
other small grains. Tt is said that the soil is too rich to raise fruiv to
any great extent. The average yield of wheat on the Missouri River
bottoms is from twenty to twenty five bushels per acré, High as
thirty-six and one-holf bushels per sere have been raised.

PALERMO.

Palermo is one of these many towns that were located on the
Missouri River in the early duys. In 1858, a town company was
organized, with William Palmer, President, and J. Stiarwalt, Secre-
tary. The company was incorporated under the laws of the Territory
duting the same year. The town received its name from the capital
of a small provinee in Sicily.

Mesgrs. Mahon & Kimber established the first store, but didl not
continue long in the business, They also had a steam grist-mill on
Main street, built at n cost of about §7,000. The mill was operated until
1865, when it was torn down and the machinery sent to St, Josepl.

The first residence was built by William J. Palmer, o son of the
President of the town company, the building now being oceupied by
N. Harrington.

A stesm saw-mill was put in aperation at an early day by P. T,
Livermore, but was run only # short time.

Miller & Setzler opened the fivst drug store in 1856.

Charles White erected a building in 1857, and put in o stock of
hardware.

A blacksmith shop was stavted in the fall of 1856,

The post office was established in 1856, with Frank Mahan as
Postmaster.

Dy. Reanmont enme in 1856, with the town company, and loeated
as the first physician. Dr, Hastings located in Palermo in March, 185T.

The profession of law was first represented by Rush Martin in
1851

Like many other river towns, Palermo depended on the stenmnboat
traffie, which at that time was enormous, for its maintenance. But a8
the conntry heeame settled up, the locomotive took the place of the
viver boat, and soon Palermo vealized the fact that it was going down.
The St. Joseph & Topekn Railroud, built from Doniphan to Wath-
ena. reached the place in 1870, and revived the hopes of thost inter-
ested in the place. The road was run but abont two years, and the
place commenced ngain its retrogressive movement, hut still retains its
proportion of trade.  One grist-mill, one general store and a black-
smith &liop constitute the business enterprises of the place at present.
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A LIST OF THE PROFESSIONAL AND BUSINESS MEN

In the Cities and Villages, and Principal Producers in each Township in Doniphan County, 'who patronize this Plat
Book; also a description of their business, their history and present location.

—_— S

JOE ABRAMS was born in 1839 in Macon County, Ill. He
settled in this county in 1857. His residence is on Section 22, Town-
ship 1, Range 19. Post office address, White Cloud. His business
is that of farmer and stock-raiser.

ALVIN ACKER, born in 1826 in Lehigh County, Penn. ; settled
in this county in 18649 residence on Section 32, Township & Range
19; P. 0. Leona; business, farming.

JOHN ALBERS was born in 1833 at Oldenberg., Germany;
settled in this county in 1850 ; residence on Section 3, Township 4,
Range 20; P. O. East Norway: business, farming and stock-raising ;
emigrated to West Virginia in 1849 lived there ten years; served
in the State militia during the war; was under Col. Tracy st Kansas
City to help drive back Price, but was too late to take part in the
battle,

A, ALBERTSON was born in 1822 in Denmark ; settled in this
county in 1865 residence, on Section 8, Township 4, Range 21; P,
O. Brenner; business, farming and stock-raising,

B. ALFERS was born in 1838 in Holland, Netherland ; settled
in this county in 1860 ; residence on Section 24, Township 4, Range
195 P. O. Beverance; business, farming and stock-raising.

ELIJAH ALLEN was born in 1816 in Franklin County, Mass.;
settled in this county in 1858; residence on Seetion 28, Township 2,
Range 19; P. O. Highland; business, farming.

DAVID ALLEN was born in 1825 in Franklin, Mass.; settled
in this county in 1861; residence an Section 15, Township 2, Range
19: P. 0. Highland; business, farming; enlisied, October, 1862, in
Nehraska Second ; mustered out in 1863,

8. M. ALLEN was born in 1844 in Franklin County, Mass.;
settled in this county in 1858; residence on Section 28, Township 2,
Range 19; P. 0. Highland ; business, farming.

HIRAM ANDREW was born in 1843 in Athens County, Ohio;
settled in this county in 1866 ; residence on Section 25, Township 8,
Range 20; P. O. Troy; lusiness, farmer and stock- riiser; enlisted in
Company K, One Hundred and Sixteenth Ohio Infantry, August,
1862 : served as Corporal two and a half years 3 was wounded at
New Market, Va,

SAMUEL ANDERSON was born in 1830 in Waod County,
Va.: settled in this connty in 1854 ; residence on Section T, ']'nwnshi];
4, Range 22; P. 0. Wathenn; business, farmer, stock-raiser ani frait-
grower.  His wife was born, in 1836, in Franklin County, Mo. They
were married, in 1855, in Holt Cmml_ﬁ', Mo., and have three sons,

WILLIAM H. ANDERSON was born in 1841, in Sehuyler
County, TIL; settled in this eounty in 18753 residence on Seotion 2
Town 3, Range 20; P. 0. Troy; business, farming ; enlisted, in
July, 1861, in Fourth Towa Infantry as private; mustered out s
Captain, July, 1865, at Louisville, Ky.; served over four years with-
out losing a duy; was in forty-four battles,

W. L. ANDERSON was born in 1860 it Palermo, Doniphan
Co., Kan.; business, farming, stock-raising and fruit-growing,

A. ANGSTAD was born in 1848 jn Suyder County, Penn,;
settled in this county in 187 ; e
commission merchunt,

Z. B. ARBOGAST was born in 1852 i

1 residence, Leona; business. grain and

sogan: County, Ohio;

settled in this county in 1864 ; residence on Section 20, Town 2, Range
19; P. O. Highland; business, farming,

W. BAIRD was born in 1546 in Juniata County Penn; settled
in this county in 1864; residence at Highland; business, proprietor
of Wildey House.

0. 8. BALL was born in 1338 in Ashtabula County, Ohio; set-
tled in this county in 1868; residence at lowa Point; business, Post-
master and dealer in drugs and groceries ; proprietor of City Flouring
Mills.

GEORGE W. BASKINS was born in 1885 in Morrow County,
Ohio; settled in this county in 1868 ; residence on Section 22, Town-
ship 2, Range 20: P. 0. Highland Station ; business, farming; was
Captain of Company A, under United States general order No. 107,
Missouri Troops; was in service over four years.

W. H. BAYLESS was born in 1820 in Broome County, N. Y.;
settled in this county in 1855 ; residence on Seetion 27, Township 2,
Range 19; P. 0. Highland ; business, farmer and breeder of thorough-
bred Short-Horn eattle.

H. N. BEAUCHAMP was born in 1815 in Breckenridge County,
Ky. ; settled in this county in 1854; residence on Section 33, Town-
ship 4, Range 20; P. 0. Doniphan; business, farmer.

J. M. BEIDELMAN was born in 1849 in Wuabash County, 1. ;
settled in this connty in 1871; residence at White Cloud ; business,
editor and publisher of White Cloud Review.

JOHN BELL was born in 1821 in Blount Connty. Tenn, ; set-
tled in this county in 1873 ; residence on Section , Township 2, Range
18; P. 0. White Cloud; business, fsrming and stock-raising.

H. H. BENFER was born in 1842 in Union County, Penn. ; set-
tled in this county in 18693 residence on Seetion 6, Township 3.
Range 19: P. O. Highland ; business, farmer and frait-grower ; served
during the war in the Fifty-ifth Ohio Veteran Volunteer Infantry ;
took part in twelve battles, and was with Gen. Sherman on his ** mareh
to the sea.”

ABRAM BENNETT was born in 1819 in Warren County, Ohio;
settled in this county in 1856 residence in Bast Norway ; was in the
First Battalion at Troy, Kan., at the beginning of the war, but could

| mot serve on account of age; business, furmer and Methodist minister.

GEORGE BIRD was born in 1885 in Litehfield County, Conn, ;
settled in this county in 1858; residence on Section 14 Township 3,
Range 19; P. 0. Severance; present business, farming.

JOHN L, BLAIR was born in 1838 in Fayette County, Penn.;
settled in this county in 1858; rvesidence on Seetion 27, Township 4,
Range 19; P. 0. Hden; business, farmer snd breeder of Poland-Ching
hogs und Durham cattle. His wife was born in 1857 in Franklin
County, Ohio; they were married in 1863, and liave three children—
one boy and two girls—all living,

HENRY BODER. Ji., was born in 1837 at Mount Eaton, Wayne
Co., Ohio; settled in this county in 1857 ; residence, Troy ; business,
banking (Boder Bros.); was first Clerk of District Gourt nnder State
arganization.

LEWIS BODER was born in 1848 at St Joseph, Mo. ; settled
in this connty in 1862 :

i vesidence, Troy : business, bunking (Boder
rog. ).

s_
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NICHOLAS BOHR was born in 1545 at Lorraine, France ; set- |
tled in this county in 185U ; residence on Section 3, Township 4, I
Range 21; P. O. Geary City; business, firmer and stock-raiser.

B. F. BOWMAN was born in 1822 in Rockingham County, Va.;
settled in this county in 1856 residence on Section 30, Township 3,
Range 22; P. 0. Wathena; business, stock-raiser and pastor in
Methodist Episcopal Chuveh; has no charge at present. His wife was
forn in 1826 in Franklin County, Ohio ; they were married in Adnms
County, Ind., in 1852, and have six children—five sons and one
daughter.

J.J. BRADLEY was born in 1838 in Howard County, Mo.;
settled in this county in 186Y; residence, Fauning; business, mer-
clinnt 5 enlisted in 1862 in the Fourteenth Kansas Volunteers; served
until 1865,

JOIHN BREEDING was born in 1831 in Lee County, Va.: set-
tled in this connty in 1865; residence on Section 14, Township 2,
Range 19; P. 0. Highland ; business, furming and stock-raising.

FRED BREISING was born in 1852 in Illinvis; settled in the
connty in 1850 ; residence, Wathena; business, groceries, queensware
anil proprietor of billiard hall.

ADAM BRENNER was horn in 1824 at Rhinpfals, Bavaria;
settlod in this county in 1837; residence, Doniphan; business, wine
grower, manufacturer and distiller of grape brandy.

GEORGE BRENNER was born in 1842 at Rhinpfalz, Bavaria;
settled in this county in 1860 ; residence on Section 8, Township 5,
Range 21; P. 0. Doniphan; husiness, wine-grower.

A. 8. BREWSTER was born in 1841 in Stark County, Olio
settled in this county in 1874; residence at White Cloud ; business,
attorney at law.

G. A. BRIGGS was born in 1816 in Oneida County, N, Y.; set-
tleil in this eounty in 1857 ; vesidence on Section 16, Township 1, Range
19; P. 0. White Cloud ; business, furmer and stock-grower.

BENJAMIN J. BROWN was born in 1845 in Schuyler County,
N. Y.; settled in this county in I8T1: resulence on Section 35,
Township 3, Range 20: P. 0. Brenner; business, farmer.

W. W, BULLOCK was born in 1832 in Franklin County, N.
Y. settled in this county in 1865; residence on Section 16, Town-
ship 4, Range 21; P.O. Doniphan ; business, farming, breeder of |
Berkshire hogs, and dark Bramuh and Plymouth Rock chickens.

CHARLES BURKHALTER was born in 1889 at Loram, Ger-
many ; settled in this county in 185 ; residence, Troy ; business,
dealer in fresh and cured meats.

W. M. BUBKE was born in 1859 in Doniphan County, Kan.;
rosidence on Seetion 14, Township 4, Range 193 P. (. Severance ;
husiness, farming, stock-ruising and breeder of Paland-China hogs and
Durbam cattle, His father was born in County Cork, Ireland, in
1896 « settled in Doniphan Gounty in 1850; died, 1880. Tis mwother
was born in County Cork, Treland, in 1833 he has five sisters.

JAMES BURKE was born in 1820 atv Templemore, Tipperary
County, Ireland settled in this county in 1857 ; residence on Section
44, Township 4, Range 21; P. O. Doniphan; business, farming and
stock-raising emigrated to Neow York in 18513 removed to Ohio,
thence to Tows, thence to Nebraska, and from there to Doniphan
County, Kan.; served in the Fourth and Tenth Kansas Regiments
during the late war.

1.8 BYERS wis born in 1825 in Wayne County, (hio; seftled
in this county in 1860 ; residence on Section 5, Township 4, Range

10 . 0. Severance ; husiness, farming, stoek-raising and breeder of
thoronglibred Durhum eattle ; gives some attention to growing apples
uni peaches ; has one and a half neres of grapes.

SAMUEL BLUM was born in 1842, in Canton Jorne, Switzer-
lanil : settled in this eounty, 1868 ; residence on Section 81, Township
2 Range 225 P. 0. Wathena: husiness, farmer, stock-raiser and frait-
srower.  He was mavried in 1568, and has had six children; he was

married again in Doniphan County in 1880

. E. H. I:H}‘»‘b'LI!Y was born in Sussex County, N. I.; settled in
this County in 186%9; residence on Section 10, Township 4, Range 19;
E:..O‘ Severance; business, farming and breeding Poland-China hogs.
I‘;Ilm.limﬂhy was born 1828, and died in 18378; Lydia Bowlby was
blm'n in 1842, and married to Mr. Bowlby in 1872, M. Bowlby has
six sons and one daughter. =

FRANKLIN, CURTIS, FRED HARPSTER & CO.,grain mer-
chants, Severance, Kan.

A. B, CAMPBELL was born in 1845 in Monros County, Ind.;
settled in this countyin 1870 ; residence, Highland; business, druggist.

B. 8, CAMPBELL was born 1840 in Highland ('}oum-}'. Olio:
settled in this county 1857 ; residence, Highland : business, general
merchandising.

CHARLES CAMPBELL was born 1835 in Jefferson County, N.
Y. ; settled in this county 1858 ; residence on Seetion 34, TUWIIE}—.'lip 3,
Range 20 ; P. 0. Brenner Station ; business; furmer and stock-raiser.
Spent three years on the Western plains during the war.

J. A. CAMPBELL was born 1842 in Lee County, Towa; settled
in this county 1871; residence, Severance; business, druggist.

W. W. CARTER was born 1850 at St, Jogeph, Mo.; settled in
this county 18783 business, physician, surgeon and druggist: resi-
dence, Wathens.

FRANK CASE was born 1835 in Luzerne County, Penn.; settled
in this county 1860; residence on Seetion 30, Township 2, Range
19; P. 0. Highland ; business, farmer.

HENRY CASE was born 1852 in Lake County. Ohio; settled in
this county 18615 residenco, Troy; business, manufacturer of and
dealer in harness, saddles, ete.

DAVID CHANEY was born 1849 in Bureaw County, Il ;
settled in this county in 1878; residence on Seetion 8, Township 4,
Range 19; P. 0. Leonn; business, farming and breeder of Poland-
China hogs. His wife was born in 1858 in Green County, Wis.
they were married in 1875, at Bedford, Towa; have had three children,
two boys living, and one daughter, who died in 1880,

I8, CHANEY was born in 1843 in Buresu Qounty, T1l.;
settled in this county in 1860 3 residence on Section 10, Tawnship 4,
Range 19; P. 0. Severance; business, farming and stock-raising.
and bresder of Poland-China hogs; has a fine herd of mileh cows.
Enlisted in 1861 in Fifty-seventh Illinois; diseharged December 23,
1864, at Savannah, Ga.  Mrs. Chaney was boen in Morris County,
N.J., in 1888; they were married in 1866 ; have five children, three
sons and two daughters.

AARON CLEM was born in 1818 in Shenandoah County,
V- settled in this county in 1860; residence on Section 20, Town-
ship 4. Range 205 P. 0. Atchison; business, farming.

G. M. CLEM was born in 1835 in Shenandonh County, Va.;
cottled in this county in 1860 ; residence on Seetion 26, Township 4,
Range 19; P. O. Norman ville; business, firming, blacksmithing and
wagon-making: breeder of Nebeck hogs: Justice of the Peace.

LUKRE CLEM was born in 1820 in Shenandoah County, Va.;
settled in this county in 18743 resiilence on Section 30, Township 4
Range 215 P, 0. Doniphan ; business, farming: Emigrated to Mary-
lund, from there to Kunsas.

LEWIS CLEMENTSON was born in 1842 in Norway;
settled in this county in 1857 ; vesidence on Section 14, Township 4,

| Range 21; P. 0. Troy; business, farming.  Emigrated to the United

States in 1549 settled in St. Joseph; moved to Doniphan County in
1857,

WILLIAM CHAPPLE was born in 1823 in Meavy Parish,
Devonshire, England; gottled in this county in 1856 ; rvesidence on
Qeetion 18, Township 8, Range 20; P. 0. Troy; business, [armer
and stock-raiser. Enlisted in August, 1862.in the Thirteenth Kansus
Infantry; served as private six months, anid was pmmnu-:! to Sergeant;
was prisoner at Tyler. Texas, thitteen months; masterad out at Little

Roek, Ark., June, 1865,

~
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FRED J. CLOSE was born in 1849 in Snyder County, Penn. ; |
settled in this county in 1866 residence, Troy ; business, Clerk of
District Court:

LEVI CLOSE was born in 1841 in Seneca County, Ohio; settled
in this county in 18749 residence on Section 31, Township 2, Range |
18 ; P. O. Leona: business, farming: enlisted in Fifty-fifth Ohio
Infantry, Company A ; served three years.

BE. COLLINS was born in 1816 in Lincoln County, N. C.;
settled in this county in 1856 ; residence on Section 18, Township 2,
Range 20; P. 0. Highland ; business, farming.

W. I. COLLINS was born in 1846 in Buchanan County, Mo, ;
seftled in this county in 1856 residence on Section 38. Township 1,
Range 193 P. 0. White Oloud ; business, farming and stock-raising.

MOSES COLLIPRIEST was born in 1825 in Mare Parish,
County Somerset, England ; settled in this county in 1866 rvesidence
on Section 36, Township 3, Range 20; P. O. Troy ; business, farm-
ing. Emigrated to the United States in 1851; settled in the State of |
New York ; moved to Towa, thence to Kansas.

J. F. COOK was born in 1849 in Adams County, TIL. ; settled
in  this connty in 1874 ; business, dealer in general merchandise and
grain at Brenner.

J. W. COOK was born in 1827 in Arlington, Canada: settled in
this county in 1857 ; residence; Wathena ; proprietor of Wathena
Water Mill.

MIKE J. CORCORAN was born in 1848 in Mudison County,
Ind; settled in this county in 1858; residence, Highland Station ;
business, merchant and grain dealer. .

WILLIAM B. CRAIG was born in 1881 in Franklin Connty,
Ohia s settled in this county in 1859 ; residence, Wathena ; business,
dealer in groceries, _

ROBERT CRUIKSHANK was born in Washington County, N.
Y1 settled in this connty in 1875, residence, Highland; business, Presi-
dent of Highland University: graduate of Union College, Schenec-
tady, N. Y., and Princeton Theological Seminory, New Jersey: de-
degree of D. D. conferred in 1869 by Union College; minister of

‘Presbyterian Churcli.

B. P. CURTIS was bornin 1830 in Adams County, IIL; settled in
this county in 1854 ; residence on Soetion 21, Township 4, Range
203 P. 0. Doniphan; business, farming and stock-raising ; enlisged
May, 1861, in the First Kansas: was the eighth man mustered and
sworn in the State for three and one-half years: was Sergeant and
Corporal.

W, H. H. CURTIS was born in 1840 in Adams County, TIl.;
settled in this county in 1854 residence, Severance: business, mer-
chant and grain dealer,

M. DANNOVICK was born in 1847 in Norway ; settled in this
county in 1860 ; residence on Seation 4, Township 4, Range 21; P.
0. Troy ; business, farmer and breeder of South-Down sheep ; also
proprietor of ‘a threshing muchine,

€. D. DAVIS was born in 1842 in Montgomery County, Penn.:
settled in this county in 1866 ; residence on Section 33, Township 4
Range 21; P. 0. Doniphan ; business, farming und s:t:uk-rn-ising;
grape-growing a specialty.

.L. E: DAVIS wus born in 1840 in Bristol County, Muass.; set-
tled in this county in 1865 ; residence on Section 6, Township 3,
Range 19; P. 0. Leonu: business, farming.

. '%'. T DA‘_VIS was born in 1848 in Mason County, Ky.; settled |
in this county in 1870; residence on Section 25,
195 . 0. Highland ; business, farmer.

M.. DAVISON was hom in 1836 in Tompkins County; N, ¥ |
settled in this county in 1858 ; residence on See
Range 15:: P. 0. Highland ; business, farming ; enlisted in Seventh
Kansas Cavalry ; served as Sergeant ; was in service five VoaTs,

WILLIAM H. DECKARD was born in 1830 in Suline County,
Moy settled in this county in 1855; residence on Section 12, Town-

Township 2, Range

tion 4, '['nwnaiiip 8,

ship 4, Range 21; P. O. Palermo; business, farmer and atnckgrowe;;

| Treasurer of Wayne Township.

NICHOLAS DELZEIT was born in 1845 at Waldhilberheim
Krenznack Regierungsbezirk Kiiblenz, Prussia ; settled in the eounty
in 1858 ; residence on Seetion 7, Township 4, Range 19; P. O.
Leona; business, farming: las two fish ponds on his farm which he
will stock with German earp.

H. DILLON was born in 1835 in Trumbull County, Ohio; det-
tled in this county in 1865 residence, Highland ; business, contrac-
tor, builder and undertaker.

ROBERT S. DINSMORE was born in 1553 in Washington,
Towa; settled in this county in 1870 residence, Troy ; husiness, phy-
sician and surgeon ; County Coroner.

E. F. DIXON was born in 1817 at Church Creek, Dorchestor
Co., Md.; settled in this county in 1861; residence, Troy: business,
Register of Deeds.

F. H. DIXON was born in 1853 at Stoekton, Durham County,
England; settled in this county in 1860 ; residence on Seetion 12,
Township 4, Range 19; P. 0. Severance: business, proprietor of
Severance Billiard Hall.

CHARLES €. DOULY was horn in 1881 in Lycoming
County, Penn; settled in this county in 1889 ; residence on Section
86, Tawnship 3, Runge 20; P. 0. Brenner ; business, farming,

F. H. DRENNING was horn in 1836 in Indiana Co., Penn.;
settled in this county in 1860 ; residence, Wathena ; business, attorney
at law.

J. F. DUNWOODY was born in 1847 in Chester County, Penn.;
settled in this county in 1868 ; residence, Severance ; business. miller.

MOSES DENTON was born in 1844 in Lincolnshire, England ;
settled in this county in 1867 ; residence, on Seotion 3, Township 4,
Range 195 P. 0. Severance; business, farmer and breeding Cotswold
South-Down sheep and Herefordshive cattle. :

JOSEPH DENTON was born in 1%38 in Lincolnshire, England;
settled in this county in 1878 residence on Section 11, Township 4,
Range 19; P. 0. Severance ; business, farmer and stook-raiser, Lugy
Denton was born in 1841 at Scatness, Lincolnshire, England ; came
to United States in 1865.

GEORGE DENTON was born in 1828 in Lincolnshire, En-
gland; setcled in this county in 1873 residence on Soetion 3, Town-
ship 4. Range 195 P. 0. Severance; business, firmer and breeding
English Leicestershire shoep.

WILLIAM DENTON was born in 1881 in Lincolnshire,
England; settled in this county in 1865; residence on Section 3,
Township 4, Range 19; P. 0, Severancee; business, firmer and stock-
raiser.

PETER DIETER was born in 1842 in Waurtemburg, Germany ;
settled in this county in 1866 ; business, buteher and stock dealer ;
he was married November 1, 1867, and has. five ehildren—two sons
and three danghters.

ANDREW DUTTON was born in 1830 in Puluski County, Ky.;
settled in this county in 1865 ; residence on Section 34, Township 1,
Range 19; P. 0. Iowa Point : business, farming and stock-raising,

W. H. DUTTON was born in 1820 in Pulaski County, Ky.; set-
tled in this county in 1801 ; residence on Section 35, Township 1,
Range 19; P, O, lowa Point; business, frming.

WILLIAM M. DUTTON was born in 1853 in Pulaski County,
Ky.; settled in the county in 1861 ; residence on Section 35, Town-
ship 1, Runge 19; P. 0. Iowa Point; business, farming and stock-
raising.

N. B. DRUMMOND was born in 1842 in Holt County, Mo. :
settled in this county in 1872 residence on Sestion 28, '_['uw;lship- 4,
Range 21; P. 0. Doniphan ; business, farmer and engineer on A. &
N. Railroad.

T. J. DRUMMOND was horn in 1821 i Linvoln County, Ky.;
settled in this county in 1864 ; residence on Sestion 28, Township 4,
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Range 21: P. 0. Doniphan; business, farmer and frait-grower ;
mason and cistern-builder ; he has lived in Chariton, Platte and Holt
Oounties, Mo.; in Brown County, Kan. e has hiad ten children,
five sons and five daughters.  All living but one son.

A. B. DICKENS was born in 1842 in Schuyler County, N. Y, ;
settled in this county in 1881 ; residence on Section 4, Township 4,
Range 20 P. 0. Brenner: business, farmer ; enlisted, in 1862, in
the One Hundred and Seventh New York Regiment; he was in the
mpuntaing fourteen yvears after the war.

F. V. DIKE was born in 1831 in Providence, R. L ; settled in
this eonnty in 1863 ; residence on Section 32, Township 2, Range 19;
PO, Highland ; business, farmer.

J. H. EARHART was born in 1856 in Doniphan County, Kan.;
residence on Seetion 22, Township 8, Range 21: P. 0. Troy ; busi-
ness, furmer, stock-raiser and Superintendent of County Poor Farm,

D. W. EDWARDS was born in 1839 in Franklin County, Olio
settled in this county in 1868 ; residence on Section 9, Township 4,
Range 19; P. O. Severance; business, farmer and stock-raiser; he
enlisted in Company B, Thirtieth Ohio Regiment, at first call in 1861
gerved until the fall of 1864, when he was discharged, and returned to
olumhbus, Ohio.

B. N. ERICKSON was born in 1854 in Buchanan County,
Mo.: settled in this county in 1878 residence on Section 6, Town-
ship 3, Range 19; P. 0. Leona: business, farming.

G. M. ERSKINE was born in 1844, in Clermont County, Ohio;
settled in this county in 1869 residence on Section 23, Township 3,
Range 21: P. O. Troy ; business. farmer and stock-raiser.

A, R EYLAR was born in 1847 in Winchester, Adams County,
Ohio ; settled in this county in 1873 ; residence on Seetion 36, Town-
ship 4. Range 193 P. O. Eden; business, farmer and stock-raiser.
His wife was born in the same place in 1848, They were married in
1872, and have one son and one daughter.

W. H. FENLEY was born in 1523 in Shelhy County, Ky.;
settled in this county in 1867 : resides on Seetion 22, Township 2,

Range 18; P. O. Highland : business, farmer and stock-raiser; was

in the First Kentucky Infantry, better known as the * Louisville
Legion,” during the Mexican war:; was in the battle of Monterey
September 21, 22, 23 and 24, 1846 has always been a stanch
Democrat.

LUCAS FETTER was born in 1820 at Wurtemburg, Germany ;
settled in this county in 1857 ; residence on Section 2, Township 3,
Range 22; P. 0. Wathena ; business, farmer and froit-grower.

CHARLES E. FOX was born in 1834 in Tompkins County, N.
Y. ; settled in this county in 1857 ; residence. Highland ; business,
livery, feed and sale stable.

GEORGE G. FOX was born in 1882, in Tompkins County, N.
Y.: settled in this county in 1857 ; residence. Highland ; business,
farming.

W. H, FORBES was born in 1828 in Ashtabula County, Ohio;
settled in this connty in 1856 vesidence, Highland ; business, real
estate and loun agent.

JAMES F. FORMAN was born in 15821 in Bourbon County,
Ky.; settled in this county in 1848; residence on Section 3, Town-
ship . Range 2: P. O. Doniphan; business, farmer, surveyor and
dealer in real estate.

FRANKLIN & FRICK, proprictors of Severance Flouring Mills.

I, H. FRANKLIN was born in 1884 in Philadelphia, Penn.;
sottlod in this county in 1857; vesidence, nt Severance; business,
milling.

H. FRICK was born in 1821 in Chester County, Penn.; settled in
this county in 1857 ; residence, Severance; business, milling,

HENRY H. FRANKLIN was horn 1842 in Scott County,
Va.; settled in the county in 1865 ; vesidence on Section 32, Town 4,
Range 19; P. 0. Normanville; business, farmer and stock-raiser ;

enlisted in the Seventh Kentucky Infantry August 24, 1861 dis- |

charged October 5, 1864, at Louisville, Ky.; of 102 who enlisted
for the war, he was one of seventeen who returned home.

JEHIEL FRAZEE was born in 1844 in Jackson County, Ohio ;
settled in this county in 1871; residence on Section 21, Town 4, Range
20 P. 0. Doniphan; business, farmer and stock-raisers enlisted in
Second Virginia Calvary  was in Custer’s Division of Sheridan’s
Calvary. ;

A. FROST & €O, dealerz in pineand nativo lumbet at White
Clond.

A. FROST was born in 1840 in Portland, Me.; settled in this
county in 1872 ; residence at White Olond ; business, lumber dealer.

E.L FRUMP was born in 1830 in Highland Oounty, Va.: settled
in the eounty in 1856 ; residence on Section T, Town 2, Range 20; P,
(. Towa Point ; business, farmer.

GALLAGHER & CORCORAN, merchants and grain buyers,
Highland Station.

JAMES GALLAGHER was born in 1828 in CounLy Donegal,
Ireland ; settled in the county in 1850 ; residence; on Section 28, Town
2. Range 20; P. O. Highland Station: business, farmer; belonged to
the Doniphan Company. State Militins wasin ** the Price raid."

M. N. GALLAGHER was born in 1849 in County Donegal,
Treland; settled in this connty in 1863; residence, Highland Station ;
business, merchant and grain dealer.

D. G. GARLOCK was horn in 1837 in Montgomery County, N.
Y .; settled in this county in L86T : residence, White Cloud; business,
harness and saddle maker. _

E. GEE was born in 1805 in Garrett County, Ky.; settled in this
county in 1863 ; residence, Highland; business, farmer ; he was a slave
fifty-eight years in Kentucky and Missonri.

P. C. GEER was born in 1834 in Champaign County, Ohioy
settled in this county in 1866; residence, Highland; business, black-
smith and machinist.

GABRIEL GERARDY was born in 1832 in Sierck County,
France; settled in this connty in 1854 ; residence, on Section 14, Town
4, Range 21; P. O, Geary ; business, favmer and stock vaiser; left the
oity of Metz, March, 1854 ; landed in New Orleans in April; went
from there to St. Louis, thence to Palermo; moved to his present
residence April, 1857,

J. W. GEREN was born in 1823 in Knox County, Tenn.; settled
in this county in 1874 ; residence, Severance : business, livery, feed and
snle stahle.

8. D. GILMORE was born in 1828 in Clay County, Mo.; settled
in this county in 1833 ; residence, on Section 5, Town 3, Range 20 5 P.
0. Highland ; business, favmer and stock -raiser ; served five months in
United States Arvmy during the Mexican war; ervossed the Rocky
Mountains three times; first trip was in spring of 1846.

MILFORD GILMORE was born in 1815 in Bedford County,
Tenn.y settled in this county in 1855 ; residence, on Section 11, Town
2, Range 19 ; P. 0. Towa Point ; business, farmer.

W. R. GILMORE was born in 1855 in Buchanan County, Mo.:
sottled in this county in 1855 ; residence, on Section 2, Town 2, Range
19; P. 0. Towa Poink; business, farmer and stock-raiser.

H. F. GOSS was born in 1840 in Owen County, Ind.; settled
in this county in 1864 ; residence on Section 5, Township 3, Range
21; P. 0. Troy ; business, farmer and stock-raiser. _

W.J. GRAY was born in 1823 in Monroe County, N. ¥.:
settled in this eounty in 1865 ; residence on Section 84, Township 3 ;
Range 19; P. 0. Severunce ; business, farmer and stock-raiser.

PETER GROII wae born in 1820 in' Rhine-bieren, Geemany ;
settled in this county in 1856 ; residence on Section 27, Township 3,
Range 22; P. 0. Wathena ; business, farmer, stock-raiser and fruit-
grower. His wife was born in 1829, in Missouri; they were married
in 1860 ; have six sons and five daughters.

ANNA HO. GROONINGER was born in 1832 in Holland;
settled in this county in 1855 ; residence on Section 13, Township 4,
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- ) . i i J-raisi 81 in Thirty-third New York Infantry : served two years as Liag.
Range 18: P. O, Severance; business, farming and  stock-raising. 1861 in Thirty ¥

: TS §
Mr. Grooninger was born in 1824, in Hanover, Germuny : died in this | tenant
eonnty in 1871. They have had nine childven ; seven are living—four

daughters and three sons. o :

JOHN GUBTAIL was born in 1842 in Springlicld, f..)luu;
sottled in this county in 1870 ; residence, White Cloud; business,
blacksmith and wagon-work.

WILLIAM GURWELL was born 1881 in Crawford County, |

Ohio; gettled in this county, 1863: residence, Fanning; business,
farming ; enlisted 1861 in Fourteenth Ohio Volunteers; was in the
battle at Laurel Hill and Carriek’s Ford, Va.; was Captain of the La-
Fayette Company (extra), under Col. Tracy, in Price's raid.

[. D. GUTHRIE was born 1881 in New [Maven, Conn.; set-
tled in this county in 1870 ; residence on Section 6, Town 2, Range
203 P. 0. Towa Point: business, firmer.

E. P. GWINN was born 1837 in Marshall, Mo.; settled in this
county, 1857 ; residence, Section 2, Town 2, Range 19: P. O, lowa
Point; business, farmer and stock-raiser.

S. ITATCH was born 1825 in Gloneester, Mass.: settled in this
eounty in 18G6; residence on Section 82, Town 2. Range 22; P. 0.
Wathena ; business, raising all kinds of fruit.  His wife was born in
Caldwell, N. J., in June, 1381; they were married in 1861, in I1li-
nois: have one dunghter.

JOHN HARDING was born 1834 in Taylor County, Ky.; set-
tled in this county in 1854 ; residence on Seetion 84, Town 4, Range
20; P. 0. Doniphan; business, farming.

W. A. HAWKINS was born' 1851 in La Porte, Ind.; settled in
this county in 1880 residence, Severance; business, proprietor of
Severance House,

JAMES HAVER was born 1856 in Greene County, Penn.; set-
tled in this county in 188 ; rosidenco, Highland 3 business, livery, feed
and sule stable s firm of Vernon & Haver.

ZEPHANIAH HAYS was born 1847 in Jackson County,
Ohbio; settled in this county in 1854 ; residence on Section 18, Town
4, Range 22; P.O. Palermo; business, farmer and stock-raiser. His
wife was born 1854 in Rockingham County, N, H. They were mar-
ried in Doniphan County in 1874,

EUGENE HINOKLEY was born 1854 in Adams County, T11.;
settled in this county in 1870; residence, Brenner; business, dealer
in general merchandise and grain; firm of Cook & Hinckley.

H. H. HINES was born 1838 in Nuble County, ‘Ohio ; settled
in this county 1866; residence, White Cloud ; business, dealer in gen-
erul merchandise,

F. A. HOUGH was born 1858 in Bucks County, Penn.; settled
in this ¢ounty 1862; residence on Section 20, Town 2, Range 19;
P. O. Highland ; business, farmer.

JOHN HOVERSON was born 1829 near Christainsand, Nor-
way 3 settled in this county 1868 ; residence on Section 22, Town
4, Range 20: P. 0, Rast Norway; business, firmer and stock-raiser ;
came to the United States with his parents in 1846 ; sottled in Bu-
chanan County, Mo, The father is dead.

Ji W, HOWARD was bori 1549 in Adwms County, TIl.; settled
in this connty 1880 ; residence, Soction 4, Town 4, Range 20; P. (.
Eust Norway ; business, furmer,

HARVEY G. HEWINS was born 1836 in Hallowell, Me.; sot-
tled in this county 1868 residence on Section T, Town 4, Range
21 P, Palermo; business, farmer.

WILLIAM HILL was bory 1818 in Jefferson Clounty, Tenn.:
seitled in this county 18565 residence on Section 80, Town 2
Range 225 P. 0, Wuthena - businesy fiirmer, stock-raiser nmil breed-
er of Chestar White hogs. His wife was born in Tennessee in 1817,
He has had five children ; present wife was born in Indiana, 1823,

IL. A. HILLS was born 1834 in Livingston County, N. v..
settled in this county 1871 residence on Seetion 16, Town 2. Range
195 P 0. Highland ; business, farmer and stock-ruiser ;

enlisted in

CHARLES HIGBY was born 1819 in Lewis County, N. Yt
settled in this county 1857 : residence, Troy : business, proprietor of
Highy House, = L. | :

FEQ. HINCHSLIFF was born 1828 in Lincolnshire, Eng.;
settled in this county 1865 residence on Section 9, Town 4, Range 19 ;
P. O, Severance; business, farmer and stock-raiser. His wife was
born in same place; they were married in Febroary, 1853 have had
five sons and three daughters, all living.

E. HEENEY was born 1852 in Butler County, Ohio; settled
in this county 18703 residence, Severance: business, hardware and
furm machinery ; firm of Heeney & Lyons.

JESSE HENNEY was born 1836 in Wayne County, Ohio;
settled in this county 1870); residence on Seetion 4, Town 4. Range
103 P, 0. Severance; business, furmer and dtoek-raiser.

A. HERRING was born 1853 in Jackson County, Miss.; set-
tled in this county 1868; residence, Highlund Station: business,
druggist.

B. F. HERRING was born 1858 in Jefferson County, Miss.;

| settled in this county 1868; residence on Ssetion 24, Town 2, Range

19; P. O. Highland Station ; business, farmer.

CHARLES HERZING was born 1830 in Buvaria, Germnny ;
settled in this county 1879 : residence on Ssction 8, Town 3, Range
20; P. 0. Severance: business, farmer and Frait-grower ; emigrated
to the United States in 1350 settled in New York: enlisted in the
spring of 1851 in the United States Artillery; served three years:
was stationed on the Atluntic and Gulf coasts; lived fifteen years in
Wisconsin.

JOSEPH HAYTON wis born in 1828 in County Chester, England;
settled in' this county in 1858 ; residence on Section 20, Township 3,
Range 21 ; P. 0. Troy ; business, furmer and stock-rajser.

J.D. HAZEN was borr 1841 in Stark County, Ohio; settled
in this county in 1858 ; residence, Troy; business, farmer and livery-
man; served three years Thirteenth Kansas Infantry.”

B. F. HEASTAN was horn in 1841 in Harrison County, Ohio ;
settled in this county in 1857 ; residence on Section 90, Township 3,
Range 195 P, O Leona : business, farmer and stock-raiser,

ADAM HEATER was borr in 1885 in Seneea County. Ohio ;
settled in this county in 1872; residence on Section 3, Township 3,
Runge 19; P, 0. Highland; business, farmer,

THOMAS W. HEATLEY was born in 1848, in Lanecaster,
Penn.; settled in this county in 1874 ; residence, Troy ; business,
County Attorney ; was a resident of Doniphan County from 1837 to
1863 received degree of LL. B. at Michigan University in 1871.

PERRY R. HALE was born in 1857 in Doniphan County,
Kan.; P. 0. Troy; business, railroading,

M. HAGEMAN was born 1821 in Berkeley County, W. Va;
settled in this county 1860 : residence on Section 14, Town 4, Range
20; P. O. Brenner; business, farmer and stook-raiser.

J. H. HALL was born in 1827 in Jofrson Oounty, Ohio; set-
tled in this county in 1872; razidence on Section 27, Township 3,

| Range 21; . O Troy ; business, farmer and stock-rajser,

JOSEPH F. HAMPSON was bornin 1830 in Eirie County, Penn.;

| settled in this county in 1856 ; residence Troy ; business, examiner of

| County, N. Y.; settled in this county in 1846 :

titles, real estate and loan agent,  During the war of the rehellion,
was  chicf clerk in Provost Marshal's offices was shot by Quantrell's
men at Lawrence, but his life was saved by the skill and bravery of
his wife. :

WILLIAM M. HAMNER was born in 1818, in Mardin County,
Ky.; settled in this county in 1854: residence on Section 18, Town-
ship 2, Range 21; P. (. Troy; business, farmer and stock-raiser.

B. HARDING was born Novembor 25, 1816, in Excter, Otsego
business, furmer und

stock-raiser.  In 1834, ho remoyed with his parents to Cortlandville,
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among the ** Pennsylvanin Duteh ;" moved to Missouri in the spring
af 1844, and resumed teaching August 15, 1846 ; he ecame to this
State, then called ** Indian Territory,” and soon after engaged in the
Indian trade with Ben Holliday., In 184748, ke sold gu-uds at the
[owa ission with Joseph Robidoux. In 1847, he married Emily
Willinms, of Livingston County. Mo,  Bmma Harding was horn June,
1848 ; January, 1844, lie moved to St. Joseph; Apuil 15, 1852, he
locsted on his presens farm and engaged in the Indian trade with the
Kickapoo tribe until the county was open for settlement in 1854. In
November, 1857, he was elected a member of the Conneil in the Ter-
ritorinl Legislature, and sedved two years.  During the same year, ho
Joined o compuny of militia, and was uppointed First Sergeant. In
1861, lie was elected Register of Deeds of Doniphan County. In 1864,
e commanded Company K, Ninth Regiment Kansas State Militia,
anid went to Kansas City on the Red River expedirion.

DAVID HARNESS was born in 1822 in Montgomery County,
Va.: settled in this connty in 1869; residence on Section 34, Town-
ship 1, Range 19; P. 0. Iowa Poiaty business, farmer and stock-
raiser; emigrated to Missouri in 1837, and from that State to Kansas
in 18069,

J. H. HARPER was born in 1881 in Hendricks County, Ind.; set-
tled in this county in 1854 ; residence on Section 7, Tuwnship 3, Range
19 P. (), Leona; business, carpenter and broom-maker, also farmer
and stock-raiser. His wife was born in Towa in 184T; they were
married in this county in 1864, and wife died in 1880,

B. F. HARPSTER was born in 1846 in Sandusky, Obio; settled
in this county in 1872 residence, Severance ; business, banking.

FRED HARPSTER was born in 1840 in Sandusky, Ohio;
settlod in this county in 1863 ; residence on Section 35, Township 3,
Runge 19 ; P. 0. Severance ; business, farmer and grain-dealer.

1. D. HARPSTER was born in 1833 in Sundusky County, Ohios
settled in this county in. 1872 residence on Section 2, Township 4,
Range 195 P. 0. Severance; business, farmer.

JOIN HUNTER was born in 1888 in Aberdeenshire, Seot-
land ; settled in this county in 18705 rogidence on Section 3, Town-
ship 8, Range 193 P. 0. Highlund : business, farmer ; emigrated to
Michigan in 1857, from there to Kansas.

PRICE E. ISLES was burn in 1838 in Campbell County, Ky
settled in this county in 1857 ; residence on Seetion 13, Township 2,
Range 20; P. 0. Troy; business, furmer.

CHARLES JACKSON wasborn in 1830 in Washington, Tenn.;
sottled in this county in 1556 1 posidence, Seetion 32, Township 2, Range
205 P. 0. Highland Station ; business, farmer and stock-raiser; enlisted
September 1, 1562, in TPhirteenth Kansas Infantry ; served two years
and ten months 3 mustered outat Little Rock ; paid off nt Leavenworth.

HENRY JOHNSON was born in 1814 in Madison County,
Ohio: settled in this county in 1866 ; residence on Section 31, Town-
ship 8, Range 20; P, 0. Severance; business, farming.

LOUIS JOHNSON was born in 1844 in Falster, Denmark ;
settled in this epunty in 1868 : residense on Section &, Township 4,
Range 20; P. O. Brenner : business, firmer and stock-raiser ; emi-
geated to the United States in 18665 lived two years in Buchanan
County. Mo,

SAMUEL N JOHNSON was born in 1846 in La Porte, Ind.;
settlel in this county in 1866 ; residence, Troy ; buginess, County
Treasurer ; served three years in Firsy Missouri Cavalry.

0. (. JONES was born 1856 in St. Joseph, Mo.; settled in
dealer in hardware, stoves and tinware, furming
und spouting speciality ; guarautees
prices as low as St. Joe or Atchison : residence, Wathena.

CHARLES JONES was born 1816 in (hestershire, England ;
sosidence on Scetion 17, Town 4, Range
(tame to United States 1840

this county in 1857 ;
implements and seeds; roofing

settled in this conney in 1866 5
40 : P, O. Brenner ; business, farming.

sottled in Ohio ; eame from there to Kansas.

N. Y.: lived ona farm until 1541, when he engaged in teaching sehool |

HISTORY OF DONIPHAN COUNTY, KANSAS. 5l

8. (. JONES was born 1854 in Madison County, Ohio ; settled
in this county in 1866 ; residence on Section 1, Town 4, Range 20
| P. O. Brenner ; business, furming.

H. F. KAUTS was born 1846 in Philadelphia, Penn.; sestled
in this connty in 1871 ; residence, Tray ; business, carviage and wagon-
maker.

J. KAISER waus born 1832 in Wurtemburg, Germany ; settled
in this eounty in 1861; residence, Wathena ; husiness; general merchan-
dise, also proprietor of billiard hall.

A. KENT was born in 1836 in Ross Connty, Ohio; settled in
this eounty in 18563 residence on Seetion 883 Town 3. Range 215
P. 0. Troy; business, farmer and stock-raiser.

JOSEPIH EENT was born in 1821 in Ross Connty, Ohio
settled in this county in 1850 ; residence on Seetion 3, Town 4, Range
215 P. 0. Troy 3 business, furmer and stock-raiser.

DAVID KERCHER was born in 1848 in. Luncaster County,
Denn, ; settled in this connty in 18723 residence on Section 17, Town
5, Range 19; P. O. Leona ; business, farming.

HENRY KINDT was born in 1838 in Wayne County, Ohin;
cettled in this county in 1860 residence on Seetion 10 Town 3,
Range 20; P. O, Troy ; business, farmer and stock-raiser; enlisted
in State Militia in 1863 ; served during the war as Sergeant.

JOHN T. KIRWAN was born in 1834 in Treland ; settled in
this county in 1858 ; residence, Severance: business, general mer-
chandising.

FRANK KITZMILLER was born in 1842 in Stark County,
Ohio ; settled in this county in 1861 ; residence, Highland; business,
insurance and matble agent ; served three years in Thirteenth Knnsas
Infantry, Company H,

JACOB KLINK was born in 1840 in Wartemburg, Germany ;

| gettled in this county in 1867 ; residence on Section 3, Town 3,
| Range 19; P. O. Highland ; business, farming; served two years
in Fifth Missonri Cavalry.

DANIEL KLOSS was born in 1830 in Union County, Penn. ;
settled in this county in 1877 ; business, Congregational minister at
Highland. ]

CHARLES KOPIETY was born i 1844 in Moravia, Austria;
gottled in this county in 1976 ; residence, Severance ; business, meat

| market. (See Kopietz & Marak.)

KOPIETZ & MARAK, dealers in frosh meats, lard, hams, bacon,
ele., ete., ut Severance.

LEWIS & FARROW, physicians and surgeons, White Cloud ;
sottled in this county in 1878.  Dr. Lewis was born in 1850, in Ches-
ter Connty, Penn. Dr. Farrow was born in 1844, in Parkersbura, Va.

NANCY LANCASTER was born in 1410 in Marion County,
Ky.; settled in this cotnty in 1854 : residence on' Section 36, Town
4, Range 19; P. 0. Bden: business, farming. Mr. Lancaster was
born in Marylund in 13055 died in 1881 ; have four sons and four
daughters living ; one son and one danghter have died.

DANIEL LANDIS was born in 1866 in Allen County, Ky.:
settled in this county in 18553 residence on Seetion 8, Town 4, Runge
91: P. O, Brenner ; business, furaer and breeder of Poland-Chinn
hogs.

" [IENRY A. LAVERENTZ was born in 1827 in Oldenburg,
(Germany ; settled in this conunty 0 1850 residence on Section 22,
Town 3, Range 195 P (), Severance; business, farming and gtock=
ruising.

ROBERT M. LADWIG was born in 1850 in Mecklenburg-
Strelitz: settled in this county in 18623 residence, Section 2, Town
4. Ranze 20; P. O. Breoner; business, farmer and stock-raiser ; emi-
wrated o the United States with his parents in 18525 lived in West
Virginia ten years.

MARTIN J. LARSEN was born in 1854 in St. Joseph, Mo
cettled in this county in 18553 residence on Seetion 21, Town 4,
Runge 21 ; I. O. Doniphan ; business, farming.
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. A, LAYTON was born in 1843 in Bellefontaine, Ohio;
settled in this county in 1875 ; residence on Section 25‘. 'I‘m\:u 9
Range 10: P. 0. Highland ; business, farming ; enlisted in lBiJl‘ in
the Fourth Towa Infantry; was in Fifteenth Army Corps, under Gen.
Sherman ; served four years and three months.

BENJAMIN B. LEACH was born in 1815 in Manchester,
Mass.; settled in this county in 1858 ; residence, lowa Point ; business,
dealer in general merchandise,

DAVID LEE was born in 1808 in Warren County, Ky.; set-
tled in this county in 1855 ; residence on Section 23, Tawn 8, Range
205 P. O, Troy ; bosiness, farmer and stock-raiser.

J. LEIGH was born in 1818 in Rutherford County, Tenn.; set-
tled in this county in 18563 residence, Highland ; business, physician
and surgeon,

A. LEIGIT was born in 1849 in Holt County, Mo.; settled in
this county in 1856 ; residence, Highland; business, physician and
surgeon,

CYRUS LELAND, Ji., was born in 1841 in Sank County,
Wis.: settled in this county in 1858; residence, Troy; business, gen-
eral merchant, desler in stock and grain; enlisted in the Fourth Kan-
sas Infantry, August, 1861 ; served as Second Lieutenant with Teg-
lars until it was consolidated with the Tonth Kansas, when he was
promoted to First Licutenant; served as First Lieutenant in Tenth
Knnsas Veterans; was mustered out of seryice January 1, 1865.

JACOB LEIPPLE was boon in 1821 in Wurtemburg, Germany ;
settled in this county in 1868; residence on Section 10, Town 3,
Range 22; P. 0. Wathena ; business, farmer and fruit-grower ; has
six acres of vineyard; his wife was born in Germany in 1835; died
in Hancock County, Ohio, in 1866 he has seven children.

PETER LENKER was born in 1881 in Dauphin  County,
Penn.; settled in this county in 1859 ; residence on Section 35, Town
3, Range 21; P. 0. Pulermo ; business, farming and breeding Dur-
hum catele and Polund-China hogs. '

J. 8. LONG was born in 1831 in Allegheny, County, Penn.
settled in this county in 1856 ; residence on Section 34, Town 2,
Range 19; P. 0. HMighland ; husiness, raising and dealing in live
stock, also farming; was Indian trader with the Osage tribe in South-
ern Kausas for seven years.

J. W. LOWE was born in 18438 in Waest Milton, Olio; settled
in this county in 15357 ; residence on Seetion 81, Town 4, Range 21 ;
P. 0. Doniphan: husiness, farming and grape-growing; has fifteen
acres of vineyard.

I, F. LOYD was born in 1825 in Fleming County, Ky.; settled
in this county in 1866 ; residence on Seetion 8, Town 4, Range 20;
P. 0. East Norway; business, farming and stock-raising ; during the
late war, belonged to Ohio Squirrel Hunters,

8. M. LUCAS was born in 1859 in Crawford County, Ohio;
settled in this county in 1872 ; residence on Section 3, Town 2, Range
1 P. 0. White Cloud ; business, farmer, stock-raiser and dealer in
fine horses.

JOHN LYONS was born in 1859 in Doniphan County ; resi-
dence. Severance; business. hardware, of the firm of Heeney &
Lyons.

JOHN H. LYNDS was born in 1844 in Imqunis County, I1l.;
gettled in this county in 18373 residence, White Cloud ; business,
livery, feed and salo stable: also owner of transfer hout.

R. C. MAILLER was bor in 1834 in Morgan County, Alu.:
settled in this county in 1856 ; residence, Leony ; husiness, denler [”'
all Kinds of grain and stock,

ROBERT MALER was born in 18305 in Claiborne County.
Tenn.; settled in this county in 1855 ; vesidence on Section 20, Town
4, Runge 21; P. 0, Doniphan ; business, farmer and stock-raiser.

H. J. MANCHESTER was born in 1885 in Erie County,

Penn.; settled in this sounty in 1872 ; residence on Seetion 27, Town

4, Range 18; P. 0. Normanville: business, farming and stock-rajs- |
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ing; his wife was born in Adams County, I, in 1842, they wers
|u:rriut| August 12, 1873, and have two daughters and one son.

L. MANN was horn in 1840 in Monroe County, Wis,; settled
in this county in 1874 ; residence on Section 27, Town 3, Range 21
P. 0. Troy ; business, farmer and stock-raiser.

PETER MANVILLE was born in 1843 in Wineshurg, Holmes
County, Ohio ; settled in this county in 1364 ; residence on Sectioy
27, Town'3, Range 225 P, 0. Wathenu ; business, farming, stock-
raising and fruit-growing; his wife was born in 1848 in Germany ;
they were married in 1869 in this county ; have six children—thrae
sons and three daughters. L

CHARLES MAYNARD was born in 1827 in England; set.
ted in this county in 1863; residence on Section 20, Town 8, Rangs
21; P. 0. Troy ; business, farming and stock-raising.

v J B MIARAK was born in 1846 in Moravia, Austria: settled
in this county in 1877 ; residence, Severance ; business, meat market.
(See Kopietz & Marak.)

C. L. MARCELL was born in 1847 in Jessamine County, Ky.;
settled in this county in 1857 ; residence on Section 1, Town 3,
Range 189; P. 0. Highland; business, farming.

J. 0. MARCELL was born in 1840 in Jessamine County, Ky.;
settled in this county in 1857 ; residence on Section 1, Town 3, Range
10; P. 0. Hizhlaud ; business, farming ; enlisted in 1862 in the
Thirteenth Kansas Infantry for threa years ; also served us Corporal 3
mustered out at Leavenworth.

S. B. MARCUM was born in 1837 in Lee County, Va.; settled
in this county in 1856 ; residence on Seetion 10, Town 2, Range 14;
P. 0. Towa Point; business, farming and stock-raising.

J. H. MARTIN was born in 1844 in Howard County, Mo.;
settled in this county in 1856 ; residence on Section 13, Town 2,
Range 19 P. 0. Towa Point ; business, farming and stock-raising.

J. F. MAUCK was born in 1833 in Page County, Va.; seutled
in this county in 1856 ; residence, White Cloud ; business, milling.

J. A. MoCLELLAND was born in 1829 in Greene County,
Penn.; settled in this county in 1865; residence on Section 27, Town
3, Range 21 ; P. O, Troy; business, farmer and stoek-raiser.

T J. McCREARY was born in 1838 in Lawrence County, Penn,;
sottled in this county in 1858 ; residence on Section 27, Tm'ms‘hip 2,
Range 19; P. 0. Highland; business, stook-dealer and breeder of
thoroughbred Short-Horn cattlo: was at the lown and Sac Indiun
Mission in 1844, with his futher, who farmed for them ; afrerward re-
turned to Missouri.

JOHN McNEMEE was born in 1816 in Fairfield County, Ohio;
settled in this county in 1855; residence on Section 7, Township 4,
Range 215 P, O, Brenuer; business, farmer,

J. T. MIDER wis born in 1849 in West Union, Adams Co.,
Ohio; settled in this county in 1869; residence on Section 29, Town-
ship 3, Range 22; P. 0, Wathens ; business, furming, stock-raising
and fruit-growing ; small fruits o specialty. His wife was born in this
county in 1857 ; they weve marvied in 1876 have one son and two
dnughters,

A. L. MINTER was born in 1882 in Tompkins County, N. ¥.;
settled in this county in 1855; resiflence on Section 28, Township 2,
Range 19; P. O. Highlwod: business, fiarming and stock-raising ; was
Quartermaster under Tracy during Price raid in Kansas.

CHARLES E. MILLER was born in 1841 in Binghampton, N.
Y. ;5 settled in this county in 1877 : residencs, Severances husiness,
dealer in lumber, lime, coul. brick, plaster, ete,

DANIEL MILLER was born i 1817 in Cumberlund, Peny, :
settled in ghis county in 1855 residence on Section 18, anushi]u 3,
Range 21; P. 0. Troy; bosiness, farming and stock-raising.

G. W. MILLER was born in 1842 in Page County, Va.; settled
in this county in 1858 ; residence, White Cloud ; business, milling

SOLOMON MILLER was born in 1831 in Tippecanoe County,
Ind.; settled in this county in 1857; residence, Troy; business, pub-
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lisher and proprictor of the Kunsas Chief, the oldest newspaper in | enrolled militia; wlso Kunsas militia unde Col. Tracy in Price’s

Kunsas.

E. MOETINGER was born in 1825 in Wartemburg, Germany ;
settled in this county in 18363 residence on Section 7, Township 3,
Range 22 ; business, farming and frait-growing; ius twelve acres of
vineyard and fifteen acres of orchard; pesches, apples and pears a
specinlty; P. 0. Wathena. His wife was born in Cineinnati, Ohio, in
1887 ; they were mirried in 1849 in Louisville, Ky. : they have eight
ghildren.

V. P. MOLER was born in 1811 in Rockbridge County, Va. 3
settled in this connty in 1858 ; residence on Section 2, Township 3,
Range 21; P. 0. Wathena; business, farming and blacksmithing.

J. R. MOLER was born in 1882 in Rockbridge County, Va. :
gettled in this county in 1881; residence, Wathena; business, black-
smithing.

B. . MOORE was born in 1840 in Lawrence County, Penn. ;
sottled in this county in 1881; residence, Highland ; business, editor
and proprietor of the Contral State, the ouly Democratic paper in
this county.

GEORGE W. MOORE was horn in 1816 in Awmelin County,
Va.; settled in this county in 18653 residence on Seetion 4, Town-
ship 2, Range 20; P. 0. lowa Point; bosiness, farmer; was in the
Mexican war under Gen. Scott in the Fifth Ohio Regiment; was pres-
ant at the survender of the City of Mexieo,

JOHN MOREHEAD was born in 1824 in Fairfield County,
Ohio; settled in this county in 1857 residence on Seerion 18, Town-
ship 8, Range 21; P. 0. Troy: business, furmer and stock-raiser.

J. H. MORRIS was born in 1888 in Juckson County, Mo. ;
seitled in this connty in 1864 ; residence on Section 22, Township 3,
Range 22; P. 0. Wathena; business, furmer, stock-raiser and fruit-

wor.  His wife was born in Claiborne County, Tenn., 1838; they
were married in 1860 in Buehanan County, Mo., and now have six-
teen children.

D. W. MORSE was born in 1835 in Farmington, Me.; settled
in this county in 1857; residence, Troy ; business, County Clerk ;
sorved in the Seventh Kansas Cavalry four years and four months ;

was Commissary Sergeant for the regiment during the last three years: |

of service.

HARRIET A. MOTE woe born in 1833 in Miami County,
Olio: settled in this county in 1860 ; residence on Section 36, Town-
shiip 4, Range 205 . 0. Doniphan: business, farming.

. NAYLOR was born in 1840 in Buchanan County, Mo.:
sottled in this connty in 1871 ; residense on Section 16, Township 4,
Runge 20; P. O. Brenuer; business, favming.

FRANK M. NEESE was born in 1552 in Indiana; sestled in
this eounty in 18553 residence on Seation 10, Township 5, Range 213
P. 0. Doniphan ; business, farming and stock-Taising.

HANS NELSON was born in 1820 in Christisnia, Norway i
settled in this county in 1859; residence on Section 16, Township 3+
Runge 20; P. 0. Eust Norwsy; business, farmer and stock-raiser;
came to the United States ns an officer on a sailing vessal ; gettled in
New Orlenns in 18463 moyved to Buchanan County, Mo, in 1847,
then to Kansos.

N L. NELSON was born in 1851 in Buchanan County, Mo, ;
settlerl in this county in 1857 ; residence on Seetion 21, Township. 3
Runge 20 P. O, East Norway ; business, farmer and stock-raiser.

OSCAR NELSON was born in 1856 in Buchanan County, Mo.;
spttled in this county in 18473 vesidence on Section 19, Township &,
Range 195 P 0. Leons ; business, farming.

W. I, NESBIT was born 1850 in Nicholis County, [y, : settled
in this county in 18585 residence, Doniphan; business, dealer in
irugs, groceries and hurdware.

W, D. NOBLE was bornin 18221
in thiscounty in 1863; residence on Section 12, Township 2, Range 13

n Fayette County, Ind., settled

. 0, Mighland; business, farming; wasin the Twonty-fifth Regiment, |

raid.

E. ¢, NUZUM was born in 1833 in Marion County, Vi, settled
in this eounty in 1857 ; residence on Seetion 28, Township 1, Range
19; P. 0. White Clond ; husiness, farmer and stock-raiser.

(. B. NUZUM was born in 1822 in Monengalia County, Va.;
settled in this county in 1855 residence on Section T, Township 2,
Range 20; P. 0. Highland Station; business, firmor, stock-raiser
and dealet in stock. Enlisted in Fourteenth Kansas in 1868; served
until 1865; also served as Captain,

LEOPOLD OTTO was born in 1536 in Hanover, Germany,
settled in this ecounty in 1867 ; residence on Section 22, Township 4,
Range 21; P. 0. Geary Oity; business, eclectic physician 3 office at
Geary City.

. B. OVERLANDER was born in 1844 in Knox County, TlL.,
gottlod in this county in 1809 ; residence on Section 8, Township 3,
Range 193 P. 0. Leona; business, farmer anil stoek-riiser.

P, (PSHAUGHNESSY was born in 1828 in County Limerick,
Treland ; settled in this county in 1860; residence on Section 18,
Township 4, Range 19; P. 0. Normonville; business, farming and
stook-raising ; also breeding Poland-China and Berkshive hogs.

T. L. PALMER was born in 1824 in Colambiana County, N. Y.,
settled in this county in 1867 residence, White Cloud ; business,
dealer in lumber. o

J. F. PAUL was born in 1820 in Bavaria, Germany; settled in
this connty in 1854 ; residence, Wathena ; was with James H: Lone in
his Free State campnign of 1857 5 enlisted in 1862 in the Thirteenth
Kansas Infantry; discharged in 1863 on weeount of injuries received in
service.

JOHN PAULY, Sk., wis born in 1820 in Davaria, Germuuy.
sottled in this county in 1858 ; vesidence on Section 28, Township 4,
Range 19; P. 0. Naormanville; business, farmer and stock-grower.

JOHN PAULY, Ji., was born in 1857 in St. Clair County,
11L; settled in this connty in 1858 residence on Section 21, Township
4, Range 19; P. O. Normanvilles business, firmer nud stock-raiser.
Mrs. Pauly was born in 1863 in Wisconsin. They married in
1851,

1. L. PHILBRICK was born in 1824 in Effingham ; settled in
this county in 1860; residence, Doniphan; business, generpl mer-
chundising.

§. N. PERRY was born in 1837 in Cortland County, N. Y.
settled in this conuty in 1871 residence on Section 8, Township 2,
Range 19; P. O. Towa Point ; business, farmer and stock-raiser.

TOHN F. PIERSON was born in 1857 in Washington County,
Ind.: settled in this county in 18553 residence an Section G, Town -
ship 2, Range 195 P. 0. White Cloud 3 business, farming and stock-
raising.

J. R. PIERCE was born in 1819 in Cortlund, N. Y.; settled in
this connty in 18663 residence on Scetion 16, Township 1, Range 195
P, 0. White Cloud ; business, frait-growing on the Hermitage fruit
farm.”

A. G. PINDER was born in 1543 in Timberland, Lincolnshire,
England ; settled in this county in 1860 ; residence on Seetion 8,
Township 4, Range 19z P O. Saverancs; business, furming and
stock-raising

OHARLES PINDER was born in 1857 in Timberland, Lineoln-
shire, England ; settled in this county in 1880 ; residence on Section
28, Township 4, Range 19 P. 0. Normanville; business, furmer.

HARRY PINDER was born in 185% in Timberlunid, Lineoln-
. sottled in this county in 135803 residence on Sestion
P. 0. Normanville; business, farming.
Timberland, Lincolnshire,

shire, England
28, Township 4, Range 195

W. PINDER was born in 1858 in ]
Englund ;. settled in this county in 1880 ; residence on Section 28,
Township 4, Range 195 P. 0. Normaunville: business, farmer and

stock-raiser.
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PRYOR PLANK wis born in 1832 in Claiborne County, Tenn.
settled in this county in 1855 ; residence on Seetion 16, Township 12,
Range 20; P. 0. Highland Station; business, proprietor of Eagle
Springs. Mrs. Plank was born in 1832 in Maeon Cr>un|:y. Mo.:
they were married o October, 1871, in this county.

T AMOS POSTLE wis born in 1850 in Alton, Franklin County,
(hio; settled in this county in 18785 residence on Seetion 5, Town-
ship 4, Range 19; P. 0. Leonng business, farmer.  Mrs. Postle was
born in the same place in 18485 they were mavried in 1870,

W. 5. POSTLE wus born in 1838 in Franklin County, Ohio:
settled in this county in 1871 ; residence on Section 32, Township 4,
Ratige 10; P.O. Leonun; business, farming.

C. POIRIER wus born in 1823 in Lons le Saunier, Franee ; settled
in this county in 1854 ; residence, Wathenn ; business; farmer and
froit.grower; has thirty acres of grapes and twenty-five acres of
orchard.

ALEXIS POULET was born in 1831 in France ; settled in this

county in 1857 3 residence, White Cloud; business, dealer in general |

werchandise.

G. W. PUGIL was born in 1836 in Morgan County, Ohio ;
settled in this county in 1863 ; residence, Troy ; business, liveryman
served in Seveaty-fifth Ohio theee youes nnd eight months.

E. H. PUGHSLEY was born in 1857 in Stillwater, Minn.; settled
in this county 1 1866 ; residence, White Cloud; business, druggist
anil apothecary, on Lot 8, Block 48, Muin strest.

J. RANDOLPH was born in 1817 in Allegheny, Penn.; settled
in this county, 1854 ; residence on Section 20, Town 4, Range 22;
. 0. Palermo; business, farmer and stock-raiser. Mrs. Randolph
wos born in 1842 in Olio; they were murried in 1869 in this
county ; have five sons und four duughters living: two sons and one
danghter are dead.

EDWARD REECE was born in 1823 in Wales: settled in this

county, 18615 residence on Section 20, Town 3, Runge 21; P. 0.

Troy; business, farmer and stock-raiser. Mrs. Reece was born in 1827
in England; they were married in 1852; lave two childven,
CHARLES RAPPELYE was bora in 1828 in Yutes County,
N. Y. settled in this county, 1857 ; residence on Section 18, Town
3. Range 21 ; P. 0. Troy; business, fsrmer and stock-raiser,
WILLIAM REEDER was born in 1826 in Clarke County, Ind.;

settled in this connty, 1875; residence, Troy; business, physician and |

SUrgeon,

A, R. RENFRO was born in 1820 in Wishington, Mo.; settled
in' this county, 1856; vesidence on Section 23, Town 1, Range 19
P. 0. Towa Point; business, farmer and stock-raiser.

L. RICKENBACH was born in 1842 in Juniats County, Penn.;
settled in this county, 1872, residence, Leonas business, dealer in
dry goods, groceries, boots, shoes, ete,

E. REYNOLDS was born in 1827 in Junista County, Penn. 3

5 ?ﬂ!i_l.led in this county, 18723 residence on Section T, TUWIIM:E[J 2.

Range 20; P, 0, Highland Station; business, farmer.

JOHN RILEY was born in 1823 in Yorkshire, Hng:; settled in
this county, 1864 ; residence on Section 20, Towaship 4, Range 18 ;
P. 0. Normanville; business, dealer in general merchandise ; also
Postmaster at Normanville.

JOHN RHUE was born in 1829 in Fayette County, Penn.:
settled in this county, 1865 residence on Section 16, Township 3,
Range 21; P. 0. Troy; business, farmer and stock-ruiser,

W. D. RIPPEY was born in 1833 in Elkhart County, Ind.;
settled in this county, 1847; residence, Severance; business, farmer
and breeder of Short-Horn cattle, Poland-China und Berkshive hogs;
also Clydesdale horses.

WILLIAM T. RITENOUR was born in 1880 in Shenandoul
County, Va; settled in thie county, 1856 ; residence on Section 15,
thwz:ship 3, Runge 10; P. 0. Severance : business, farmer and stool-
ruiser,

HISTORY OF DONIPHAN COUNTY. KANSAS.

GEORGE H. ROBB was born in 1835 in Westworeland County,
Penn.; settled in this county, 1857; residence on Section 46, Tewn-
El.]]ilj :'i‘ Rangu 19 P. 0. Severance; business, furmer and broeder of
Short-Horn Duorham enttle.

JUSEPHUS ROBBINS was born in 1327 in Brown County,
Ohio ;s sertlad in thiscounty in 1866 1 vesidence on Section 17, Towii-
ship + R:mge 205 P, 0. Est .\"-Jr"l\':l_)". basiness, farmer: enlizted, in
1862, in Second Missouri Cavalry; served three years; was Captain
sighteen months and Major eighteen months. 2

J. B. ROBERTS was born in 1857 in Oneida County, N. ¥.;
settled in this county in 1870; residence on Section 33, Town 8,
Range 10 P. 0. Severance; business, farmer and stock-rniser: on-
listed in Thirvtieth Olio, Company B, at the first call in 1861; was
wounded at Antietam, Md.; was dischirged for disability and returniod
o Columbus, Ohio.

0. W. ROBERTSON was born in 15355 in St. Jog, Mo.; settled
in this county in 1857 ; residence on Seetion 8, Town 8, Range 20;
P. 0. East Norway; business, school tescher.

NATHAN G. ROSE was born in 1857 in Buchanun County,
Mo.; settled in this county in 1861 ; residence on Section 33, Town
4, Range 215 P. O Doniphan; business, fwrmer.  The father of Mr.
Rose moved from Southern Indinng to Missouri; was married to Ma-
randa Goodrich ; went from Missouri to Oolorndo, and died there in
1859,

' M. E. RUKLEFS was born in 1820 in Allenbach, Germany ;
settled in this county in 18655 residence on Seetion 4, Town 4, Range
21; P. 0. Brenner; business, farmer and breeder of Poland-China
hogs.

o " LOUIS RULLMAN was born in 1825 in Geisznidds, Germuny;
settled in this county in 1855; residence on Seotion 206, Town 8§,
Range 21; P. O. Wathena ; business, firmer.

DANIEL RUSSELL was born in 1841 in Oringe, N. €.; set-
tled in this county in 18765 residence on Seetion 19, Township 1,
Range 18; P. O. White Cloud ; business, furmer and stock-miser.

MACK RYAN was born in 1851 in Rickland County, 1L; set-
tled in this county in 1878; resilence, White Clond; business; black-
swith and wagon-muker.

S. L. RYAN was born in 1848 in Sumner County, Tenn.; sei-
tled in this connty in 1860 ; residence, Severance: business; attorney
at luw and eollecting agent.

J. G. SELL wis born in 1853 in Senees County, Ohio; settlod
in this connty in 1872; residence on: Section 20, Town 4, Range 20;
P. 0. Severance; business, farmer and carpenter.

S. 8. SELVIN was born in 1830 in Fleming County, Ky.; set-
tled in this county in 1868; residence on Section 10, Town 4, Runge
19: P. O Severance ; business, Barming; eulistedd in Thirtisth Towa
Infantry; served three years in Gen. Sherman's avmy; was Sergeant.

A. J. SELOYER was born in 1830 in Tompkins County, N. Y.
settled in this county in 1857T; vesidence, Wathena; business, farm-
ing and milling; i proprietor of BErpire Mills, Wathenn.

IL F. SHANER was born in 1545 in Wyoming County, Penn. ;
settled in this county in' 1868; rosidencs, Troy; business, County
Superintendent of Schools.

W. K. SHAW was born in 1823 in Monongalia  County, W.
Vau; settled in this county in 1854 ; residenve on Seetion 33, Town 4,
Range 20; P. 0. Doniphun; business, farming,

C, W.SHREVE wns born in 1888 in Decrfiold, Portage County,
Ohio ; settled in this county in 1858: residence, White Clond ; busi-
ness, droggist. -

J. H. SALLER was born in 1849 in Andrew County, Mo, ; settled
in this county in 1873; residence on Seetion 1, Town 3, Range 21: P.
Q. Troy 5 business, furming. h

C. L. SAMPRON was bovn in 1839 in Buchanan Connty, Mo. ;
settled in this county in 1858 ; residence on Seotion 2 Town 2, Runge
195 P. 0. Lowa Point; business, farming nnd stock-raising. L
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B. A. SEAVER was born in 1838 in Allegany County, N. Y.
settled in this county in 1872 residence, Highland; business, attor-
ney at law.

JOSEPH SCHLETZBAUM was born in 1841 in Bavaria, Ger-
mpny ; settleld in this eounty in 1858 ; residence, Doniphan ; bosiness,
blacksmitl, wagon-maker and mannfacturer of agrioultural imple-
ments.

J, W. SCHOOK was hoyn'in 1837 in Seneen County, Ohio ; set-
tled in this connty in 1870 residence, Leona; business, general re-
puiring on wagons, buggies and agricultural implements,

H. BEELEY was born in 1833 in Tioga County, Penn. ; settled in
thig county in 1870; residence on Section 6, Town 4, Range 214 B
Q,-:Brenner: bnsiness, farmer and stock-raiser.

ROBERT P. SHULSKY was born in 1826 in Prossia: settled
n this county in 1858 ; residence on Section 16, Town 4, Runge 19
i. (). Severance ; husiness; farmer and stock-saiser ; also County Com-

\issioner. )

A, SINOCLAIR was born in 1819 in Fincustle, Va. ; settled in
this county in 1876 residence on Section 33, Town 1, Range 195 F.
). White Clond 3 bosiness, furmer and stock-raiser,

DAN (. SINCLAIR was born in 1849 in Adrian, Mich. ;
thed in this county in 18725 residence, 'Troy ; business, druggist.

FRED SINKE was hornin 1822 in Prussin, Germany ; settled
i this county in 1850 residence on Seetion 2, Town 4, Range 21:
P. 0, Palermo ; business, firming and breeding thoroughbred Clydes-
dule horses und Durham enttle.

E. E. SIMMONS wns born in 1826 in Oneida County, N. ¥.;
gottled in this county in 1865 ; residence on Section 33, Town 2,
Range 19 P. 0. Highland ; business, farmer.

EBERT SIMON was bord in- 1849 in Syracuse, N. Yy settled
in this connty in 1867 ; vesidence on Section 28, Town 8, Range 20 ;
P. ). Hast Norway ; business, farmer and stock-raiser and teacher,

F. V. SNIVELY. born in 1837 in Boonshoro, Md. ; settled in
this county in 1870; business, dealer in all kinds of grain: proprietor
of Eugle Mills, Wathernu.

E. H. SNYDER was born in 1858 in Buchanan County, Mo. ;
seftled in this county in 1874 ; residence on Section 20, Town 1,
Range 185 1. 0. White Clond; business, farmer and stock-ruiser.

DANIEL SNYDER was born in 1827 in Huntedon, N. J.3
settled in this county in 1857 3 residence on Section 30, Town #,
Range 21; P. 0. Trov; business, farmer and stock-riser.

GEORGE B. SMITI was born in 1838 in Wyandotte County,
Ohin ; settled in this county in 1877 & residence on Section 28, Town
a3, Rnllgo 21 ; P. 0. Troy; business, farmer and stovk-raiser.

J, D, SMITH wus born in 1832 in Steuben Gl)tlllt}'. o SN S
settled in this county in 1871 residence on Section 18, Town 3,
R_sngu 3. P. 0. Severance ; business, farmer; enlisted in 1861 in
Fifteenth Ilinois Volunteer Infintry ; was wounded st the battle of

sot-

Shilol, aud discharged on aceount of wounds; served as Sergeant.

W. W. SMITH was born in 1852 in Randolph County, Aln.;
gottled in this county in 1865 ; residence on Section 20, Tawn 2,
Ringe 205 P. 0. Highlunl Station : business, firmer.

P. 8. SOPER was born in 1882 on Long Island, N. Y. ; settlod
in this connty in 18503 residence, Troy; business, Justice of the Pence
unid eollecting agent,

J, G. SPARKS was born in 1826 in Greenup County, Ky.
settled in this county in 1864 ; residence on Section 32, Town 2,
Range 20; 7. 0O, IIi:_';hlulul Stution 3 business, furmer and stock-
riiger.

J. 8. SPRINGER was born in 1888 in I"H_\'(‘lll’ Cl‘!llll:l'. Ind. ;
sottled in this county in 1865 residence, White Cloud ; bnsiness
hanker.

N. A. SPRINGER was bornin 1857, in Doniphan County, Kan ;
residence, Severnnee; business, dealer in dry goods, boots, ghoes,
ato.

1]

| ' THOMAS :":‘!'J'E:".N.":‘-DN was born in 1883, near Thoedestrand,
Norway ; settled in this county in 1858 ; residence on Section 21,
| Town 3, Range 20; P. 0, East Norway: business, farmer wnd stock-
raiser; firm of Steanson & Co.. grain dealers at Hust Norway. Mr.
Steanson came to the United States with his parents, two brothers und
ane sister; settled in Buehanan County, Mo., in 1850 ; the parvents
and one brother have since digd.
CHRIS STEINWEDEN was born in 1834 in the Kingdom of
VHanover ; settled in this egunty in 1857 ; residence on Section 10,
Town §, Range 213 P. 0. Doniphan; busipess, farmer nnd stock-
raiser; mason and conper by trade.
_ L. . STOCKING was born in 1825 in Onondags Connty, N,
| Y. ;5 settled in this connty in 1855; residence, Troy ; busi
maker and jeweler, aptician’s goods a specialty.

X, K. STOUT was born in 1824 in Hardin County, Ky. : set-
tled in this county in 1855 residence on Section 17, Town 8, Range
21; P. 0. Troy : business, farmer, attorney at law and loan agent.

E. W. STRATTEN was born in 1815 in Franklin County,
Mass. ; settled in this county in 18575 residence, Doniphan § business,
real estate, insurance and war claim agent ; colleetions a specialty.

JOIN SWARTZ was born in 1837 in Fayette County,
Penn. ; settled in this connty in 1880 residenve on Section 26, Town
4, Range H); P, O, Eden; business, firmer and stock-raiser ; bread-
ing of Poland-China hogs a specialty.  Mrs: 8. was born in the snme
place in 18404 died in this county in 1875 ; prosent wife born in the
sume plice in 1888, Mr. Swartz has two danghters and three sons
living.

HENRY SWINNEY was born in 1836 in Monroe County.
Mo. ; settled in this county in 1836 ; residence on Section 3, Town
2, Range 193 P. 0. Highland ;. business, farmer and stock-raiser.

J. A, SYMUS was born in 1887, in Monroe County, W. Va5
settled in this county in 18G5 ; residence on Section 26, Town 4,
Range 20; P. 0. Atchison; business, farmer andl stock-raiser.

8. & SWIM was born in 1830 in Fleming Connty, Ky. ; settled
in this county in 1868 ; residence on Section 10, Township 3, Range
191 P. 0. Scverance; business, farmer; enlisted in the Thirtieth
Towa Volunteer Infantry ; served three years; was with Gen. Sher-
man; served as Sergeant,

W. G. TATE was born in 1827 in Clark County, Ky, ; seutled
it this county in 1554 ; residence on Seetion 3, Township 5, Range
21 ; P. 0. Doniphan ; business, farmer and stock-raiser.

JOSEPH TAYLOR was born in 1834 in New York City : set-
tled in this county in 1857 ; residence on Seetion 27, Township 1,
Range 1%; P. 0. White Cloud ; business, furmer unil stoek-raiser.

D, TODD was born in 1881 in Washington County, Va.; settled
in this county in 1863 residence on Section 21, Township 1, Range
19 P. 0. White Oloud ; business, farmer and stock-raiser,

W. (. TOBIN was born in 1859 in Doniphan County. Kan.;
vegidence on Section 2, Township 2, Range 1895 P. O, Towa Point ;
business, furming and stock-raising.

JAMES L. TALLMAN was born in 1853 in Parke County, Ind. ¢
settled in this county in 1856 ; residence on Seotion 12, Township 3,
Runge 203 P. (. Troy: business, farmer and stock-raiser.

GEORGE W. TOWNSEND was born in 1839 in Henry Connty,
[nd.: setfled in this county in 1858 ; residence on Section 8, Town-
ghip 8, Range 215 P. O. Troy ; business, furmer anid dealer in gen-

wateh-

ernl merchandise, in Troy. v

FRANK THERIET was born in 1830 in Lorraine, France : set-
tled in this county in 1857 ; residense on Section 16, Township 5,
Range 22; P. 0. Wathena: business, farmer, stock-raiser and froit-
f Myrs, Theriet was born in 1841, in Alsnce, France; they
wore married in 1863 3 have two sons and two danghters.

R TRACY was born in 1882 in Gurrett County, Ky settled in
vesidence, Towa Point ; business, groceries, hard-

growe

this eounty in 1855:

ware, meat mirket.
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